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      Committee Clerk: Rose Laning 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for capital projects of various state 
departments and institutions; to authorize the industrial commission to issue and sell 

evidences of indebtedness for capital projects; to provide an exemption; and to declare 
an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments: 1 

 
Minutes: Roll was called and all were present.  

The committee met to discuss the razing of Foss Hall at Valley City State University and 
Senator Holmberg handed out the Employee Salary Increase Alternatives.  
 
Legislative Council: Brady Larson  
OMB: Renae Bloms  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Let’s open this briefing on Valley City State Foss Hall.  We have a bill 
SB2297 which is on capital projects. It has four projects in there, and one is Foss Hall. The 
principals won’t be here Thursday, and are here today, so they can tell us today. Who wants 
to say something? 
 
Senator Robinson, District 24, Valley City, N.D.: We will be hearing from Dolan. There is 
a critical need for this project.  Had floods in 2009 & 2011, and we saved the campus by 
inches.  The building we need to replace is on the very edge of the Sheyenne River.  The 
city working with legislature and water commission are working for flood wall that protects 
the campus.  Foss Hall is suspect and at some time have to do something. (his mic was off 
the whole time) 
 
Al LaFave, President, Valley City State University: I have been on the job five weeks. 
Testimony Attached # 1 – Proposed VCSU Capital Project. This is a very high need for us at 
Valley City. (7.00) If we had to go through another flood, the entire program would be 
displaced. This proposal was approved 4 years ago pending funding. We come again to get 
the funding to make this project whole. The initial price tag was $26 million. After four years’ 
time, it has a price tag of over $40 million; around $44 million. The architects have trimmed 
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about 16,000 square feet from the original proposed building. Now this reflects a proposal of 
$32.3 million, which includes the razing of Foss Hall. For recruitment, it is hard for students 
to see the vintage Foss Hall and then visit other universities and see how wonderful they are. 
We need to be able to compete. We need a modern, safe, productive environment to pursue 
their academic careers and goals. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: This replaces the renovation in McCarthy Hall and other building, too. 
That gets demolished if this project goes forward. Can you explain? 
 
Al LaFave: The original proposal was for the demolition of two buildings, the McCarthy Hall, 
built in the 30’s, and School High building. In the executive budget this year, there is a 
recommendation for $2.9 million to be put into that building with an additional $1 million from 
the college. Someone asked the governor to retain that historic building on our campus.  It 
cannot be retained for the music program. That is the real difficulty. What can it be used for?  
Maybe classrooms for school of education, which is the largest in the state. As a new 
president, I see that as a unique thing. It would have historical significance. If we could 
renovate this, over the course of a biennium or two, we would be ok with that.   
 
Senator Sorvaag: But this idea of being a music building is unworkable?      Correct.  
 
Senator Mathern: Are you using Foss Hall now?  What is your projection of enrollment of 
Fine Arts over the next decade? 
 
Al LaFave:  Yes, we are using Foss Hall.  There are 66 music majors at VCS. I anticipate 
with this kind of facility; we could have 100 majors within the next 3 years. (13.59) The 
students that are in other courses with increase also. Most students will have a course in this 
building.  
 
Senator Mathern: What’s the ten year projections for music? 
Al LaFave: We would like Valley City State to be the recognized institution in N.D. for music 
education.  Could project between 100-150 students that would major in education. That 
would make it the largest unit in N.D. It is a critical need area for teachers right now. Science, 
math, music, and special ed are the four highest need areas in N.D. That is our wheel house, 
we feel.  We need to take ownership of this and help with this need. (15.14)  
 
Senator Dever: Are the dollars requested here are accounted for in the executive budget? 
Or high ed budget? 
 
Al LaFave: They are included in the higher ed budget. We also included that in the 
appropriations budget a week and half ago. Not included in the executive budget.  
 
Senator Wanzek: I am confused on the proposal and it will allow for the razing of McCarthy 
Hall.  I thought you said re-purposing.  
 
Al LaFave:  I need to correct. This is for the re-purposing of McCarthy Hall and will raze Foss 
Hall.  
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Senator Robinson: Four years ago when the legislature approved capital projects, VC and 
N.D. State. They said Valley City could take down 2 buildings and replace one. The 
governor’s budget did not include funding for the new building. The governor is very fond of 
old buildings and three weeks ago told us that we should keep this building. He thought put 
money in and convert it to a classroom. We are not opposed to that. We just don’t see this 
working for music. There are a lot of standards that go with fine arts facilities. (18.14) It was 
a high school until 1959. At the direction of folks, four years ago, the VCSU Foundation went 
out and secured a footprint for the new facility. We have a loan for $6000 and invested $2000 
and spent $8000. That land is sitting there and our foundation is making payments on that. 
We’re ready to roll.   This is one of the reasons we were able to recruit President LaFave to 
Valley City. We had 50 applicants.  The campus is enjoying record enrollments – over 1500 
students.  The absence of this project going forward would have a significant impact on Valley 
City. The pictures of McCarthy Hall show it is not suited for a fine arts facility. (20.10) 
 
Senator Rich Wardner, District 37, Senate Majority Leader: (20.50) My comment is that 
we’re going to do this, at some point. It may be two years, four years.  It was $26M, then 
$42M and they cut it back. We need to do it. We are going to do it by bonding and go back 
to the old method where you take 1/10 of 1%. That is what the package will be later this 
week.   
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Keeping McCarthy Hall, can we expect future appropriation for 
increased for maintenance and/ or renovation cost for that facility? What is the impact of 
razing? 
 
Al LaFave:  The total impact of McCarthy is not known. The life safety issue is around $3 
million. This does not include the main structure.  Can you expect another request to do that?  
Hopefully no.  We hope to find that within our own budget over time. The primary focus is 
getting the new building. The art department occupies the 3rd floor of McCarthy Hall. They 
would move to the new facility.  
 
Senator Hogue: Talking about McCarthy Hall; other than the age of the building, what 
historical significant does it have? (23.46) 
 
Al LaFave: It was the old College High building.   It is in great need of repair, but it also has 
historical and sentimental value to alumni, to the community, and to the campus.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Minot had old high school. Is that still around? 
 
Senator Krebsbach: Model Hall was where I had teacher training. It’s still there and 
repurposed.  It was gutted and resurfaced.  
 
Senator Mathern: Have you had the Historical Society do an assessment of this?  There are 
people who actually assess the historical value.  I’d hate to pour out money and then 
someone says, this would be at bottom of list. 
 
Al LaFave: There has not been an assessment to my knowledge.  We can have them look 
and give us their assessment.  
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Tammy Dolan, North Dakota University System State Office: The one thing I wanted to 
point out is that this has been the top priority of the board of higher education budget request 
for at least three biennia’s.  Even last biennium, we did not submit any projects because of 
the state’s funding situation. (27.01)   
 
Chairman Holmberg: The committee members should be aware that there are couple other 
projects within the bill on Thursday. That includes Dunbar Hall, this one and Ag building 
(Harris Hall) at NDSU, and Hover Hall at Dickinson state.   
 
Senator Robinson: The recommendation to tear down McCarthy was not something we as 
an institution wanted. That came up four years ago. The president nailed it on the head that 
if we invest and make it into a classroom building, we will do everything in our power to pick 
away other things.   There is also a list of capital improvements projects waiting for these two 
to clear out.   A number of other institutions have projects waiting.  I reiterate that this such a 
priority.  If there’s a flood, it could be 3 years out before we have a facility that is operational.   
Thanked Majority Leader for bill and for listening.  Costs are not going down. (29.59) 
 
Chairman Holmberg: We will have plenty of discussion Thursday & Friday. Briefing is done. 
(30.39)  
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indebtedness for capital projects; and to declare an emergency.  
 

Minutes:                                                 11 Attachments 

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on SB 2297 at 10:00 in the Harvest 
Room. All committee members were present except Senator Robinson. Adam Mathiak, 
Legislative Council, and Becky J. Keller, OMB were also present. There is a subcommittee 
for this bill: Chair Senator Poolman, Senator Sorvaag and Senator Grabinger. 
 
 
Senator Rich Wardner, District 37, testifies in favor (see attachments #1 and #2) 
 
Senator Wardner: This is a building, capital construction bill in which we’re going to use the 
North Dakota building authority. It is 10% of 1% that goes into this fund that’s kind of our limit. 
We do have capacity for this particular package. That’s where the funding would come for it 
before we start. I needed to amend it right away and the problem being I miscommunicated. 
Brady Larson did not write it wrong for me. There was a little thing that had to be corrected. 
You have the official amendment: 19.1021.01001. That will match up with what I will talk 
about. There are four projects. These things have been around for a while and I think it is 
critical to do them now. Why? First of all, we’re going to do them at some point and the cost 
continues to rise every year. By taking care of these now, even though we’re bonding, we’re 
going to be money ahead. Also when these facilities are built, the groups who utilize them 
will take advantage of them and will be money in the pockets for many of the constituents.  
 
1. NDSU Dunbar Hall. Dunbar Hall is a Chemistry facility on the campus of NDSU and I’ve 

been through it. It is an accident waiting to happen. If something would happen, it would 
cost the state of North Dakota a lot more in the law suits to take care of them, then it is to 
do this building. The Governor does have it in his budget; he has half of it in there and 
the other half the institution has to raise. This is one of the key cornerstones of NDSU 
and it has been there for years. It’s known nationally. Some of the departments have had 
to move out of that building because the fire department required it. As we go forward, if 
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we build thing, we put a first class facility at a research university that is doing research 
that will bring more recognition and dollars into the state. You wouldn’t want high school 
kids going through the building because there are experiments and glass tubes and things 
all over, there isn’t enough room. If somebody hit that, it would ruin somebody’s 
experiment or somebody would get hurt. You only have adults go through that particular 
facility. That was 4 years ago when I went through it and I think it’s time we get that taken 
care of. I feel very strongly about that particular building. If you were to take a look at all 
of them, that’s number one for the state of North Dakota. It’s not just about NDSU, it’s 
about the state. 

 
(5:50) Chairman Holmberg: It is a state building. If you were on the jury of a law suit because 
of some accident there, the folks suing would say “look here, the legislature has said this 
building is substandard and they’ve said it for 8 years and never done anything about it”. As 
a jury member, you’d say “hmm, maybe a few more bucks” because we have recognized it. 
We passed it once and it didn’t meet the criteria for the trigger and then last time it just sat 
around. You make a very valid point on the exposure that we have if we continue to do 
nothing.  

 
Senator Wardner: You are correct. With discussion with another entity, we got into about 
they’re asking for more footage than they probably should. They’re not all in the same place; 
they have to bring these things back in. So they’ve had to move department s or areas out 
of that chemistry building for safety purposes. They are replacing it with something that is 
larger than what is there, but they have the reasons for doing that. 

 
2. This one is also on the campus of NDSU. It’s a benefit to the campus, but I do not see 

that one as much of a university issue as it is about an extension issue and taking care 
of the commodity growers in the state. That one is taking Harris Hall which is on the 
campus and also the northern crops institute will go with it. You might say “Well we built 
a northern crops institute not too long ago” but it’s relatively new compared to Harris Hall. 
They are locked together in a lot of things they do. What happens at Harris Hall? Harris 
Hall is where all the trade groups from around the world come and take at a look at our 
commodities. There they make a decision whether they’re going to trade with us or not. 
We’ve gotten by because we have quality product and great people who work there. They 
work in a museum. Harris Hall is a museum, but they make it work. You can say “well 
they can do that for another 10 years” but no, now is the time that we need to take care 
of that. They are proposing what they call the Ag Development Center in which all of the 
research and uses of commodities will be displayed. The northern crops institute will be 
attached to it and not only will we be talking about crops, but they’re also going to take 
the meat slab out of Shepard Hall and bring that in with it. It will be one complete facility 
and right south of the green houses which have been a tremendous benefit to the state. 
Out in my area, we did not grow corn over there, not very much. We do now. What 
happened? I think there was research done and we have genetics that have allowed us 
to do things that we couldn’t do before; corn growing on more dry lands than we used to. 
I think that one is a no brainer. If we’re going to do it, we better do it now for cost 
efficiencies. When you look on that sheet, you will see the Ag commodities groups are 
looking to raise $6M. That would come from other funds and the $8M would come from 
other states that are involved in the northern crops institute. Not only North Dakota is 
involved with it, but Minnesota, South Dakota and Montana as well. We would get $8M 
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from those others to go with the building of that. They thought that that would be about 
an $18M structure, but putting with the Ag Development center, you have some 
efficiencies there. That one benefits the state. Our commodity and producers out there 
are going to get more for their product because we’re going to have a first class facility 
where we’re going to bring people from all over the world to take a look at what we have 
and what we can do with these commodities in their countries. 

3. Foss Hall at VCSU. It’s a communication and fine arts building. That one’s unique and 
has been on top of the list for a long time. The issue is it’s on the wrong side of the dyke. 
You had a briefing from Valley City earlier this week so I won’t go into it much more other 
than to say that we are going to build another building there at some point. I know the 
Governor thinks we can remodel everything. Well I don’t think we have a building down 
there that we can remodel. I think we need to get this done because as was stated, it was 
$26M four years ago now it’s $42M and they cut it back so it’s $32M. That’s an example 
of costing more money if we wait. We haven’t used the bonding for a long time. I like it 
that we’re getting down to 0. I don’t like bonding and I have changed my mind that these 
buildings need to be taken care of. 

4. Pulver Hall at DSU. Pulver Hall was built as a dormitory probably back in the 70s. Then 
the enrollment went down and they rented it to Badlands Human Service center and 
converted part of it back into office spaces in that building. Dickinson State has gone 
through some tough times. They’ve sold some buildings that were given to them and 
getting back on campus. They need a spot on campus for the digitization of the Theodor 
Roosevelt Presidential Library materials. Where they are now is inadequate. What they 
would like to do is remodel it back to a dorm and a place to do the digitization. They have 
a program out there called the Theodor Roosevelt Presidential scholars. Those are 
students that are very gifted and bring a lot of talent to the campus. The top floor would 
probably go back into a dorm and the 2nd floor would be all for digitalization. The 1st floor 
would probably be a gallery. It’s a 6-story dorm. It needs $4.5M to remodel that and put it 
back the way it was and make those corrections on the 2nd floor. 

 
Those are the projects. I believe that all of them need to be done as soon as possible. The 
longer we let them go, the more they’re going to cost. It’s for the benefit to the state. 
 
(15:15) Senator Dever: After the buildings are constructed, who’s obligation is it to pay the 
bonds? It appears to me that it might be that the industrial commission acting as the North 
Dakota building authority might own it and lease it to the facilities? 

 
Senator Wardner: Dunbar Hall would be on the campus of NDSU. That would be part of 
their obligation. So would the Ag Development center but it’s part of the extension which is 
part of NDSU also so that would go there. Foss Hall would be with the Valley City state and 
the remodel would be with Dickinson State. This bonding we haven’t done for so long people 
probably don’t understand, but you’re right. We bond and use this bonding and pay it back 
with the 10% of the 1% sales tax and we’ve got room to do this. The bonds will be paid for 
the state of North Dakota but they become the obligation of those. Operation management 
will be done by the campuses.  

 
Chairman Holmberg: Senator Wardner is correct. If you recall a couple sessions ago, there 
was a movement to say “we have all kinds of money, so let’s pay off all the bonds that we 
have” and we found out that they were at a very low rate of interest thanks to Karlene Fine 
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and those folks. It was more expensive for us to pay off the bonds that we had. We haven’t 
done this for so long except for revenue bonds that it’s kind of a new experience for many 
people on Appropriations. 

 
Senator Wardner: The medical school at the UND was done with cash because we were 
okay on money and it was one-time funding. We didn’t have to bond. That’s great, but I 
believe that the cost efficiencies of doing this by bonding now will be a great benefit to North 
Dakota in the future. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: We also explored last session on Foss Hall and if they should heavily 
ensure it and hope a flood comes. They found out there was only so much they could get 
and it wouldn’t anywhere near cover the cost if it was totally destroyed. They’d only get a 
couple million dollars anyway. Foss Hall has been around because they are on the wrong 
side of the dyke. 

 
Senator Wardner: If you want to talk about the future of agriculture, I think the Ag 
Development center is huge in that along with the northern crops institute. Then if we put 
some funding behind the unmanned air project at UND, I think that that is going to be a huge 
benefit to our Ag producers in the state because with those unmanned aircraft, they can 
check for soil types, insects, weeds and more. Then you put that with our marketing here and 
bringing these people into this first-class facility, I just think it’s going to be a boom to our Ag 
producers in the state of ND. 

 
(19:20) Senator Hogue: The Valley city dollars for the fine arts building- we heard a separate 
bill on that. Is there any overlap or is this the same project?  
 
Chairman Holmberg: No, this is the project. We didn’t have a hearing because it wasn’t a 
bill. They were talking about this bill, but because they were not able to be here, we gave 
them the courtesy of giving us a briefing. If they were here today, they would say what they 
said Monday.  

 
V. Chairman Wanzek: Are these general obligation bonds? I’m confused with the language. 
It says “the industrial commission shall issue evidences of indebtedness under this section 
with a condition that lease rental payments need not begin until July 1, 2021. Does the 
university pay a lease payment then or are these general obligations? 

 
Senator Wardner: They are general obligation bonds. Karlene Fine is here and she will give 
you information regarding that. 

 
Chairman Holmberg: We used to have the Christmas tree bills. One of the advantages for 
the legislature meeting in 1981 was that there were no payments until the next biennium so 
you could get the buildings built and you didn’t start paying until the next cycle. That’s what 
they mean about that. 
 
Senator Mathern: Do you think we could attribute the $4.5M Pulver Hall to the $150M goal 
of the library? 

 
Senator Wardner: Yes, we could make it part of the deal if tend to go that way. 
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Senator Dever: I understand the new library would not be owned by the state but by some 
other entities. That might complicate that.  
 
Senator Wardner: If we were to contribute as a state to that project, we could make some 
deals. If we’re putting money in, we can ask that that project also be expanded and take care 
of something like this. 
 
 
(23:09) Greg Svenningsen, Vice Chairman of the ND Wheat commission, testifies in favor 
(see attachment #3 and #4)  
 
Svenningsen: I sit on the Northern Crops council board at the NCI. We bring in participants 
and potential buyers from all over the world. We take them down to Barry Hall, at the trading 
room, state of the art, bring them back to NCI at the auditorium and hold classes and baking 
labs and we take them across the hall to Harris and it’s an embarrassment. I think we can do 
better than that.  
 
I personally believe this is not to be a cost of North Dakota, but is an important investment of 
our future.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Committee members will remember that two of these projects, Dunbar 
and Foss Hall, have been passed by this very body as important buildings that should have 
been built but didn’t get built. So we’re back. 
 
 
(32:10) Julie Ellingson, ND Stockmen’s Association, testifies in favor (see attachment #5)  
 
 
(34:23) Jim Bahm, Executive Committee of the ND Ag Coalition member, testifies in favor 
(see attachment #6)  
 
Bahm: I presume most of you have toured the facilities. We have great researchers; the 
quality testing lab in Harris Hall is world renowned. Our new wheat breeder that we brought 
in from Kansas state has great, promising new wheat varieties coming. However, the building 
itself is an embarrassment. I am not an alumnus from NDSU, But I am a farmer from western 
North Dakota and I take pride in what I grow. We’ve expanded to soybeans and corn out 
west and a lot of that has to do with the research done at NDSU.  
 
 
(37:35) Thomas Mitzel, President of DSU, testifies in favor 
 
Mitzel: Over the past three years, we have been refocusing on the core of the DSU campus. 
We are selling some buildings that are ancillary off campus that we no longer need and trying 
to make sure we keep the core of that campus at 110 acres as strong as possible. We have 
recently been given dual mission status by the State Board of Higher Education which means 
that we can take our education and focus very carefully on work force needs of western North 
Dakota. How does this relate to Pulver Hall? We want it to be a mixed-use building. 
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One of the uses would be the TR digital center. The 1st floor of the building would be 
where we do programming, putting on shows, education outreach and things of that nature. 
Second level would be the actual TR digital center where the work is completed. The TR 
digital center has been in existence for over 10 years and has become internationally known 
and respected in that time. In May of 2018, it published its 50,000th document. A document 
can be anything from a postcard to a set of encyclopedias, but it has been a substantial 
amount of work and we’re grateful to the legislature and the state for helping fund that 
outreach. Most of that work has taken place in the basement of library and two offices. We 
really need to expand that workspace in order to increase the pace of the work of the 
digitization.  

The Theodor Roosevelt honors program is one of the most elevated programs we 
have at DSU with some of the brightest and hardworking kids in the world who come into that 
particular program. They’re asked to do a great deal such as community service, research, 
outreach and internships all above and beyond their school work. We go across the entire 
spectrum of the university with our students. We have athletes, speech, band members; it 
pulls in a nice mix of students.  

With Pulver Hall, we’re trying to revitalize a building on campus for use through DSU 
and we want that mix space to have our TR honor students living in the same space where 
the digitization is taking place that they can become more integrated into the programming 
that occurs within the digital center. We want for them to be doing research, mentorship, 
outreach to our local high schools among other things to begin to show people what has been 
accomplished with regard to our 26th president. We’re excited about that programming and 
we are putting in place more leadership programming around the digital center. Pulver Hall 
would give us that structure and space to pull all of these ideas together as we go forward. 
Please help support this bill; it would greatly help what we are doing as well as the other 
projects in the other institutions. 
 
(41:15) Chairman Holmberg: Your history doesn’t go back many years, but this legislature 
has over time been quite reluctant to put direct money into dormitories. That’s usually been 
the purview of the campus itself, but this is more than just refurbishing a dormitory. I think 
we’ve done it once before, but we typically don’t. This is more than just dormitory however; 
this is using a building right in the midst of your campus. 
 
Mitzel: Correct. It would be much more than just a residence hall. It would be a working space 
including a gallery, the TR digital center, offices and residence hall. The students really 
become a part of that programming. 
 
V. Chairman Krebsbach: Could we compare it somewhat to what we did with the Vision 
Center in Grand Forks where the school for the blind used to be? 
 
Chairman Holmberg: We put the money there so they could get more rent partially. Half of 
the old school for the blind is rented out to the Grand Forks school district and we put a few 
million into it a couple years ago we’d have made it nice, but that was never a university cut 
dormitory. It was a residential hall for vision impaired students.  
 
 
(43:20) Ed Kessel, 2nd Vice President of the ND Grain Growers Association, testifies in favor 
(see attachment #7) 
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Kessel: Two of the things nearest and dearest to agriculture is research and promotion. We 
heard earlier about the dark norther spring wheat and even though it’s worth less today than 
when I first started farming in 2005, it’s a premium product but also commands a premium 
price. I have an old grain bin on the family farm that my grandpa built in 1958 and this year I 
had the privilege of using it again. It holds about 950 bushels if you take and stuff rags in the 
top corners of it because it’s purpose has been served. 
 
 
(45:10) Deana Wiese, Executive Director of the US Durum Growers Association, testifies in 
favor (see attachment #8) 
 
 
(47:10) Robert Ferebee, diversified family farmer from Halliday, ND, testifies in favor (see 
attachment #9) 
 
 
(50:00) Neal Fisher, Administrator for ND Wheat Commission, testifies in favor 
 
Fisher: You heard from our vice chair and a lot of great producers here. We have 
underestimated our revenues for the last year especially in this chart (see attachment #4). 
Agriculture is performing at a higher level with more diversification in that crop base which 
tends to offset when you have a drought like we did in 2017. It helps offset from across 
commodities and across regions and so that is a much more stable and at a higher level of 
this is just price times quantity, no magic dust as the say, of what the farm grade value is of 
North Dakota agriculture. Probably the big four commodities- wheat, corn, soybeans and 
livestock- all address in this bill more stability, more of an ROI on the great research that you 
have helped to support in the past and going forward with this kind of effort I think we can 
take this to an even higher level.  

The only thing that spoils it is when you have a great year, it makes it tough to live up 
to that level, but this is at a higher level than we were the 10 years before these 7 years. I 
think that’s remarkable and we owe everybody a huge thank you for having made that 
possible through the research that has already gone on. The other point I’d like to make is in 
terms of principle crops, North Dakota is second only to Iowa. Other states in our region do 
pretty well. Another key point is if you add in 15M acres of range land that support that vibrant 
livestock industry, we go way off the charts.  

All of this matters whether you’re in farm policy, crop insurance, research or in capital 
improvements like this. It matters more in this state than perhaps in any other state in the 
union or maybe anywhere on the planet. On the fundraising effort, that match you heard 
about, the 10%, we’ve been working hard at trying to come up with some of that funding to 
construct this match. You heard of some of the reports. The North Dakota Wheat Commission 
has been involved in this and we so far have a little over $3M amassed so far and I think as 
this gains a little more traction, perhaps that will come along nicely as we try to fill up our 
obligation in this equation.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: You heard earlier from Senator Wardner that in 2013 the state wrote 
a check for $124M for a new medical school in part because of how great 2012 was in the 
agriculture sector.  
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Senator Sorvaag: We have a lot of world-class scientists. I presume a lot of them are home-
grown or trained at NDSU at some point in their career. We’re talking about students that 
work in that research and we need a world-class institution. To me there becomes a natural 
tie in for Dunbar too. I think they’re tied together. If we don’t have decent classrooms to start 
these students, especially the world-class ones, how do we keep them around? 
 
Fisher: I don’t think I did extremely well in chemistry, but we all have to have it and I think it 
is a very big part certainly in the research world. You’re going to have to have a very good 
basis in the sciences, stem and chemistry. I agree whole-heartedly that that’s a part of the 
package and yes, many of those scientists we’re talking about here are home grown. We did 
a trade a coach and athletic director for a very good wheat breeder to Kansas State 
University, but I think that’s fair trade. That will pay dividends and ROI on that as well. I 
definitely agree with you on that. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: As these improvements to the main campus happen with this large 
facility, does any of that enhance the ability for the research and extension centers throughout 
the state to also do their research? Is everything just going to be centered in this facility then 
and we’re going to pull back some of the science that we have going on in the outlying 
research extension centers? I know my center in Williston does a lot of really great things in 
plant pathology and I don’t want to lose that if we have a world-class facility. How will it affect 
the research extension centers and programs?  
 
Fisher: I whole-heartedly can say that it will only enhance because this is the analysis or 
taking the product once we have it. It’s been carefully constructed- all of these programs in 
the branch centers, the main station on the agronomic side. This lends itself a little more to 
that next step as we move this product into the world market. We’ve done a good job so far 
with what we have to differentiate this product. That is all the basic building blocks, this takes 
that next step to another step in our abilities to sell the product. That’s what our game is. This 
would not jeopardize that; it would only enhance the role of that very basic function. It is the 
building block for our great industry here in North Dakota. 
 
(57:48) Mike Beltz, Farmer in Trail County, testifies in favor.  
 
Beltz: I want to thank the sponsors; this is important for the state. We don’t become fourth 
of the state’s economy by not having people working in industries that support agriculture 
and work beyond agriculture. We need to add value to the products we produce in this state 
that get exported around the world. We’re a minority within a minority. We’re small population 
within the United States and the United States is only 10% of the world’s population so what 
we grow and produce gets exported around the world. We do an awesome job of production. 
Unfortunately, we’re a long way from markets, but if we can add value to our products, it 
benefits everybody. We have great people working in our research facilities. To recruit and 
retain these people, they have to have facilities that they can work in. These are substandard 
and they have been for a long time. Please correct the problem. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: What township? He was told Caledonia township. 
 
 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
SB 2297  
01-31-2019  
Page 9  
   

(59:45) Lance Gaebe, ND Corn Growers Association and ND Ethanol Producers 
Association, testifies in favor 
 
Gaebe: The associations I represent are excited of the aspect and notions presented in this 
bill. Corn is a major crop and it is now grown in every county in the state. With the 500M 
bushels that are produced, thankfully we have an ethanol industry that uses about 40% but 
of course the other aspect of that goes into livestock production. Not only are we excited 
about the northern crops institute aspect and the promotion in the Ag products development 
center, but also the livestock component that the Stockmen’s Association presented because 
the other percentage of corn crop and the DDGs from the ethanol plants all go through 
livestock. We’re excited about all components of this bill and offer our support. 
 
 
(1:01:00) Scott Rising, Soybean Growers Association, testifies in favor 
 
Rising: World class means perhaps something to other folks but what it means to us is that 
we have a viable and visible entity that customers around in a very competitive, commodity 
world recognize as being in the top tier. Thank you for your prior investment in the green 
house. It is an integral part of changing and staying current in the world of production 
agriculture. Commodity trading realm, same thing in the marketing aspect across the globe. 
The Ag products development center, the goal for that is to be similar.  

Today we’re working in a museum, simple as that. I have some experience with that 
as an old airplane guy. The soybean community already contributes substantially to the 
northern crops institute along with folk from other states as was mentioned. Those kinds of 
facilities are absolutely critical if we are developing the products in the Ag development 
center, we also need to show folks how to use them effectively and economically to help feed 
their own populations. That’s exactly what that group does. Soybean checkoff has committed 
funds to the Ag product development center. All of these projects are worthwhile.  

The idea that Dunbar Hall is tied to a product development center is right on the mark 
Senator Sorvaag. The soybean itself, the vast majority is animal feed, but the oil that comes 
out of that is magic. It will do everything from jet fuel to medicine. The trick to is trying to 
figure out how to make it commercially viable. On a personal note for Dunbar Hall, my 
youngest daughter graduated from Century high school here in Bismarck four years ago. She 
had a chemistry instructor in her junior year who made her excited about the world of 
chemistry. She took a tour of Dunbar Hall and she could never see herself working toward a 
future in a building that was adequate when I went there. So I paid out-of-state tuition 
somewhere else. The point is we’d have loved to have her go to school here. Please give 
this whole bill a green light.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: We have the subcommittee that will be working on this over the next 
couple of weeks: Senators Poolman, Sorvaag and Grabinger. 
 
Senator Grabinger: As the leader said, the money’s in there; we’re going through a bonding 
position. Quite honestly I don’t know what we need to go into subcommittee and discuss. The 
money is there if we want to do it. Let’s do it. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: We’ve been putting most things in; it’s not a requirement. Does the 
committee itself have enough information? 
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V. Chairman Wanzek: Not all farm guys went to NDSU. I am supportive of it. I don’t know 
how the other committee members feel about the issue, but I’m to the point of being able to 
commit. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: It wouldn’t hurt to at least have one meeting of the subcommittee. We’ve 
got an amendment to deal with and there hasn’t been any discussion on how this fits in the 
prioritizing of other buildings and higher education.  
 
(1:09:05) Karlene Fine, Executive Director for the Industrial Commission and authorized 
officer for ND Building Authority (see attachment #10 and #11)  
 
Fine: I wanted to give you background information on the bonding and how the building 
authority works. Senator Wardner had talked about the limitation that has been placed in 
statute by the legislature that when we do bonding for the building authority, the total amount 
of debt that we would pay each biennium cannot exceed 2% of 1 cent of the sales tax. That’s 
the limit you have put on yourselves on how much debt we can have outstanding. It’s how 
much debt has to be paid each biennium. In the various budgets that go through this 
chamber, you will see the bond payments that need to be made.  

For these kind of projects that you would see here that you are approving today in 
future biennium for probably the next 10 biennia, you would see the amount of debt service 
that they would need to pay. It would be in their budget. This is called an appropriation bond. 
Every session we come back and ask for the money to be appropriated for the bonds that 
were issued to construct those projects. It was indicated earlier that this was a general 
obligation bond. It is not. A general obligation bond states that taxes will be levied to pay for 
those bonds. The constitution limits us to the amount of general obligation bonds that we can 
have- $10M is the limit.  

What the legislature did in 1985 was create the building authority structure and we set 
up the mechanism of having appropriation bonds. The agencies treat these as one step 
below the general obligation rating for the state of ND. So they don’t get us the best interest 
rate you can get if they were a general obligation, but they get a good rate. I wanted to clarify 
that it’s not a general obligation; it’s an appropriation bond. Then there are the revenue bonds 
that are financed by the different facilities. Those are the two areas I wanted to point out. You 
will see it every biennium for the next 10 biennia. Those costs will be requested for the 
legislature to pay. You will see it in the University System budget, Health Department and 
the Industrial Commission budget. You will see it throughout the different bills.  

As the green sheet shows you, there is room within that cap that the legislature 
established for us to issue additional bonds (see attachment #10). The available debt 
service we have beginning in the 2021-23 session would be $35M. that becomes $213M of 
projects. If you decided if you wanted to do $213M of projects this year, you could be within 
the cap. We use the sales tax threshold of only $42M; I think your forecast is even higher 
than that. We’ve been very conservative in our numbers. That’s when we say the $151M is 
within the cap. That’s how much we have available.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: I understand general obligation, but this appropriation is a little different. 
There is still a moral obligation to pay it, but how is it paid if the next legislative session 
doesn’t appropriate for it? 
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Fine: The bonds when they’re issued clearly state on the front of them that they are an 
appropriation bond and that they will be coming back to the legislature. You do not have a 
legal obligation, but you do have an obligation. If you would not pay them, you would 
jeopardize the rating of the state of ND and ratings throughout the political subdivisions 
because North Dakota bonds would suddenly have a taint to them that they don’t pay their 
obligations. I’m careful about saying moral obligation because there is another category and 
they’re talked about in this information piece (see attachment #11). We presented this to 
other committees because there are a number of bonding bills that are being considered and 
we wanted to explain the difference.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: What kind of interest rate? Is there much difference in a bond like this? 
 
Fine: Page 3 (attachment #11) talks about how the ratings impact bonds. Right now North 
Dakota is rated by Moody’s Aa1 and by S&P at AA+. These bonds would trade a little lower 
than the state’s rating. If the bonds were able to be sold as a general obligation at 3.9%, 
these would be at 4%, a slightly higher interest cost. The green sheet (see attachment #10) 
shows you what the interest rates we have on a current outstanding building authority bond. 
The 2010 series is at 3.24% and 2012 we did some refunding and it’s at 1.41%. Then the 
2017 bonding, that was a refunding, we had the rage at 1.53%. Rates have gone up since 
the time we did those bond issues. There was a recent run with our financial advisor and rate 
was 3.57.  
 
Senator Mathern: If we were to pass this bill just the way it is, who would make the more 
detained decisions? There must be options in there. 
 
Fine: That’s done in my office. We work with the Industrial commission as well. We have a 
financial advisor PFM out of Minneapolis. They look at the best scenarios. We talk with the 
campus; it might depend on when they’re going to have their construction start or when 
they’re going to need their money. We put all that together. It’s been our practice within the 
building authority to do a 20-year bond issue. 
 
Senator Mathern: Does your process require any additional amendments on this bill? 
 
Fine: No. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: We will use the subcommittee and Karlene you might want to be down 
there when they meet. I would agree that one time is probably plenty. There is a suggested 
amendment as well. 
 
 
Chairman Holmberg closes the hearing on SB 2297.    
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Chairman Holmberg: Called the sub-committee to order on SB 2297. Due to the weather, 
Senator Poolman’s plane couldn’t leave Denver so Senator Holmberg will be sitting in for 
her.  Senators Sorvaag and Senator Grabinger were also present.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: As we know there is another thought coming our way. I will ask 
Tammy, is it true that the 2 concepts are not mutually exclusive? They both can move 
forward? 
 
Tammy Dolan, CFO, North Dakota University System:  Absolutely, they address different 
things. The other is also an appropriations bill, HB 1003.  
 
Senator Grabinger: This is included in there? 
 
Tammy Dolan: Actually it’s not. It’s a different concept on creating revenue sources with 
matching dollars to address differed maintenance and smaller type of projects. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: The House said we should consider passing this, so we have both 
concepts to consider working on. It could likely be in the budget bill. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: (Inaudible). That’s been left out. Whatever package is being worked on 
there. 
 
Tammy Dolan: None of those projects are addressed specifically in the bill 
 
Chairman Holmberg: If we kill this, those concepts might disappear. 
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Senator Grabinger: Last session we appropriated $9.2M to Dickinson for the Teddy 
Roosevelt Library. Where is that now? We’re being asked for $4.5M in bonding here for some 
Teddy Roosevelt work. Did that go back to the general fund?   
 
*RECORDING CUT OUT* 
 
Tammy Dolan: The remaining money which was not spent on the project, $9M, will remain 
in the general fund.    
 
Senator Grabinger: So it can’t be used anymore?  
 
Tammy Dolan:  Correct. Not unless you re-appropriate it.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: You were concerned they would have double? (That was confirmed.) 
Senator Poolman asked me to sit in on this subcommittee, since she isn’t back yet. A basic 
question is, is this a bill that you want to have more meetings on? Or would you rather we 
decide what to do and then do it? 
 
Senator Grabinger: I was ready to make a motion the other day. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: I want to ask Karlene a few more questions. We talked about interest 
rates, and that’s the moment in time when they’re sold. It was 2.54 on January 21. What 
interest range would you anticipate? 
 
Karlene Fine, Executive Director, State Industrial Commission:  We just took a point in 
time. We asked what the interest rate would be that day. I would imagine it would be less 
than 4%.  Just depends on how quickly we have to move into the market.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: One is always concerned on the readiness of the shovel. They 
downsized the building at Valley City. Both of those buildings, we will be building. Will it be 
this session? Or will it be killed? Not because they don’t like the building, but because it’s 
bonding. How shovel ready are those two projects?  
 
Karlene Fine: Tammy has more current information. It looked like within the next 6 months, 
after July 1st, we can move ahead with 2 of the. The other is probably more into the next year.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Is Harris the slower one out of the 3? (That was confirmed.) 
 
Tammy Dolan: There would be the final design planning. But the other 2 have been planned 
for a long time.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Harris and Dunbar are going right on our property. Valley City has 
acquired the property, it’s just a matter of bidding.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Does the appropriation at Valley City, cover any payback to the alumni 
group? They had to buy the land. Is there anything in there that has to do with that? 
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Tammy Dolan:  I think that is included in there. That was the concept that was approved in 
a contingency basis.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: The intention of the foundation is to be reimbursed.  
 
Tammy Dolan: I don’t have it right in front of me. But I’m certain that was the plan from the 
beginning.  
 
(8:57) Senator Grabinger: In the proposal, the reduced estimated cost for the Valley City 
unit, we’ve got $32M into this bill. The estimated cost is $32,275,887. Why wouldn’t we 
include that, so we would at least have the estimated cost so we’re not short? 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Just rounding off the numbers? 
 
Senator Grabinger: Maybe it’s a mistake? Should we make an amendment to do that? It’s 
Wardner’s bill, we could ask him. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Why don’t we gather the info we have and ask him. This is one we’ll 
start kicking out on Wednesday. Senator Sorvaag can carry it. (Sorvaag agreed.)  
 
Senator Sorvaag: You’re still at 159 rather than 157. In marketing we don’t want to go over 
152. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: The first payment would occur this biennium or next biennium?  
 
Karlene Fine:  That would occur next biennium. We’ve always structured the building 
authority projects where is it’s the subsequent biennium when you see the first debt payment.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: What does this do to the amount of debt we have? Not revenue, but 
everything else as a state. We don’t have much compared to the size. How much is the state 
indebted for if you go forward with this?   
 
Karlene Fine:  In this bonding document I provided, it talks about state agency debt paid by 
appropriations. We already have $20.8M building authority outstanding debt. DOT debt is 
just under $10M. There is other state agency debt, but those are revenue bonds and are not 
being paid by the state. DOT comes from anticipated federal highway grants. There are also 
some funds that come out of the Highway fund revenues.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Are we still paying for Highway 2 and bridge? 
 
Karlene Fine: That is what the DOT debt is.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: So when the bonding companies look at us, we’re in good shape? 
 
Karlene Fine: Out of 50 states, we’re at 48 with the net tax supported debt. Our debt per 
capita is at 133, the highest is Connecticut at 6,544. There’s a wide range.   
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Chairman Holmberg: What is New Mexico at? They complained half of their highway money 
was going to pay off GARVEE bonds. 
 
Karlene Fine: I don’t have that info in front of me. We have just the one GARVEE issue. It 
stands for: Grant Anticipation Revenue Vehicle.    
 
Senator Sorvaag: The payment, once started, is approximately what? 
 
Karlene Fine: When we ran the scenario, we were looking at $24M per biennium. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: We are not indebting ourselves to the maximum of ½ of 1%. How 
much more is available for bonding, if there was another project that came along? 
 
Karlene Fine: The amount we estimated was $213M. You’re taking $152M, so 
approximately $16-17M.  
 
Senator Grabinger: The National Guard training site, could that be put here? Or is there 
going to be a Federal match for that?   
 
Chairman Holmberg: Yes. You’re on that subcommittee. You got something from General 
Dohrmann? 
 
Senator Sorvaag: I’ve got a lot of other ideas too, but I have to stop somewhere.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: The challenge there would be, if they had $15M and then they come 
back and say we still need X amount of dollars for acers.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: So we are just making the recommendation to the committee to go as is, 
but use correct amount?  
 
(Senator Grabinger left to talk to Senator Wardner) 
 
Senator Sorvaag: Where would the revenue come from if there was a shortfall in the 
bonding? Either the project doesn’t happen or it would have to be in found in the higher ed 
budget? 
 
Tammy Dolan: Yes, or else they size the project to match the funding. If the bids come it 
high, they have alternatives. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Let’s say it came in $1M over, can they come to the emergency 
commission to raise the money privately? Or are they capped at $46M?   
 
Tammy Dolan: They would only have the appropriation authority for the set amount. We’d 
have to come to the legislature and get increased funding authority.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: They could raise money and give some back, but they can’t build a bigger 
building.  
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Senator Grabinger: I visited with the majority leader and he says yes, we should do an 
amendment for the exact amount. He hadn’t seen this. The number he got was from Larry, 
just off the cuff. 
 
Senator Sorvaag: Include the 32 as well? Just round it off? 
 
Senator Grabinger: I would go with $32,275,000. We don’t want to put any additional 
pressure on them, they’ve already whittled this thing down. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: That is an amendment, along with the other amendment that the 
majority leader had given us (attached # 1). Do you have an extra copy of that? If you could 
prepare the amendment, please do. I’m guessing we don’t have to have another meeting, 
because the amendment will be presented.  
 
 Senator Sorvaag: Moved to pass Wardner’s Amendment for Northern Crops Institute 
(19.1021.01001) and change to the Valley City funding to exact funding of $32,275,000.  
 
Senator Grabinger: Seconded the motion.   
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 3 yeas, 0 nays. 
 
Motion Carried. 
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Chairman Holmberg: opened the discussion on SB 2297. All committee members were 
present. Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council and Joe Morrissette, OMB were also present.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: (He started talking before the recorder was started) $2,275,000 to bring 
it more in sinc with what the projected cost of the building was.  So It was adding $275,000 
so the total amount of the bonding bill would be $151,975,000. That is the only change in 
the amendment.    
 
Chairman Holmberg: Is that the motion? 
  
Senator Sorvaag: I will make that as a motion we accept that SB 2297 as amended. 
2nd Senator Grabinger.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: We don’t obviously have all the information yet on what the House is 
going to end up doing. They are doing a different concept. We’re following actually what 
school districts use as far as for building funds and utilize for rehabilitation of building etc. 
So it is an interesting concept but they also know that this might fit into that entire picture 
because there are some things in this bill that are not in their particular concept. We will 
have the higher education budget last so they understand that. In fact, they asked should 
we be rolling this into the higher education budget and then they had other folks that said 
no, lets, the higher education budget will have enough weight on it over in the House, not to 
add a red flag called bonding. So I think they are going to stay away from doing it at this 
point.    
 
Senator Poolman: I am looking at the entire bill. The projects and so on, and how did 
these projects fit into the priorities of the Board of Higher Education?   
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Chairman Holmberg: Both Foss Hall and the Dunbar Hall are at the top of their list. The 
Harris building is actually, if you were putting it in a bill, you would put it in 1020, I believe 
the extension and experiment station thing. If you recall, there was some discussion about 
the importance of that earlier and I can’t remember where the President was a little amazed 
that there was a characterization that Harris Hall was NDSU’s top priority. That was not the 
case.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Harris Hall started to get confused then. That is more of an agriculture 
research. Dunbar is a classroom building at NDSU. Not obviously extension is under NDSU 
so they are both. But if you look at the priorities list of the Higher Education, it puts it at #12. 
So it did show on their priority list. By doing the other two, it moves them into the top 10, so 
it was brought along because there is a need there too. If you look at the list, by getting 
these out of the top 12, you’ve taken all but probably one or two buildings of most of the 
other priorities are like $2, 3 million, $4 million, things that there is a possibility affording 
with cash down the road. That is part of the rationale. There is just a couple that are large. 
The idea is to get it out of the pipeline. It was brought in because it was need and it’s driven 
more by the Agriculture world to consider that too. Then the other part is the Northern 
Crops Institute was brought in because it seemed the natural fit. Northern Crops Institute is 
stuck in the campus, it’s limited of what it can do with the building and the whole idea of this 
is to get those two out there near the new greenhouse we built and it will be a really ag 
center for the future of North Dakota, all of them together.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: There is the concept we will be passing on supposedly putting it in 
the House bill does address a number of the other projects that are on the board’s list. 
Remember the Governor has his own iteration as to how Dunbar should be done and how 
Valley City should be done.      
 
Senator Sorvaag:  There was Wardner’s amendment that the committee never actually   
moved on. So I would rescind my motion and redo it to add both amendments then. I 
don’t know what kind of language you want. What Wardner’s was it put the money in to the 
wrong place, it is $6 million in the Ag world, $8 Million for the Northern Crop. The wording in 
the bill showed $14 Million. It is clarifying and changes no dollars. It just clarified that 
$8Million had to be raised for the Northern Crops and $6 Million has to be raised for the Ag. 
It is just rewording. It changes no dollars, just reworded. But it is an amendment we should 
have addressed.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: The bonds though, that money would have to be available before 
the bonds would be issued, is that not correct?   
 
Senator Sorvaag: We are getting ahead on this bill. Maybe we should.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: We should wait until tomorrow.  
 
Senator Sorvaag. That was part of the discussion too. To change the language.  Wardner 
was in there, Valley City, but the other amendment we need. I wasn’t expecting to discuss 
this. We need another amendment; we need to hold it off. What that amendment is going to 
say is that have to raise the $14M before we bond the Harris Hall part. I apologize for that. 
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So I would think we hold up because we do need that initial amendment, which just says 
the money got to be there before the bonds are sold. Let’s wait. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Anything else? 
 
The hearing was closed on SB 2297.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL for capital projects (Do Pass as Amended)     
 

Minutes:                                                 Amendment # 19.1021.01002  

 
Chairman Holmberg: called the Committee to order on SB 2297 All committee members 
were present. Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council  and Stephanie Gullickson, OMB were also 
present.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: explained and moved the Amendment 19.1021.01002.   
2nd by Senator Grabinger.  
 
Discussion followed.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: All in favor of the amendment say aye.  It carried.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: Moved a Do Pass as Amended.  2nd by Senator Grabinger.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2297.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea: 14; Nay: 0;   Absent: 0.  Senator Sorvaag will carry 
the bill.  
 
The hearing was closed on SB 2297.         
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2297 

Page 1, replace lines 18 through 20 with: 

"Valley City state university communications and fine arts building project 
North Dakota state university agriculture products development center 
Northern crops institute project 

Page 1, replace line 22 with: 

"Total 

Page 1, line 23, replace "may" with "shall" 

Page 1, line 23, after "utilize" insert "at least $6,000,000 of' 

Page 1, line 24, remove "and northern crops institute" 

32,275,000 
54,000,000 

10,000,000" 

$151,975,000" 

Page 1, line 24, after "project" insert ", and the funds must be committed and available to be 
spent before the industrial commission may issue bonds for the project" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "$14,000,000" with "$6,000,000" 

Page 2, line 2, remove "any" 

Page 2, after line 3, insert: 

"The northern crops institute shall obtain and utilize at least $8,000,000 of 
federal and other funds for the northern crops institute project, and the funds must be 
committed and available to be spent before the industrial commission may issue bonds 
for the project. There is appropriated to the northern crops institute the sum of 
$8,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from federal or other funds 
that may become available for this project for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 2021." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment: 

• Provides separate appropriation authority for the North Dakota State University 
agriculture products development center and Northern Crops Institute projects rather than 
providing one appropriation for both projects; 

• Increases the bonding and appropriation authority for the Valley City State University 
communications and fine arts building project by $275,000, from $32,000,000 to 
$32,275,000; and 

• Requires federal and other funds to be available for the North Dakota State University 
agriculture projects development center and the Northern Crops Institute projects before 
the Industrial Commission may issue bonds for the projects. 

Page No. 1 19.1021.01002 
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Insert LC: 19.1021.01002 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2297: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2297 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, replace lines 18 through 20 with: 

"Valley City state university communications and fine arts building project 
32,275,000 

North Dakota state university agriculture products development center 
Northern crops institute project 

Page 1, replace line 22 with: 

"Total 

Page 1, line 23, replace "may" with "shall" 

Page 1, line 23, after "utilize" insert "at least $6,000,000 of' 

Page 1, line 24, remove "and northern crops institute" 

54,000,000 
10,000,000" 

$151,975,000" 

Page 1, line 24, after "project" insert ", and the funds must be committed and available to be 
spent before the industrial commission may issue bonds for the project" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "$14,000,000" with "$6,000,000" 

Page 2, line 2, remove "any" 

Page 2, after line 3, insert: 

"The northern crops institute shall obtain and utilize at least $8,000,000 of 
federal and other funds for the northern crops institute project, and the funds must be 
committed and available to be spent before the industrial commission may issue 
bonds for the project. There is appropriated to the northern crops institute the sum of 
$8,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from federal or other funds 
that may become available for this project for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 2021." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment: 

Provides separate appropriation authority for the North Dakota State University 
agriculture products development center and Northern Crops Institute projects rather 
than providing one appropriation for both projects; 

Increases the bonding and appropriation authority for the Valley City State University 
communications and fine arts building project by $275,000, from $32,000,000 to 
$32,275,000; and 

• Requires federal and other funds to be available for the North Dakota State University 
agriculture projects development center and the Northern Crops Institute projects 
before the Industrial Commission may issue bonds for the projects. 
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Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 
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33523 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for capital projects of various state 
departments and institutions; to authorize the industrial commission to issue and 
sell evidences of indebtedness for capital projects; and to declare an emergency. 

 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments 1-12 

 
Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order, roll was taken. This is the bonding bill for 
buildings at the university system campuses.  
 
1:30 -10:30 Senator Wardner, District 37 Dickinson: (see attachment 1) Dunbar Hall; 
besides the safety issues in general, the chemistry lab had to move some of their projects 
out of the building because of safety issues. It was in the governor’s budget, he had it in so 
that we funded half of it and they raised money for the other half. 51.2 million.  
 
Ag Development Center & Northern Crops Institute; It’s on the campus but it really belongs 
to the Commodities, the farm community and the agriculture community of North Dakota. 
These are the facilities that people come to from all over the world to take a look at the quality 
products that we grow here in this state. 54 million and a 6-million-dollar match from the 
Commodity groups.  
 
Northern Crops Institute; 10 million bonding with an 8 million match from the Commodity 
groups. There is a partnership between North Dakota, South Dakota, Minnesota and 
Montana. This is attached to Harris Hall, if we move one we need to move the other.  
 
4:50 Chairman Delzer: That’s a 78 million dollar building? 
 
Senator Wardner: Yes, when you put in the bonding and the match money.  
 
Communication & Fine Arts Buildings; Valley City Stat University, it was built right on the 
banks of Sheyenne River and they built the flood protection on the wrong side of the building.   
32 million. 
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6:00 Pulvar Hall; Campus of Dickinson State University, we were supposed to get the 
Presidential Library, now we’re not, they still do the digitalization and they were planning on 
doing that in the new facility but now it’s gone. We need to remodel a building to do the 
digitization in do some other things in there as well.  
 
151.7 million that we would bond for and 14-million-dollar match, if we wait to do these 
projects the cost will only grow. 5 years of inflation would cost us more than 16 plus million 
and would be added on the cost of the same building project. We got used to paying cash 
and I like that but when I look at the needs for these buildings we need to bond. That building 
at Valley City State was projected to be 25 million at one time and it jump all the way to 41 
million and now they had to down size the project. We got used to paying cash but when I 
look at the needs for these buildings it’s the right thing to do, it’s cheaper and more cost 
efficient as we go forward.  
 
Chairman Delzer: You do see these as general obligation bonds? 
 
Senator Wardner: Yes.  
 
Representative Bellew:  If we approved all these, what would it cost the state each year for 
30 years?  
 
Senator Wardner: It would be 1.5 million per year for 30 years.  
 
11:00-16:00 Representative Howe, ND Grain Growers: Presented video,  
https://www.legis.nd.gov/downloads/bill-history-media-file/66-2019/sb2297/sb2297-happr-

03112019-attachment2.mp4  Attachment 2A  also passed out attachment 2. 
 
Representative Howe: There are tough times in agriculture today, many of those issues are 
out of our control. Other issues we have to take into account are the changing demands by 
our consumers. Whether it’s low carb, gluten free or the non GMO advocates, this ag product 
development center is one way we can react to that. I just want to encourage you to consider 
this bill, SB 2297.  
 
17:50-25:55 Greg Svenningsen, Vice- Chairman of the North Dakota Wheat 
Commission; (see attachment 3)  
 
26:20-27:30 Jeff Mertz, President of the North Dakota Grain Growers Association 
(NDGGA) (see attachment 4) We saw the video and it needs to be upgraded. Our 
competition, South Dakota State has a beautiful facility down there and we have to compete 
against that. It’s our future, NDSU may have 7 championships but we are falling behind here. 
We market 50% of our wheat to export market and to have a facility would be a great step in 
the direction for the future.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Do you know where this is on the university list for priorities? 
 
Mr. Mertz: I thought it was number 2, I am not sure.  
 

https://www.legis.nd.gov/downloads/bill-history-media-file/66-2019/sb2297/sb2297-happr-03112019-attachment2.mp4
https://www.legis.nd.gov/downloads/bill-history-media-file/66-2019/sb2297/sb2297-happr-03112019-attachment2.mp4
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28:10-29:00 William Ongstad, Farmer from Harvey, ND: I am in support of this bill. Wheat, 
barley and durum are our number 1 crop economically every year and we need this bill to 
enhance our sales of that.   
29:10-30:45 Alan D. LaFave, President of Valley City University: (see attachment 5) I 
am in support of SB 2297 including funding for the replacement of Foss Hall, which you have 
already heard is on the wrong side of the flood wall. In addition to that, this new facility would 
do a lot to enhance the mission of the program at Valley City State specifically in the fields 
of music. This is an area that we take great pride in preparing teacher for the future. There 
are several events throughout the year that brings thousands of high school students on our 
campus. We see this as a wonderful recruiting and growth opportunity. This year alone we 
are hosting 23 hundred high school students on our campus.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Nobody stays in that building? It’s just a classroom correct? Why is it a 
life safety?  
 
Mr. LaFave: It’s just the safety of the entire campus, the continued safety of the program. If 
that program was to go away, we would lose significant enrollment.   
 
Chairman Delzer: I believe the governor recommended just a remodel to another building? 
Why do you not find that expectable?  
 
Mr. LaFave: Because of space constraints in that particular facility, however we do believe 
that building could be renovated for other purposes on campus but not for the purpose of 
music. Previous experience tells me that the space needed for large music ensembles can’t 
be accommodated in the space that is available currently in McCarthy Hall.  
 
32:15 Representative Brandenburg: Students want to come a have competition and there 
isn’t room to do that. They have to restrict the number of students that can participate. I’ve 
been in this building and it is old.  
 
 Representative Meier: When was the last time the building took on water? 
 
Mr. LaFave: Spring of 2009. 
 
34:00 Dickinson State 
 
34:00-35:25 Laura Nelson, Interim President for Finance & Administration at Dickinson 
State University: (see attachment 6)  
 
Chairman Delzer: You’ve been working out of the basement for 10 years and you’ve done 
50 thousand? How many more do you expect to do?  If there was no funding, you would 
continue to do this in the basement?  
 
Mrs. Nelson: I will get that to you and yes we would continue to do that.  For the budget is 
was at 500 thousand so we would be requesting at least that.  
 
Chairman Delzer: How many students are in the TR Honors Program?  
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Mrs. Nelson: I will have to get that to you as well.  
 
36:35-40:40 DeAnna Carlson Zink, CEO of the UND Alumni Association & Foundation: 
I am here with Amy Henley, Dean of the UND College of Business & Public 
Administration. We are here in support of SB 2297 but we also have an amendment to the 
bill.  (see attachment 7) Have a letter from one of our strong donors, page 3 of attachment 
7.  
 
40:40 Chairman Delzer: How old is the building?  
 
Mrs. Carlson: 50 years. 
 
Chairman Delzer: Where is this building on the higher education building list?  
 
Mrs. Carlson: This was not on the list because this going to be a facility fundraised for with 
private dollars. The approval to fundraise was granted in the last biennium.  
 
 41:50 Representative Holman: Where would this be located on the campus?  
 
Mrs. Carlson: It is at the center of the quad on the corner. It’s the corner stone of the quad 
at UND, directly east of the current Gamble Hall.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Would you keep Gamble Hall or would tear it down?  Or would you come 
back for more money to remodel that? 
 
Mrs. Carlson: We would use that for overflow space for the university in general, flex space.  
 
Representative Meier: How long have you been working with this donor? 
 
Mrs. Carlson: We have been working this donor for over 5 years but within that last year he 
and his wife along with his business have gotten more serious about it.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Have you taken this to the board of high education? 
 
Mrs. Carlson: The board approved this last biennium as long as we could raise the money 
for it.  
 
Representative Beadle: This building is about 50 years old, when was the last time they did 
renovations to it?  
 
Mrs. Henley: I don’t believe there has been any renovations to the building. There’s been 
additions of stock trading room and such based on donor intent but so revisions to 
classrooms.  
  
Chairman Delzer: Is this an expansion of the current program?  
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Mrs. Henley: Yes, this is an expiation, we are currently at 1,800 students in the College of 
Business and Public Administration and our market demand suggests we could grow to at 
least 2,600 if we had the room.  
 
44:40 Representative Nathe: There was a discussion about keeping Gamble Hall?  
 
Mrs. Carlson: It will be torn down but it will be used as swing space until that time. Theirs is 
deferred maintenance in that building already of 19 million dollars.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Is part of 70 million part of the total to tear it down?  
 
Mrs. Carlson: Yes, it is included in there.  
 
46:30-48:05 David Clough, Farmer from Fessenden: (see attachment 8)  
 
48:20-50:50 Dwight Keller, President of Independent Beef Association: I am here to talk 
about the meats lab. I have spent 10-12 years on the North Dakota Ag Collation board and 
it has been on and off the priority list, I think it made it as far as 1 and I think it’s way overdue.  
It’s been remodeled several time but I graduated in 1980 the building was already old. Spent 
2 years in other colleges in graduate programs and it was the smallest and most outdated 
program then already. I’ve had 3 children that graduated from NDSU and have all worked in 
the meats lab so I have a pretty good feel of what goes on there. We have a really good 
scientist there right now and we need to get this up to date.  
 
51:20-57:05 Mason Rademacher, Executive Commissioner of the External Affairs on 
behalf of the NDSU Student Government: (see attachment 9)  
 
Representative Monson: In the second paragraph you said it has been on the list of capital 
project the last several biennia and the funding level has never been met to trigger the 
construction, what do you mean by that?    
 
Chairman Delzer: I believe two biennia ago we had it in there as a trigger of how high the 
ongoing revenue would be and the ongoing revenue didn’t come in high enough to trigger it.  
 
Representative Monson: Has there been any effort to find donors or to raise money? 
 
Mr. Rademacher: This building is a general education classroom as well as a research 
building so it would be hard to fundraise or find donors because there isn’t a specific major 
involved with it.  
 
58:44-1:00:00 Julie Ellingson, North Dakota Stockmen’s Association: (see attachment 
10) We also stand in support for SB 2297.  
 
1:00:15-1:01:30 Darrell Oswald, Vice Chairman of the North Dakota Ag Coalition: (see 
attachment 11)  
 
1:01:40-1:02:10 Mike Bells, Farmer Trail County: The meats lab would not pass 
inspection, it’s only kept open because the alternative is much worse. We wouldn’t have the 
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research and would get that job done. I understand you don’t like bonding up the alternative 
is worse. Thank you for your time.  
 
1:02:15-1:03:45 Neal Fisher, Administrator North Dakota Wheat Commission: We are 
facing losing some of these amazing scientist. We are about 1 deep in that area because we 
have lost positions and funding over the years. We had a university that sent out a job 
application that had everything but her picture for the job application, we did everything we 
could hold her, so far we are but much like the meat scientist we are at risk of losing these 
guys. We are making good progress fundraising; we aren’t there yet but we’re trying.  
 
Chairman Delzer: How would you feel if we took some of the research money out for this? 
 
Mr. Fisher: We wouldn’t welcome that, we have had some sever cuts in recent biennia, I 
think it’s already a difficult position. I think that would jeopardize te scientist we were just 
talking about.  
 
Chairman Delzer: If there’s no further testimony in favor of is there any opposition to SB 
2297? President Bresciani would you answer one question; do you have designs for any of 
the engineering costs of anything for Dunbar or the ag building since they would both be on 
NDSU campus?  
 
President Bresciani: Only the initial work that was necessary for the cost estimation.  
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close the hearing for SB 2297.  
 
Attachment 12 is written testimony that was passed out in favor of SB 2297.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for capital projects of various state 
departments and institutions; to authorize the industrial commission to issue and 
sell evidences of indebtedness for capital projects; and to declare an emergency. 

 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order, roll was taken. This is the bonding bill for 
buildings at the university system campuses.  
 
Representative Pollert: I brought amendments for SB 2297, this is a bonding bill. 
Amendment  02003 changes the bonding from 151 million down to 80 million. Section 1 and 
2 mean for NDSU and Valley City State would have to raise. If they don’t have that money 
raised before they start they will build to fit within the money they did raise.  
 
Gamble Hall at UND and I understand there is a lot of matching funds going on there.  
Basically what this is a total of 15 million total 6 of bonding and 9 million of cash.  They are  
trying to raise 55 million. 
 
That hall couldn’t be started until those dollars are available.  
 
Chairman Delzer: We currently are sitting around 9 million that we are paying in bonds 
now under again obligation bonds.  These are now general obligation bonds that fit within 
our limitation of bonding authority.  If it is 80 million that probably going to be somewhere  
between the essence 8 or 9 or 10 million additional bonding money so we are half of what 
we are allowed. I think we are allowed 47 million total.  The life of these bonds would be 
20 years. 
 
Representative Pollert: The general obligations bonds would be 9 and those would be 
paid off on declining balance, but this is going to somewhere around 8 or 9 million added 
on to the current todays 18 million.  I am in favor of a little bonding just not a lot of bonding. 
 
Chairman Delzer: This would require NDSU and VCSC to get going on their buildings. They 
wouldn’t have to raise the money they would just have to change their scope.  
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Representative Pollert: If you think there needs to be enhancements to make it better, I am 
in favor with that. In these amendments Harris Hall is not included in this amendment.  
 
Chairman Delzer: BSC and Harris Hall also was not on the list. The reason you are wanting 
to start this for BSC is because they are in the process of losing their nursing school lease 
and are currently doing some remodeling.  The cost of that would be in the neighborhood of 
400 thousand a year plus operation and this 8.9 million would allow BSC to buy the building 
and pay most of the remodeling cost which the foundation has borrowed. 
 
Representative Pollert: I think the second phase is 800 thousand.  We are talking about 
real health care. Health care shortages, the nursing and we understand that the program. 
 
Chairman Delzer: That does put a time frame on them.  If they don’t get that going, they 
Can still raise money, they just won’t have the 20 million. 
 
10:30 Representative Monson: We refer to this as Gamble Hall project and I understand 
that it is going to be here for a while so this is a business school eventually to replace Gamble 
Hall so is it proper to use the term Gamble Hall or should we be talking about a project?   
 
Chairman Delzer: I think you would call it the Gamble Hall project because they want to  
build this and tear down the old one. That is why you would call it the project. 
 
Representative Pollert: If the committee thinks that the rewording to make it appropriate, 
then change it. 
 
Representative Bellew: Could we get a list of what we are currently bonding for and what 
our limitations are? 
 
Chairman Delzer:  Our limitations are right around 47 million.  We are currently 
at 9 million.  In the short future it goes down to around 6 million.  Depending what the 
interest rate is it would be somewhere between 8 and 10 million. 
 
Representative Pollert: I did have a list of what our historic level of what bonding’s been.  
Of course, we paid a lot of cash out when times were good and so that bonding has 
Been dropping down.  I thought we were in the 24 or 25 at the very top. 
 
Chairman Delzer:  I remember when we were sitting right at our limit and it was somewhere 
in the low 20’s. 
 
Representative Howe: The 11.2 million dollars for Dunbar Hall, how did you come up with 
that figure? 
 
Representative Pollert:  I looked at 40 million and liked it, I think NDSU has more 
possibilities to raise that money. 
 
Representative Howe: It’s really difficult to raise funds for a general education chemistry 
building in the middle of campus which is a cerebral part of any university.  That 11.2 million, 
I can tell you right now they will not be able to raise that.  They have told previous legislations 
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that. 
 
Chairman Delzer: I think that’s why we are saying they can change the scope of the building 
then needs to lowered.  My understanding is that they want to build a building that is 2 to  
2 1/2 times as big as the current one and that’s fine, but this is the number that definitely 
gives them enough so that they could build a building in all likely hood would do the current 
needs.  
 
Representative Pollert:  I had looked at its size and talked to NDSU personnel and I think 
they went from 6 floors down to 4 and they downsized to get to the 51 million.  I also had a 
conversation with the president of VCSU saying do you really need 32 million and they went 
from 4 floors down to 3 floors.  Everybody has downsized to get to these figures.    
 
16:20 Representative Howe: I am very disappointed that Harris Hall isn’t in this project, I 
can’t believe we are putting 30 million into a music building and not into an ag building. I have 
to disagree. 
 
Representative Pollert:  At some point in time, we do have to look at priority list that is set 
for higher education.  The higher education right now has VCSU at number 1 and Dunbar 
Hall as number 2.  I did have conversations with the NDSU folks, what’s more important  
Dunbar Hall or Harris Hall?  The discussion to me was Dunbar and that is what I brought 
forward. Had they told me Harris, that would have been in here instead. 
 
Chairman Delzer: If we would have bonded everything that came over from the senate we 
would be really close to our max. if we adopt this amendment I would think this will be a point 
of discussion in conference committee.  
 
Representative J. Nelson:  When you looked at the Harris Hall project, did you vet that like 
you did the other ones as far as what the total cost. I think that was around 60 million dollars.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I think it’s 68 million and they have raised 6 from one and 8 from another 
and a 14 total. 
 
Representative J. Nelson: So we are looking at over 50 million dollars.  Agriculture in still 
the number industry in this state and research is important to make a profit is to have more 
bushels, because we don’t control price. That is the value of research.  Is there at least a  
commitment to the agriculture community that the state of North Dakota understands first 
of all that we’ve given to energy and that is very valuable, but agriculture is state wide for one 
thing. 
  
Representative Pollert: When I look at the total picture of the state of North Dakota, I 
struggle with this as well.  If I would be in my old chair of the HR section, I would be probably 
pushing Harris Hall, but I am not anymore.  When talking to NDSU, they say Dunbar is on 
the priority list. 
 
Chairman Delzer: We have to recognize how much we are spending on ag research.  
 
Representative Kempenich: I am thinking maybe we should have some intent language.  
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24:00 Representative Schobinger: On the original bill on line 19 we refer to the NDSU 
agriculture products development center, is that Harris Hall? 
 
Chairman Delzer: That is Harris Hall. 
 
Representative Pollert: They do bring us a list but Harris Hall is number 12 of a list of 10, 
same as Gamble Hall project.  We do have some guidelines that we have to go by, 
 
Representative Schobinger: Page 1 line 20 is that going away? 
 
Representative Pollert: When the discussion first started it was just Harris Hall and then  
it ballooned into three different projects since they were ag related. 
 
Chairman Delzer:  None of the discussion has talked about what is going to happen to 
those existing buildings.  
 
Representative Schobinger: So the Northern crops institute project carry forward into 
the amendments? 
 
Chairman Delzer: That would be part of the Harris Hall discussion.  What they were going 
to do is put them all together and bill it as one facility and handle all three projects in one.  
 
Representative Howe: I think there is a bigger problem if our higher education lists a music  
building as the number one priority.   
 
Chairman Delzer: Thank you Representative Pollert, we will close this meeting.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for capital projects of various state 
departments and institutions; to authorize the industrial commission to issue and 

sell evidences of indebtedness for capital projects; to provide an exemption; and to 
declare an emergency. 

 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order for SB 2297, we have amendment 
19.1021.02003. It changes the Dunbar Hall to 40 million bonding, they can raise 11.2 million. 
It says they should build starting on July 1 of 2020 to match the cash available for the project 
at the time. Valley City is the same way, it goes to 30 million of bonding with that same 
stipulation and there is also bonding in there for 6 million for Gamble Hall at the University 
but I think they have to raise the whole amount before they get that 6 million but there is 9 
million of cash available and there is 4 million of bonding for Pulver Hall in Dickinson and the 
cash would be 8.9 million for Bismarck for the nursing building, roughly 6.2 to buy the building 
and 2.7 to finish the remodel of the phase one. We are also giving a million dollars to 
Bottineau to finish up their projects and Lake Region has a precision ag project that’s close 
to 4 million dollars and they think they need a million to get it done.  
 
Representative Monson: Move to Adopt amendment 19.1021.02003 
 
 Representative Vigesaa: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: I would think that Harris Hall is going to be a point of discussion. 
 
Representative Kempenich: I would have a hard time supporting this otherwise.  
 
Representative Howe: I really do hope that in conference committee and the matching funds 
for Dunbar Hall is also addressed in that conversation.  
 
Chairman Delzer: A concern is how much bonding authority we have, anything that is 
bonded here is general obligation bonds. We don’t want to use up too much of it in case 
something happens and we have to bond for something.  
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Representative Sanford: When we dealt with the higher ed budget there was a component 
in there that dealt with helping them build a building fund, so that they could plan ahead and 
actually have skin in the game when it came time to ask for a project. I hope that in the future 
these institutes will know that they are going to have a match in the game. I think we should 
define what the match is and I heard 25% for example as a target. I they had that and they 
came to the legislature you would know that the planning would have involved realization 
that they had to pay a component of it. When you look at the list of projects here Bottineau 
has a science hall that they have started a project on and they can now distribute air to the 
hallways but it doesn’t get into the classrooms, the dining hall is going to be revenue bond 
that they will use, point being they are bringing something to the table. Lake Region is 
bringing 75% of the cost of the project. In good time we paid cash for two buildings in bad 
times we bonded for two buildings and then everything else piled up. For the same amount 
of money, we would have bonded for we are going to do 10 or 12 projects with these new 
changes.  
 
Chairman Delzer: This is the biggest we have bonded for a number of years, that why we 
wanted to do cash as much as we could.  
 
 Representative Holman: I am disappointed that Harris Hall is taken off this list. 
 
Chairman Delzer: I think part of the problem is actually where it is at on the priority list.  It’s 
important to NDSU but overall it’s not high on the higher ed list. Maybe if they can come up 
with a better commitment. Further discussion on the motion to amend? Seeing none. Voice 
vote, All in Favor, Motion Carries.  
 
 Representative Vigesaa: I will make a Motion for a Do Pass as Amended 
 
Representative Monson: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: We have a motion for a Do Pass as Amended, any further discussion on 
the motion? I personally have a problem with the bonding portion of it, I think we should be 
trying to do these with cash. Also recognize how long we have been working on Dunbar and 
Valley City.  Seeing none we will call the roll. 
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:     15         Nay:      3       Absent:   3 
 
 Representative Vigesaa will carry the bill.  
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close this meeting.  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2297 

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to provide an exemption;" 

Page 1, line 5, replace "The" with "Subject to the provisions of this section, the" 

Page 1, remove lines 17 through 24 

Page 2, replace lines 1 through 11 with: 

"North Dakota state university Dunbar Hall $40,000,000 
30,000,000 

6,000,000 
4,000,000 

$80,000,000 

Valley City state university communications and fine arts building project 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hall project 
Dickinson state university Pulver Hall 
Total 

1. North Dakota state university may obtain and utilize local funds obtained 
from fundraising or other sources for the Dunbar Hall project. There is 
appropriated to North Dakota state university the sum of $11,200,000, or 
so much of the sum as may be necessary, from any local or other funds 
that may become available for this project for the period beginning with the 
effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2021. North Dakota state 
university shall commence construction on the Dunbar Hall project before 
July 1, 2020. North Dakota state university shall adjust the scope of the 
project as necessary to match the amount of cash available for the project 
on the date construction commences. 

2. Valley City state university may obtain and utilize local funds obtained from 
fund raising or other sources for the communications and fine arts building 
project. There is appropriated to Valley City state university the sum of 
$2,275,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from any local or 
other funds that may become available for this project for the period 
beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2021. 
Valley City state university must commence construction on the 
communications and fine arts building project before July 1, 2020. Valley 
City state university shall adjust the scope of the project as necessary to 
match the amount of cash available for the project on the date construction 
commences. 

3. a. The university of North Dakota may obtain and utilize local funds 
obtained from fundraising or other sources for the Gamble Hall 
project. There is appropriated to the university of North Dakota the 
sum of $55,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, 
from any local or other funds that may become available for this 
project for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and 
ending June 30, 2021. 

b. The industrial commission may issue evidences of indebtedness for 
the Gamble Hall project only if the university of North Dakota certifies 
to the industrial commission and the director of the office of 
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management and budget that $55,000,000 of local and other nonstate 
funds has been obtained for the project. 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION - CAPITAL PROJECTS - EXEMPTION. 
Subject to the provisions of this section, the funds provided in this section, or so much 

of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the general 
fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, to the following institutions for 
the identified capital projects, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act 
and ending June 30, 2019, as follows: 

Bismarck state college nursing building 
Dakota college at Bottineau dining hall and other projects 
Lake region state college precision agriculture project 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hall project 
Total general fund 

$8,900,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 
9,000,000 

$19,900,000 

Section 54-44.1-11 does not apply to the funding in this section and any funds 
not spent by June 30, 2019, may be continued into the biennium beginning July 1, 
2019, and ending June 30, 2021. The appropriation for the Gamble Hall project must 
be continued into the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021, and 
is available only if the university of North Dakota certifies to the director of the office of 
management and budget that $55,000,000 of local and other nonstate funds has been 
obtained for the project." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Summary of House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

University of North Dakota 
Total all funds $0 $0 $61,000,000 
Less estimated income 0 0 61,000,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

North Dakota State University 
Total all funds $0 $111,200,000 ($60,000,000) 
Less estimated income 0 111,200,000 (60,000,000' 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Dickinson State University 
Total all funds $0 $4,500,000 ($500,000) 
Less estimated income 0 4,500,000 (500,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Valley City State University 
Total all funds $0 $32,275,000 $0 
Less estimated income 0 32,275,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Northern Crops Institute 
Total all funds $0 $18,000,000 ($18,000,000) 
Less estimated income 0 18,000,000 (18,000,000' 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

Page No. 2 

House 
Version 

$61,000,000 
61,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

$51,200,000 
51,200,000 

$0 

0.00 

$4,000,000 
4,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

$32,275,000 
32,275,000 

$0 

0.00 

$0 
0 

$0 

19.1021.02003 
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FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Bill total 
Total all funds $0 $165,975,000 ($17,500,000) 
Less estimated income 0 165,975,000 (17,500,000' 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - University of North Dakota - House Action 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Changes 

$61,000 000 

$61,000,000 
61,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

0.00 

$148,475,000 
148,475,000 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$61,000,000 

$61,000,000 
61,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Department 230 - University of North Dakota - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adds Funding 
for Gamble 
Hall Project1 

$61,000,000 

$61,000,000 
61,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

$61 000 000 

$61,000,000 
61,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

1 Special fund authority of $61,000,000 is added for the Gamble Hall project from bond proceeds ($6,000,000) and 
from funds obtained from fundraising and other local sources ($55,000,000). A 2017-19 biennium general fund 
appropriation of $9,000,000 is also provided for the project for a total project cost of $70,000,000. The bonding 
authority and general fund appropriation for the project are available only if the University of North Dakota certifies to 
the Industrial Commission and Office of Management and Budget that $55,000,000 of local and other nonstate funds 
has been obtained for the project. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - North Dakota State University - House Action 

Base Senate 
Budget Version 

Capital assets $111,200,000 

Total all funds $0 $111,200,000 
Less estimated income 0 111,200,000 
General fund $0 $0 

House 
Changes 

($60 000 000) 

($60,000,000) 
(60,000 000 

$0 

House 
Version 

$51,200,000 

$51,200,000 
51,200,000 

$0 

0.00 

Department 235 - North Dakota State University - Detail of House Changes 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Capital 
Projects1 

($60,000,000) 

($60,000,000) 
(60,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($60,000 000) 

($60,000,000) 
(60,000,000l 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding added by the Senate for the Dunbar Hall project is adjusted as follows: 
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Bonding 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$51,200,000 

Q 
$51,200,000 

House 
$40,000,000 

11,200.000 
$51,200,000 

uf ftflr 
y t)f- _( Difference 

($11,200,000) 
11,200,000 

$0 

T his amendment also removes $60 million of funding from bond proceeds and other funds added by the Senate for 
the Agriculture Products Development Center project. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Dickinson State University - House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Capital assets $4,500,000 ($500,000' 

Total all funds $0 $4,500,000 ($500,000) 
Less estimated income 0 4,500,000 /500,000l 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

House 
Version 

$4,000,000 

$4,000,000 
4,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Department 239 - Dickinson State University - Detail of House Changes 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 
Pulver Hall 

Project1 

($500,000) 

($500,000) 
(500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($500,000 

($500,000) 
(500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding from bond proceeds added by the Senate for the Pulver Hall project is reduced from $4,500,000 to 
$4,000,000. 

Department 242 - Valley City State University - Detail of House Changes 

Adjusts Funding 
for 

Communications 
and Fine Arts 

Building Project1 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding added by the Senate for the Communications and Fine Arts Building project is adjusted as follows: 

Bonding 
Other funds 
Total 

Page No. 4 

Senate 
$32,275,000 

Q 
$32,275,000 

House 
$30,000,000 

2,275,000 
$32,275,000 

Difference 
($2,275,000) 

2,275.000 
$0 
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Senate Bill No. 2297 - Northern Crops Institute - House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Capital assets $18,000,000 ($18,000 000' 

Total all funds $0 $18,000,000 ($18,000,000) 
Less estimated income 0 18,000,000 (18 000 000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

House 
Version 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Department 638 - Northern Crops Institute - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Removes 
Funding for 

Building 
Project1 

($18,000,000) 

($18,000,000) 
(18,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($18,000,000' 

($18,000,000) 
(18,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding added by the Senate from bond proceeds and other funds for the Northern Crops Institute building project 
is removed. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Other Changes - House Action 

This amendment also provides a 2017-19 biennium general fund appropriation of $19.9 million for the following 
projects: 
Bismarck State College nursing building 
Dakota College at Bottineau dining hall and other 

projects 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hall project 
Lake Region State College precision agriculture 

project 
Total general fund 

$8,900,000 

1,000,000 
9,000,000 

1,000.000 
$19,900,000 

Provisions are also added to allow the institutions to continue any unexpended general fund appropriations for the 
projects into the 2019-21 biennium. 
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Date: 4/8/2019 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2297 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 19.1021.02003 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: IZI Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative Monson Seconded By Representative Vigesaa -�------------ --��----------

Representatives Yes No 
Cha i rman Delzer 
Representative Kempen ich 
Representative Anderson 
Representative Bead le 
Representative Bel lew 
Representative BrandenburQ 
Representative Howe 
Representative Kreidt 

Representative Marti nson 
Representative Meier 

Representative Monson 
Representative Nathe 
Representative J .  Nelson 

Representative Sanford 
Representative Schatz 
Representative Schm idt 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) -----------

Floor Assignment 

Representatives 

Representative Schob inger 
Representative Vigesaa 

Representative Boe 
Representative Ho lman 
Representative Mock 

No 

Voice Vote/Motion Carries 

Yes No 



Date: 4/8/2019 
Roll Call Vote #: 2 

House Appropriations 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2297 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: O Adopt Amendment 

� Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

� As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By Representative Vigesaa Seconded By Representative Monson __ ,___ ____ __..______ -----'----------

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chai rman Delzer X 
Representative Kempen ich X 
Representative Anderson X Representative Schob inger 
Representative Bead le A Representative Vigesaa 
Representative Bel lew A 
Representative Brandenburg X 
Representative Howe X Representative Boe 
Representative Kreidt X Representative Ho lman 

Representative Mart inson X Representative Mock 
Representative Meier X 

Representative Monson X 
Representative Nathe X 
Representative J .  Ne lson X 

Representative Sanford X 
Representative Schatz X 
Representative Schm idt X 

Total 15 No 3 

Yes No 

X 
X 

X 
X 

A 

(Yes) ----------- ---------------
Absent 3 ------------------------------
Floor Assignment Representative Vigesaa 
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Module ID: h_stcomrep_62_008 
Carrier: Vigesaa 

Insert LC: 19.1021.02003 Title : 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2297, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended ,  recommends 
DO PASS ( 1 5 YEAS , 3 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AN D NOT VOTI NG) .  Engrossed SB 2297 
was placed on the S ixth order on the ca lendar. 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 3 ,  after the semicolon i nsert "to provide an exemption ; "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne  5 ,  replace "The" with "Subject to the provis ions o f  th is section , the" 

Page 1 ,  remove l i nes 1 7  throug h 24 

Page 2, replace l i nes 1 through 1 1  with : 

"North Dakota state u n ivers ity Dunbar Ha l l  $40 , 000 ,000 
30 , 000 ,000 

6 , 000 ,000 
4,000,000 

$80 , 000 , 000 

Valley City state un ivers ity commun icat ions and fine arts bu i l d i ng  project 
U n iversity of North Dakota Gamble Ha l l  project 
Dickinson state un ivers ity Pu lver Ha l l  
Total 

1 .  North Dakota state u n iversity may obta in  and ut i l ize loca l fu nds obta ined 
from fu nd ra is ing or  other sou rces for the Dunbar Ha l l  project. There is 
appropriated to North Dakota state un ivers ity the sum of $ 1 1 , 200 , 000 ,  or 
so much of the sum as may be necessary, from any local or  other fu nds 
that may become ava i lab le for th is project for the period beg i n n ing  with 
the effective date of th is Act and end ing J u ne 30, 202 1 . North Dakota 
state un iversity sha l l  commence construction on the Dunbar  Ha l l  project 
before Ju ly  1 ,  2020 .  North Dakota state u n ivers ity sha l l  adj ust the scope 
of the project as necessary to match the amount of cash ava i lab le for the 
project on the date construction commences. 

2 .  Val ley City state u n iversity may obta in and ut i l ize local funds obta ined 
from fu nd ra is ing or  other  sou rces for the commun ications and fi ne arts 
bu i ld ing project. There is appropriated to Val ley C ity state u n ivers ity the 
sum of $2 , 275, 000 ,  or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from 
any local or other  funds that may become ava i lab le for th is  project for the 
period beg i nn ing with the effective date of th is Act and end ing  June  30 ,  
202 1 . Val ley City state un ivers ity must commence construct ion on  the 
commun ications and fi ne arts bu i ld ing project before J u ly 1 ,  2020 .  Val ley 
City state u n iversity sha l l  adjust the scope of the project as necessary to 
match the amount of cash ava i lab le for the project on the date 
construction commences . 

3 .  a .  The un ivers ity of  North Dakota may obta in  and ut i l ize local fu nds 
obta ined from fund ra is ing or other sou rces for the Gamble Ha l l  
project. There is appropriated to the un iversity of North Dakota the 
sum of $55 , 000 , 000 , or so much of the sum as may be necessary, 
from any local or other funds that may become ava i lab le for th is 
project for the period beg i nn i ng  with the effective date of th is Act and 
ending June 30 ,  202 1 . 

b .  The  industria l  commission may issue evidences of  indebtedness for 
the Gamble Ha l l  project on ly if the u n iversity of North Dakota certifies 
to the industr ial comm ission and the d i rector of the office of 
management and budget that $55 , 000 , 000 of local and other 
nonstate funds has been obta ined for the project . 

SECT ION 2. APPROPRIATION - CAPITAL PROJECTS - EXEMPT ION. 
Subject to the provis ions of th is section ,  the funds provided in th is  section ,  or so 
much of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the 
genera l  fu nd in the state treasu ry, not otherwise appropriated , to the fo l lowing 
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i nstitut ions for the identified capita l  projects , for the period beg i n n i ng  with the 
effective date of th is Act and end ing  June 30 ,  20 1 9 , as fol lows: 

B ismarck state col lege nu rs ing bu i l d i ng  
Dakota col lege at  Botti neau d i n ing ha l l  and other projects 
Lake reg ion state col lege precis ion ag ricu lture project 
U n iversity of North Dakota Gamble Ha l l  project 
Total genera l  fund 

$8 ,900 , 000 
1 , 000 , 000 
1 , 000 , 000 
9,000,000 

$ 1 9 , 900 , 000 

Section 54-44 . 1 - 1 1  does not apply to the fund i ng  i n  th is  sect ion and any 
funds not spent by June  30,  20 1 9 , may be conti n ued i n to the b ienn i um  beg i n n i ng  
Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 ,  and  end ing June 30 ,  202 1 . The appropriat ion for the Gamble Ha l l  
project must be cont in ued i n to the b ienn i um beg i n n i ng J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 ,  and end ing  J une 
30 ,  202 1 , and is ava i lable only if the u n iversity of North Dakota certif ies to the 
d i rector of the office of management and budget that $55 , 000 , 000 of local and other 
nonstate funds has been obta ined for the project . "  

Renumber accord ing ly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Summary of House Action 

University of North Dakota 
Total al l funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

North Dakota State University 
Total al l funds 
Less estimated i ncome 
General fund 

FTE 

Dickinson State University 
Total al l funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Valley City State University 
Total all funds 
Less estimated i ncome 
General fund 

FTE 

Northern Crops I nstitute 
Total all funds 
Less estimated i ncome 
General fund 

FTE 

Bil l total 
Total al l funds 
Less estimated i ncome 
General fund 

FTE 

( 1 ) DESK (3) COMMITTEE 

Base 
Budget 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

Page 2 

Senate 
Version 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

$1 1 1 ,200,000 
1 1 1 ,200,000 

$0 

0 00 

$4, 500,000 
4, 500,000 

$0 

0.00 

$32,275,000 
32 275,000 

$0 

0.00 

$ 1 8,000,000 
1 8 , 000,000 

$0 

0 00 

$ 1 65,975,000 
1 65,975,000 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Changes 

$6 1 ,000,000 
6 1 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

($60 ,000,000) 
{60,000,000) 

$0 

0 .00 

($500,000) 
{500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

($ 1 8, 000,000) 
{ 1 8,000, 000) 

$0 

0.00 

($ 1 7, 500,000) 
{ 1 7,500,000) 

$0 

0 .00 

House 
Version 

$61 ,000,000 
6 1 , 000,000 

$0 

0.00 

$51 ,200,000 
5 1 , 200,000 

$0 

0.00 

$4,000,000 
4,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

$32,275,000 
32,275,000 

$0 

0.00 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

$ 1 48,475,000 
1 48,475,000 

$0 

0.00 
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Senate Bill No. 2297 - University of North Dakota - House Action 

Capital assets 

Total al l funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

Senate 
Version 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Changes 

$6 1 ,000,000 

$6 1 ,000,000 
6 1 , 000,000 

$0 

0 .00 

Department 230 - University of North Dakota - Detail of House Changes 

House 
Version 

$61 ,000,000 

$6 1 ,000,000 
6 1 , 000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Adds Funding for Gamble Hall 
Projectl Total House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total al l funds 
Less estimated i ncome 
General fund 

FTE 

$6 1 ,000,000 

$6 1 ,000,000 
6 1 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

$6 1 ,000,000 

$6 1 ,000,000 
6 1 , 000,000 

$0 

0.00 

1 Special fund authority of $6 1 , 000 , 000 is  added for the Gamble Ha l l  project from bond 
proceeds ($6 , 000 , 000) and from funds obta i ned from fundra is ing and other  loca l sou rces 
($55 , 000 , 000) .  A 201 7-1 9 b ienn i um genera l  fund appropriat ion of $9 ,000 , 000 is  also 
prov ided for the project for a total project cost of $70 ,000 , 000 .  The bond i ng  authori ty and 
genera l  fu nd appropriation for the project are ava i lab le on ly  if the U n ivers i ty of North Dakota 
certifies to the I ndustria l  Commission and Office of Management and Budget that 
$55 ,000 , 000 of loca l and other nonstate funds has been obta ined for the project. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - North Dakota State University - House Action 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$ 1 1 1 ,200, 000 

$ 1 1 1 ,200,000 
1 1 1 ,200,000 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Changes 

($60,000,000) 

($60,000,000) 
(60,000 000) 

$0 

0.00 

Department 235 - North Dakota State University - Detail of House Changes 

House 
Version 

$5 1 , 200,000 

$5 1 , 200,000 
5 1 , 200,000 

$0 

0.00 

Adjusts Funding for Capital 
Projects1 

($60 ,000,000) 
Total House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total al l funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

($60,000,000) 
(60,000,000) 

$0 

0 .00 

($60,000,0001 

($60 ,000,000) 
(60,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing  added by the Senate for the Dunbar Ha l l  project is adjusted as fo l lows : 

Bonding 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$51 ,200 ,000 

Q 
$51 ,200 , 000 

House 
$40, 000 ,000 

1 1  200 000 
$5 1 , 200 , 000 

Difference 
($ 1 1 ,200 , 000) 

11 200,000 
$0 

Th is amendment a lso removes $60 m i l l ion of fu nd ing from bond proceeds and other fu nds 
added by the Senate for the Ag ricu ltu re Prod ucts Development Center project. 
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Senate Bill No. 2297 - Dickinson State University - House Action 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated i ncome 
General fund 

FTE 

Base 
Budget 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Senate 
Version 

$4,500 000 

$4,500,000 
4, 500,000 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Changes 

($500,000) 

($500,000) 
(500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$4,000,000 

$4,000,000 
4,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Department 239 - Dickinson State University - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated i ncome 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts Funding for Pu lver Hall 
Project1 

($500,000) 

($500,000) 
(500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House Changes 
/$500,000l 

($500, 000) 
(500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing  from bond proceeds added by the Senate for the Pu lver Ha l l  project is reduced 
from $4 , 500 , 000 to $4 , 000, 000. 

Department 242 - Valley City State University - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts Funding for Communications 
and Fine Arts Building Project1 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

Total House Changes 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing  added by the Senate for the Commun ications and F ine  Arts Bu i l d i ng  project is 
adjusted as fo l lows: 

Bonding 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$32 ,275 ,000 

Q 
$32,275 , 000 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Northern Crops Institute - House Action 

Base Senate 

House 
$30 , 000,000 

2,275,000 
$32 ,275 ,000 

House 

Difference 
($2, 275 , 000) 

2,275,000 
$0 

Budget Version Changes 
House 

Version 
Capital assets 

Total al l funds $0 
Less estimated i ncome 0 
General fund $0 

FTE 0 .00 

$ 1 8,000,000 

$ 1 8,000,000 
18 , 000,000 

$0 

0.00 

($ 1 8 , 000,000) 

($ 1 8, 000,000) 
( 1 8,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Department 638 - Northern Crops Institute - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total al l funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

( 1 ) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 4 

Removes Funding for Bui lding 
Project1 

($18 , 000,000) 

($ 18 ,000,000) 
(1 8,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House Changes 
($ 1 8,000,000) 

($ 1 8,000,000) 
/ 1 8,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 
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1 Fund ing added by the Senate from bond proceeds and other fu nds for the Northern Crops 
I n stitute bu i ld i ng  project is  removed . 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Other Changes - House Action 

This amendment also provides a 20 1 7-1 9 b ienn i um genera l  fu nd appropriat ion of 
$ 1 9 . 9  m i l l ion for the fol lowing projects : 
Bismarck State Col lege nursing bui ld ing 
Dakota Col lege at Bottineau d in ing hal l  and other 

projects 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hal l  project 
Lake Region State College precision agriculture project 
Total genera l  fund 

$8 ,900, 000 

1 , 000,000 
9 , 000,000 
1 000 000 

$ 1 9 ,900, 000 

Provis ions are a lso added to a l low the i nstitutions to continue  any unexpended genera l  fu nd 
appropriations for the projects i nto the 201 9-2 1 b ien n i um .  
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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2297 
4/19/2019 

Job # 34860 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☒ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Rose Laning  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for capital projects of various state 
departments and institutions; to authorize the industrial commission to issue and sell 

evidences of indebtedness for capital projects; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony # 1 - 2 

 
Legislative Council: Brady Larson  
OMB: Renae Bloms  
 
Conferees: 
Senator Sorvaag, Senator Holmberg, Senator Robinson 
Representative B. Anderson, Representative Meier, Representative Holman 
 
Brady Larson handed out the Statement of Purpose of Amendment – attached # 1.  
  
Senator Sorvaag called the conference committee to order on SB 2297 and asked the 
House to explain their changes to the bill.   
 
Representative Vigesaa:  (Working off the 19.1021.02003 version of the bill – attached # 2)   
 
Provided $80M bonding authority:  
$40M for Dunbar Hall (NDSU) 
$30M for Valley City State University  
$6M for Gamble Hall (UND) 
$4M for Pulver Hall (Dickinson) 
 
$19.9M of this biennium general funds:  
$8.9M to Bismarck State College of Nursing 
$1M to Dakota College of Bottineau 
$1M to Lake Region  
$9M to Gamble Hall 
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(4:33) Representative Vigesaa: That is the House’s position and going away from the 
original version which was about $151 or $152M.  We were concerned about the amount of 
bonding that we’re authorizing during this session.  We wanted to be cognizant of how much 
we’re going out with bonds. In addition, the other project identified was Harris Hall and the 
related Ag projects with that.  We know that was quite a ways down on the priority list, I think 
#12 on the University System’s list.  At this time, at least in House version, that was not 
committed to.  
 
Senator Sorvaag:  Let’s deal with Harris – it was down the list a ways, but you also included 
some things that were not on the list at all.  Except for Dunbar and Valley City, the list wasn’t 
paid that much attention to on any of these decisions. In Harris, was it taken into 
consideration that they had capabilities of raising a lot of funds there because of the nature 
of the building. I know there was $6M they had to raise but was that part of the discussion or 
just dropped because it was #12? 
 
Representative Vigesaa:  Maybe those who serve on the EE section could speak to that 
more clearly because I’m not on the higher ed budget.   
 
Representative Sanford: I think what happened was that an amendment was brought to full 
committee.  This was not heard or really worked with in EE.  It was brought to the full 
committee by the majority leader so the version that came here, the hearing was actually in 
the full committee so there wasn’t real detailed work done.   
 
Senator Sorvaag:  The other two are the same.  In the Dunbar and the Valley City 
discussions, was it discussed that they are straight classrooms and the difficulty of raising 
funds?   We can use examples of Sudro Hall at NDSU, they paid 100% because industry 
would step up.  We know that the ability to raise at Valley City is much smaller.  Was that 
part of the discussion – the difficulty of raising funds or was the intent that the building should 
be different?  
 
Representative Sanford:  Actually, the bill was not in E&E at all. The subcommittee never 
dealt with the issue at all because it was on a separate bill and that bill came to the full 
committee.  
 
Senator Sorvaag: any other questions from committee?  There’s a big picture when you 
come into bonding.  We’re not going to settle anything today.  
 
Representative Vigesaa:  I might elaborate on the $1M projects that are there.  The situation 
in Bottineau, it’s with regard to a dining center as well as some of their heating system.  Their 
current dining center is not ADA accessible, has significant needs.  This will relocate the 
dining center with the existing student center and then there’s a backup boiler needed. These 
are some critical areas where the House thought a million dollars would really help them.  It’s 
going to be used in combination with a $2.5M revenue bonds.   They’re going to be repaid 
with the dining revenues.  
With regard to the building in Devils Lake – their current building that they are utilizing for 
their precision ag department.  It’s in very difficult shape. There’s actually infestation of 
rodents there and the existing facility is being rented, so they’d like to construct a new building 
for that program.   Precision ag is getting to be a very big thing in the industry. They have a 
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million dollars pledged so far for the project.  The building is becoming unusable. There was 
discussion at some point about those needs.   
 
Senator Sorvaag:  That’s why lists are used, but they’re not an end all.  We’ve all been in a 
positions of planning and lists are a guideline, but doesn’t necessarily mean it has to be in 
that order.    
 
Representative Vigesaa:   The House certainly realizes that Harris is in discussion.  
 
Representative Sanford:  One other thing about Bottineau, they have a science building 
that they started the project and ran out of money so part of this money would also be used 
to finish that project which is now 3 years old.   
I want to call your attention to the word “obtained” in the information relative to raising local 
funds.  I visited with Karlene Fine and Joe Morrissette because those are two agencies that 
you would certify to that you “obtained” it.  The common understanding or definition of 
“obtained” is that you have cash in hand or pledged to the full amount.  They wanted that in 
the minutes or on the record.   
 
Senator Sorvaag:  In our original bill for Harris, which included the Northern Crops Institute, 
in both those situations that language was also put in – that the bonds couldn’t be sold until 
the money was raised.  This is the cash part that we’re talking about.  They either have to 
have the cash or something that certifies that the cash is coming.   
  
Hearing adjourned.  



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2297 
4/23/2019 

Job # 34944 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☒ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Rose Laning  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for capital projects of various state 
departments and institutions; to authorize the industrial commission to issue and sell 

evidences of indebtedness for capital projects; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Amendment 19.1021.02005 

 
Legislative Council: Brady Larson  
OMB: Renae Bloms  
 
Conferees: 
Senator Sorvaag, Senator Holmberg, Senator Robinson 
Representative B. Anderson, Representative Meier, Representative Holman 
 
Senator Sorvaag called the conference committee to order on SB 2297.  We’ve only met 
once but obviously a lot of work has been happening.  We have a set of amendments before 
us.  
  
Senator Holmberg handed out amendment 19.1021.02005.  The amendments reflect the 
discussions held at various levels over the past few days to make some wise investments in 
some very needed infrastructure at campus’ around the state.  Certainly a focus on 
agriculture and a focus on other buildings including some that were at the top of the university 
systems priority list.   
 
NDSU Dunbar Hall, Valley City State University fine arts building (Foss building), UND 
Gamble Hall project and Dickinson State University Pulver Hall are all part of $100M bonding 
section in this bill.  The legislature in this area has not bonded since 2005.  In these times, it 
was felt that this was a very good way to proceed on some buildings, some of which are quite 
expensive.   
 
(Walked through the amendment) 
 
Dunbar Hall project - 
$20M for agriculture products development center – Harris Hall.  Harris is 20-20-20. $20M 
bonding, $20M cash, $20M money that needs to be raised.   
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Northern Crops Institute (section 3) authorized to begin fund raising efforts for the building 
project.  
Gamble Hall (UND) – provides money for bonding and cash. The university is required to 
raise $55M on its own in order to complete that project.  
 
On page two of the amendment, Bismarck State College Nursing building - $.9M 
Dakota College at Bottineau – new dining hall and other projects - $ 1M 
Lake Region precision agriculture project - $1M 
NDSU Harris Hall - $20M cash 
NDSU Dunbar Hall - $8M cash 
UND Gamble Hall - $9M cash and $6M bonding 
Valley City fine arts building - $2M  (Foss Hall is on the wrong side of the dike, that’s been a 
high priority for this legislature.)  The legislature had passed authorization for building Dunbar 
Hall two sessions ago and also Foss Hall.  They were triggered and the triggers did not go 
off.  
$100M bonding and $49,900,000 cash of general fund money.  
 
 
Senator Holmberg: Moved that the House recede from House amendments and amend 
as follows with amendment 19.1021.02005. 
Senator Robinson: Seconded the motion.  
 
Representative Vigesaa:  Do we need to have the emergency clause on this bill or is it 
already there in regard to the funding from this biennium? 
 
Senator Holmberg: It’s in there.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken:  6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.   
Motion carried.   
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Fiscal No. 2 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
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April 23, 2019 

PROPO SED AMENDMENT S TO EN GRO S SED SENATE BILL NO. 2297 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1582-1586 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 17 48-17 52 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2297 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to provide an exemption; "  

Page 1, line 5, replace "The" with " Subject to the provisions of  this section, the" 

Page 1, remove lines 17 through 24 

Page 2 replace lines 1 through 11 with: 

"North Dakota state university Dunbar Hall $40,000,000 
30,000,000 
20,000,000 

6,000,000 
4,000,000 

$100,000,000 

Valley City state university Communications and Fine Arts Building project 
North Dakota state university agriculture products development center 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hall project 
Dickinson state university Pulver Hall 
Total 

1. North Dakota state university may obtain and utilize local funds obtained 
from fundraising or other sources for the Dunbar Hall project. There is 
appropriated to North Dakota state university the sum of $3,200,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, from any local or other funds that 
may become available for this project for the period beginning with the 
effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. a. North Dakota state university may obtain and utilize local funds 
obtained from fundraising or other sources for the agriculture products 
development center project. There is appropriated to North Dakota 
state university the sum of $20,000,000, or so much of the sum as 
may be necessary, from any local or other funds that may become 
available for this project for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

b. The industrial commission may issue evidences of indebtedness for 
the agriculture products development center project only if North 
Dakota state university certifies to the industrial commission and the 
director of the office of management and budget that $20,000,000 of 
local and other funds has been obtained for the project or if North 
Dakota state university receives approval for a change in project 
scope from the legislative assembly or budget section pursuant to 
section 48-01.2-25. 

3. a. The university of North Dakota may obtain and utilize local funds 
obtained from fundraising or other sources for the Gamble Hall 
project. There is appropriated to the university of North Dakota the 
sum of $55,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, 
from any local or other funds that may become available for this 
project for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and 
ending June 30, 2021. 
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b. The industrial commission may issue evidences of indebtedness for 
the Gamble Hall project only if the university of North Dakota certifies 
to the industrial commission and the director of the office of 
management and budget that $55,000,000 of local and other funds 
has been obtained for the project or if the university of North Dakota 
receives approval for a change in project scope from the legislative 
assembly or budget section pursuant to section 48-01.2-25. 

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION - CAPITAL PROJECTS - EXEMPTION. 

1. Subject to the provisions of this section, the funds provided in this section, 
or so much of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any 
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated, to the following institutions for the identified capital projects, 
for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending 
June 30, 201 9, as follows: 

Bismarck state college Nursing Building 
Dakota college at Bottineau dining hall and other projects 
Lake Region state college precision agriculture project 
North Dakota state university agriculture products development center project 
North Dakota state university Dunbar Hall project 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hall project 
Valley City state university Communications and Fine Arts Building project 
Total general fund 

$8,900,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 

20,000,000 
8,000,000 
9,000,000 
2,000,000 

$49,900,000 

In accordance with section 54-44.1-11, any unaccepted funds from these 
appropriations may be continued into the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, 
and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. The appropriation for the agriculture products development center project 
must be continued into the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending 
June 30, 2021, and is available only if North Dakota state university 
certifies to the industrial commission and the director of the office of 
management and budget that $20,000,000 of local and other funds has 
been obtained for the project or if North Dakota state university receives 
approval for a change in project scope from the legislative assembly or 
budget section pursuant to section 48-01.2-25. 

3. The appropriation for the Gamble Hall project must be continued into the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021, and is 
available only if the university of North Dakota certifies to the industrial 
commission and the director of the office of management and budget that 
$55,000,000 of local and other funds has been obtained for the project or if 
the university of North Dakota receives approval for a change in project 
scope from the legislative assembly or budget section pursuant to section 
48-01.2-25. 

SECTION 3. NORTHERN CROPS INSTITUTE BUILDING PROJECT. The 
northern crops institute is authorized to begin fundraising efforts for the northern crops 
institute building project. The northern crops institute shall develop a proposal for its 
building project, including locations for the new facility, the proper capacity of the facility 
to serve future institute needs, and the estimated costs of the building project. The 
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northern crops institute may seek funding and authorization from the sixty-seventh 
legislative assembly to proceed with the building project. " 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Summary of Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 

University of North Dakota 
Total all funds $0 $0 $61,000,000 $61,000,000 $61,000,000 $0 
Less estimated income 0 0 61,000,000 61,000,000 61,000,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FT E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

North Dakota State University 
Total all funds $0 $111,200,000 ($28,000,000) $83,200,000 $51,200,000 $32,000,000 
Less estimated income 0 111,200,000 (28,000 000) 83,200,000 51,200,000 32,000,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Dickinson State University 
Total all funds $0 $4,500,000 ($500,000) $4,000,000 $4,000,000 $0 
Less estimated income 0 4,500,000 (500,000' 4,000,000 4,000,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Valley City State University 
Total all funds $0 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) $30,000,000 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) 
Less estimated income 0 32,275,000 (2,275,000) 30,000,000 32,275,000 {2,275,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Northern Crops Institute 
Total all funds $0 $18,000,000 ($18,000,000) $0 $0 $0 
Less estimated income 0 18,000,000 118 000 0001 0 0 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Bill total 
Total all funds $0 $165,975,000 $12,225,000 $178,200,000 $148,475,000 $29,725,000 
Less estimated income 0 165,975,000 12,225,000 178,200,000 148,475,000 29,725,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FT E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Senate B ill No. 2297 - University of North Dakota - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 

Capital assets $61,000,000 $61,000,000 $61,000,000 

Total all funds $0 $0 $61,000,000 $61,000,000 $61,000,000 $0 
Less estimated income 0 0 61 000,000 61,000,000 61,000,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FT E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
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Department 230 - University of North Dakota - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adds Fund ing 
for Gamble 
Hall Pro ject1 

$61 ,000,000 

$61 ,000,000 
61 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 
$61 ,000,000 

$61 ,000,000 
61 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

1 Special fund authority of $61 mi l l ion is added for the Gamble Hall project from bond proceeds ($6 mi l l ion) and from 
funds obtained from fundrais ing and other local sources ($55 mi l l ion) .  A 201 7- 1 9 biennium general fund 
appropriation of $9 mi l l ion is a lso provided for the project for a total project cost of $70 mi l l ion .  The bonding authority 
and general fund appropriation for the project are avai lable only if the University of North Dakota certifies to the 
Industrial Commission and the Office of Management and Budget that $55 mi l l ion of local and other funds has been 
obtained for the project or if the university receives approval from the Legislative Assembly or Budget Section for a 
change in project scope. This is the same amount of funding as provided in the House version. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - North Dakota State University - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 
Capital assets $1 1 1 ,200,000 ($28,000,000 $83,200,000 $51 ,200,000 $32,000,000 

Total all funds $0 $ 1 1 1 ,200,000 ($28,000,000) $83,200,000 $51 ,200,000 $32,000,000 
Less estimated income 0 1 1 1 ,200,000 (28,000,000 83,200,000 51 ,200,000 32,000,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department 235 - North Dakota State University - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

Adjusts 
Funding for 
Agriculture 

Adjusts Products 
Funding for Development 
Dunbar Hall Center 

Project1 Project2 
Capital assets ($8,000,000) ($20,000,000) 

Total all funds ($8,000,000) ($20,000,000) 
Less estimated income (8,000,000) (20,000,000) 
General fund $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 

1 Funding for the Dunbar Hal l  project is adjusted as fol lows: 

Dunbar Hal l  Project 
Bonding 
General fund appropriation (201 7-1 9 biennium) 
Other funds 
Total 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($28,000,000' 

($28,000,000) 
128 000 000) 

$0 

0.00 

Senate 
$51 ,200,000 

0 
Q 

$51 ,200,000 

House 
$40,000,000 

0 
1 1 .200.000 

$51 ,200,000 

Conference 
Comm ittee 

$40,000.000 
8 .000.000 
3,200.000 

$51 ,200,000 

The $8 mi l l ion reduction shown is due to the general fund appropriation being provided during the 201 7- 1 9 biennium .  

2 Funding for the  Agriculture Products Development Center i s  adjusted as fol lows: 
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Agriculture Products Development Center 
Bonding 
General fund appropriation (2017-19 biennium) 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$54,000,000 

0 
6.000,000 

$60,000,000 

Conference 
Committee 

$20,000,000 
20,000,000 
20,000,000 

$60,000,000 

The $20 million reduction shown is due to the general fund appropriation being provided during the 2017-1 9  
biennium. Provisions are also added to provide the bonding authority and general fund appropriation for the project 
are available only if North Dakota State University certifies to the Industrial Commission and the Office of 
Management and Budget that $20 million of local and other funds has been obtained for the project or if the 
university receives approval from the Legislative Assembly or Budget Section for a change in project scope. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Dickinson State University - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House 

Budget Version Changes Version Version 

Capital assets $4,500,000 ($500,000) $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

Total all funds $0 $4,500,000 ($500,000) $4,000,000 $4,000,000 
Less estimated income 0 4 ,500,000 (500,000 4,000,000 4 ,000,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department 239 - Dickinson State University - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 
Pulver Hall 

Project1 

($500,000) 

($500,000) 
(500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

{$500,000) 

($500,000) 
(500 00Dl 

$0 

0.00 

Comparison to 
House 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding from bond proceeds added by the Senate for the Pulver Hall project is reduced from $4.5 million to 
$4 million. This is the same level of funding provided in the House version. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Valley City State University - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 

Capital assets $32,275,000 ($2 275 00Dl $30,000,000 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) 

Total all funds $0 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) $30,000,000 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) 
Less estimated income 0 32,275,000 (2 ,275,000) 30,000,000 32,275,000 (2,275,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
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Department 242 - Valley City State University - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts Funding 
for 

Communications 
and Fine Arts 

Building Project1 

($2,275,000) 

($2,275,000) 
(2,275,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 
($2,275,000' 

($2,275,000) 
(2,275,000' 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding for the Communications and Fine Arts Bu i ld ing project is adjusted as fol lows: 

Communications and Fine Arts Bui ld ing Project 
Bonding 
General fund appropriation (20 1 7-1 9 bienn ium) 
Other funds 
Tota l 

Senate 
$32,275,000 

0 
_Q 

$32,275,000 

House 
$30,000,000 

0 
2,275.000 

$32.275.000 

Conference 
Committee 

$30,000,000 
2 .000,000 

_Q 
$32,000,000 

The $2,275,000 reduction  shown is due to the $2 mi l l ion general fund  appropriation being provided du ring  the 
201 7- 1 9  biennium and a reduction of $275.000 i n  project authorization . 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Northern Crops Institute - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House 

Budget Version Changes Version Version 
Capital assets $18,000,000 ($ 18,000,000) 

Total all funds $0 $18,000,000 ($ 18,000,000) $0 $0 
Less estimated income 0 18,000,000 (18 000 000) 0 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department 638 - Northern Crops Institute - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Removes 
Funding for 

Building 
Project1 

($18,000,000) 

($18,000,000) 
(18,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($18 000 000 

($18,000,000) 
(18,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Comparison to 
House 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding added by the Senate from bond proceeds and other funds for the Northern Crops I nstitute bu i ld ing project 
is removed. The House also removed this fund ing .  A section  is added authorizing the Northern Crops I nstitute to 
beg in  fundraising for the project and to request authorization from the 67th Legis lative Assembly to proceed with the 
project. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Other Changes - Conference Committee Action 

This amendment provides a 201 7-1 9 bienn ium general fund appropriation of $49 .9  m i l l ion  for the fol lowing projects: 
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Bismarck State Col lege Nurs ing Bu i ld ing 
Dakota Col lege at Bottineau d in i ng hal l  and other projects 
Lake Region State Col lege precis ion agricu lture project 
North Dakota State Un iversity Agriculture P roducts Development 

Center 
North Dakota State U niversity Dunbar Hall p roject 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hal l  project 
Val ley City State U niversity Communications and F ine Arts 

Bu i ld ing project 
Total general fund - 201 7- 1 9  bienn ium 

Senate 
$0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
Q 

$0 

Conference 
House Com m ittee 

$8,900,000 $8 ,900,000 
1 ,000,000 1 ,000,000 
1 ,000,000 1 ,000,000 

0 20,000,000 

0 8 ,000,000 
9,000,000 9,000,000 

Q 2,000,000 

$ 1 9 ,900,000 $49,900 ,000 

Provisions are also added to a l low the institut ions to continue any unexpended general fund  appropriations for the 
projects i nto the 201 9-2 1 b ienn ium.  
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201 9 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

B I LL/RESOLUTION NO .  2297 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Date : 4/23/20 1 9  
Rol l  Ca l l  Vote # :  1 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and fu rther  amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
IZI HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as fol lows 

with amendment 1 9 . 1 021 .02005 
D Unable to agree , recommends that the comm ittee be d ischarged and a new 

committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: Senator Holmber g 

Senators 4/1 9 4/23 

Senator Sorvaag X X 

Senator Ho lmberg X X 

Senator Rob inson X X 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count Yes : 6 

Yes 

X 
X 
X 

3 

Seconded by: Senator Robinson 

No Representatives 4/1 9 4/23 

Representative Viqesaa X X 

Representative Sanford X X 

Representative Boe X X 

0 Tota l Rep. Vote 

No :  0 Absent: 0 

Senate Carrier Senator Sorvaag House Carrier Representative Vigesaa 

Yes 

X 
X 
X 

3 

LC Number 1 9 1 02 1  02005 of amendment 

No 

0 

LC Number 1 9 1 02 1  . 04000 of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of pu rpose of amendment 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2297, as engrossed: Your  conference com m ittee (Sens .  Sorvaag , Ho lm berg , Robinson 

and Reps.  Vigesaa, Sanford , Boe) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the 
House amendments as pri nted on SJ pages 1 582-1 586,  adopt amendments as 
fol lows , and p lace SB 2297 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as p rin ted on pages 1 582-1 586 of the Senate 
Journa l  and pages 1 7  48-1 752 of the House Journa l  and that Engrossed Senate B i l l  No .  
2297 be amended as fol lows : 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  3 ,  after the semicolon i nsert "to prov ide an exemption ; "  

Page 1 ,  l i ne  5 ,  rep lace "The" with "Subject to the prov is ions o f  th is sect ion , the" 

Page 1 ,  remove l i nes 1 7  through 24 

Page 2 rep lace l i nes 1 th roug h 1 1  with : 

"North Dakota state u n ivers ity Dunbar Ha l l  $40 , 000 , 000 
30 , 000 , 000 
20 , 000 , 000 

6 , 000 , 000 
4,000,000 

$ 1 00 , 000 , 000 

Val ley C ity state u n iversity Commun ications  and Fine Arts Bu i l d i ng  project 
North Dakota state u n ivers ity ag ricu l ture prod ucts development center 
U n ivers i ty of North Dakota Gam ble Ha l l  p roject 
Dicki nson state u n iversity Pu lver Ha l l  
Total 

1 .  North Dakota state u n ivers ity may obta in  and ut i l ize loca l fu nds obta ined 
from fund ra is ing or  other  sources for the Dunbar  Ha l l  project. There is  
appropriated to North Dakota state u n ivers i ty the sum of $3 , 200 , 000 ,  or 
so m uch of the sum as may be necessary, from any local or  other  fu nds 
that may become ava i lab le for th is  project for the period beg i n n ing  with 
the effective date of th is  Act, and end ing  June  30, 202 1 . 

2 .  a .  North Dakota state u n ivers ity may obta i n  and uti l ize local fu nds 
obta ined from fund ra is ing or other sou rces for the ag ricu l ture 
products development center project. There is appropr iated to North 
Dakota state un ivers ity the sum of $20 , 000 , 000 ,  or  so m uch of the 
sum as may be necessary, from any local or other  funds  that may 
become ava i lab le for th is project for the period beg i n n i ng  with the 
effective date of this Act , and end ing  June  30, 202 1 . 

b .  The i ndustria l  commission may issue evidences of i ndebtedness for 
the ag ricu ltu re products development center project on ly  if North 
Dakota state u n iversity certifies to the i ndustria l  com miss ion and the 
d i rector of the office of management and budget that $20 , 000 , 000 of 
local and other  funds has been obta i ned for the p roject or  if North 
Dakota state u n iversity rece ives approval for a change in project 
scope from the leg is lative assembly or budget sect ion pu rsuant  to 
section 48-0 1 . 2-25 .  

3 .  a .  The u n ivers ity of  North Dakota may obta in  and ut i l ize local fu nds 
obta i ned from fundra is ing or other sou rces for the Gamble Hal l  
project. There is appropriated to the u n ivers i ty of North Dakota the 
sum of $55 , 000 , 000 ,  or  so m uch of the sum as may be necessary, 
from any local or other fu nds that may become ava i lab le  for th is 
project for the per iod beg i n n i ng  with the effective date of th is  Act, 
and end ing  J u ne 30 ,  202 1 . 

b .  The i ndustria l  comm ission may issue evidences of i ndebtedness for 
the Gamble Ha l l  project on ly if the u n iversity of North Dakota certifies 
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to the i ndustria l  comm ission and the d i rector of the office of 
management and budget that $55, 000, 000 of local and other funds 
has been obta i ned for the project or i f  the u n ivers ity of North Dakota 
rece ives approva l for a change in project scope from the leg is lative 
assembly or budget section pursuant to sect ion 48-0 1 . 2-25 .  

SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION - CAPITAL PROJECTS - EXEMPTION. 

1 .  Subject to the provis ions of th is section , the funds provided i n  th is 
section , or so m uch of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated 
out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated ,  to the fo l lowing i nstitut ions for the ident ified cap ital projects, 
for the period beg i n n ing  with the effective date of th is  Act, and end ing  
June 30 ,  20 1 9 ,  as fo l lows : 

B ismarck state col lege N u rs ing  Bu i l d i ng  
Dakota col lege a t  Botti neau d i n i ng  ha l l  and other projects 
Lake Reg ion state co l lege precis ion agr icu lture project 
North Dakota state u n iversity ag ricu l ture products development center project 
North Dakota state u n ivers ity Dunbar Ha l l  project 
U n iversity of North Dakota Gamble Ha l l  project 
Va l ley City state u n ivers ity Commun icat ions and F ine Arts Bu i l d i ng  p roject 
Total genera l  fund 

$8 , 900 , 000 
1 , 000 , 000 
1 , 000 ,000 

20 ,000 ,000 
8 , 000, 000 
9 , 000, 000 
2,000,000 

$49 , 900 , 000 

In accordance with section 54-44 . 1 - 1 1 ,  any unaccepted funds from these 
appropriations may be cont in ued into the b ien n i u m  beg i n n i ng Ju ly 1 ,  
20 1 9 ,  and end ing  J u ne 30 ,  202 1 . 

2 .  The appropriat ion for the ag ricu lture products development center project 
must be conti nued in to the b ienn i um beg i nn ing  J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and end ing  
June 30 ,  202 1 , and is ava i lab le on ly  i f  North Dakota state u n ivers ity 
certifies to the i ndustria l  comm ission and the d i rector of the office of 
management and budget that $20,000, 000 of local and other funds has 
been obta ined for the project or if North Dakota state u n ivers ity receives 
approva l for a change in project scope from the leg is lative assembly or 
budget sect ion pursuant  to section 48-0 1 .2-25 .  

3 .  T h e  appropriat ion for the Gamble H a l l  project must b e  conti n ued i nto the 
b ienn i um  beg i n n i ng J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 ,  and end ing June  30, 202 1 , and is 
ava i lab le only if the u n iversity of North Dakota certif ies to the i ndustria l  
commiss ion and the d i rector of the office of management and budget that 
$55 ,000 ,000 of loca l and other fu nds has been obta i ned for the project or 
if the u n ivers i ty of North Dakota receives approva l for a change in project 
scope from the leg is lative assembly or budget section pursuant  to section 
48-0 1 . 2-25 .  

SECTION 3. NORT HERN CROPS INSTITUTE BUILDING PROJECT. The 
northern crops i nstitute is authorized to beg in fundra is ing efforts for the northern 
crops i nstitute bu i l d i ng  project. The northern crops i nstitute sha l l  develop a proposal 
for its bu i l d i ng  project, i nc lud ing  locations for the new faci l i ty, the proper capacity of 
the faci l ity to serve futu re i nstitute needs, and the estimated costs of the bu i l d i ng  
project. The northern crops i nstitute may seek fund ing and authorization  from the 
s ixty-seventh leg is lative assembly to proceed with the bu i l d i ng  project. " 

Renumber accord i ng ly 
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STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Summary of Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 

University of North Dakota 
Total all funds $0 $0 $61 ,000,000 $6 1 ,000,000 $61 ,000 ,000 $0 
Less estimated i ncome 0 0 6 1 ,000,000 6 1 , 000,000 6 1 ,000,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

North Dakota State Un iversity 
Total all funds $0 $ 1 1 1 , 200,000 ($28,000,000) $83,200,000 $51 ,200,000 $32,000,000 
Less estimated income 0 1 1 1 ,200,000 128,000,000\ 83,200,000 5 1 , 200,000 32,000,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Dickinson State University 
Total all funds $0 $4,500,000 ($500,000) $4,000,000 $4,000,000 $0 
Less estimated i ncome 0 4 500,000 (500,000\ 4,000,000 4,000,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 

Valley City State Un iversity 
Total all funds $0 $32,275, 000 ($2,275,000) $30,000,000 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) 
Less estimated i ncome 0 32,275,000 12,275,000\ 30,000,000 32, 275,000 (2, 275, 000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 

Northern Crops I nstitute 
Total all funds $0 $ 1 8 ,000, 000 ($ 1 8 ,000,000) $0 $0 $0 
Less estimated i ncome 0 1 8,000,000 ( 1 8 ,000,000) 0 0 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Bi l l  total 
Total all funds $0 $ 1 65,975,000 $ 1 2, 225,000 $ 1 78,200,000 $ 1 48,475,000 $29,725,000 
Less estimated i ncome 0 1 65,975,000 1 2,225,000 1 78,200,000 1 48,475 ,000 29,725,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 0.00 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - University of North Dakota - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 

Capital assets $6 1 ,000,000 $61 ,000,000 $6 1 ,000,000 

Total al l funds $0 $0 $6 1 ,000,000 $6 1 ,000,000 $61 ,000,000 $0 
Less estimated i ncome 0 0 6 1 ,000,000 6 1 , 000,000 6 1 , 000,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department 230 - University of North Dakota - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated i ncome 
General fund 

FTE 

( 1 )  DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 3 

Adds Funding for Gamble Hall 
Project1 

$61 ,000 000 

$61 ,000,000 
6 1 , 000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Total Conference Committee 
Changes 

$61 ,000,000 

$61 ,000,000 
6 1 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 
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1 Special fund authority of $6 1 m i l l ion is added for the Gamble Hal l  project from bond 
proceeds ($6 m i l l i on )  and from funds obta ined from fundra is ing and other loca l sou rces ($55 
mi l l ion ) .  A 201 7-1 9 b ienn i u m  general fu nd appropriation of $9 m i l l ion is a lso provided for the 
project for a tota l project cost of $70 m i l l i on .  The bond ing authority and genera l  fu nd 
appropriat ion for the project are ava i lab le on ly  if the Un ivers ity of North Dakota certif ies to 
the I ndustr ial Comm ission and the Office of Management and Budget that $55 m i l l ion of 
loca l and other funds has been obta ined for the project or if the un ivers ity receives approva l 
from the Leg is lative Assembly or Budget Section for a change i n  project scope. Th is  is the 
same amount of fu nd i ng  as provided in the House vers ion . 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - North Dakota State University - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 

Capital assets $ 1 1 1 ,200,000 ($28,000,000) $83,200,000 $51,200,000 $32,000,000 

Total al l funds $0 $ 1 1 1 , 200,000 ($28,000,000) $83,200,000 $51 ,200,000 $32,000,000 
Less estimated i ncome 0 1 1 1 ,200,000 (28,000,000) 83, 200,000 5 1 , 200,000 32,000,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department 235 - North Dakota State University - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Capital assets 

Total al l funds 
Less estimated i ncome 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts Funding for 
Dunbar Hall Project1 

($8,000,000) 

($8,000,000) 
(8,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Adjusts Funding for 
Agriculture Products 
Development Center 

Projectl 
($20,000,000) 

($20,000,000) 
(20,000,000) 

$0 

0 .00 

Total Conference 
Committee Changes 

($28,000,000) 

($28,000,000) 
(28,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing for the Dunbar Ha l l  project is adjusted as fol lows : 

Dunbar Hal l  Project 
Bonding 
General fund appropriation (20 1 7- 1 9 b iennium) 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$51 ,200, 000 

0 
Q 

$5 1 , 200,000 

House 
$40,000,000 

0 
1 1 ,200,000 

$51 ,200 ,000 

Conference 
Committee 

$40,000. 000 
8 ,000 ,000 
3,200 000 

$5 1 ,200 ,000 

The $8 m i l l ion reduct ion shown is  due to the genera l  fund appropriation bei ng prov ided 
duri ng the 20 1 7-1 9 b ien n i u m .  

2 Fund ing for the Agricu lture Products Development Center i s  adj usted a s  fo l lows: 

Agriculture Products Development Center 
Bonding 
General fund appropriation (20 1 7- 1 9 b iennium) 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$54,000.000 

0 
6,000,000 

$60,000.000 

$0 
0 
Q 

$0 

Conference 
Committee 

$20 ,000 .000 
20 ,000 ,000 
20,000,000 

$60,000 .000 

The $20 m i l l ion reduction shown is due to the general fu nd appropriat ion being provided 
during the 20 1 7-1 9 b ien n i um .  Provis ions are also added to provide the bond ing authority and 
genera l  fu nd appropriat ion for the project are ava i lab le only if North Dakota State U n ivers ity 
certifies to the I ndustria l  Comm ission and the Office of Management and Budget that $20 
mi l l ion  of local and other fu nds has been obtai ned for the project or if the un iversity receives 
approva l from the Leg is lative Assem bly or Budget Section for a change in project scope. 
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Senate Bill No. 2297 - Dickinson State University - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 
Capital assets $4,500,000 ($500,000) $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

Total all funds $0 $4,500,000 ($500,000) $4,000,000 $4,000,000 $0 
Less estimated i ncome 0 4,500,000 (500,000) 4 000,000 4, 000,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department 239 - Dickinson State University - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts Funding for Pulver Hall 
Project1 

($500,000) 

($500,000) 
(500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total Conference Committee 
Changes 

($500 000) 

($500,000) 
(500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing  from bond proceeds added by the Senate for the Pu lver Ha l l  p roject is reduced 
from $4 . 5  m i l l ion to $4 m i l l i on .  This i s  the same level of fu nd ing  provided in the House 
vers ion . 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Valley City State University - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 
Capital assets $32,275,000 ($2 275 000\ $30,000,000 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) 

Total all funds $0 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) $30,000,000 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) 
Less estimated i ncome 0 32,275,000 (2,275,000) 30,000,000 32,275,000 (2, 275,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department 242 - Valley City State University - Detail of Conference Committee 
Changes 

Capital assets 

Total al l funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts Funding for Communications 
and Fine Arts Bui lding Project1 

($2,275,000) 

($2,275,000) 
(2 ,275,000) 

$0 

0 .00 

Total Conference Committee 
Changes 

($2,275,000) 

($2,275,000) 
(2 275,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing for the Commun icat ions and F ine  Arts Bu i l d i ng  project is adj usted as fo l lows: 

Communications and F ine Arts Bu i ld ing Project 
Bonding 
General fund appropriation (20 1 7- 1 9  biennium) 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$32,275 ,000 

0 
Q 

$32,275 ,000 

House 
$30 ,000 ,000 

0 
2,275 000 

$32 ,275 ,000 

Conference 
Committee 

$30 ,000 .000 
2 ,000 ,000 

Q 
$32,000 ,000 

The $2 ,275 , 000 reduction shown is due to the $2 m i l l ion  genera l  fu nd appropriat ion bei ng  
provided during  the  201 7-1 9 b ienn i um and a reduction  of  $275 , 000 i n  project authorization . 
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Senate Bil l No. 2297 - Northern Crops Institute - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Version Changes Version Version House 

Capital assets $1 8,000,000 ($ 1 8,000,000) 

Total all funds $0 $1 8,000,000 ($ 1 8,000, 000) $0 $0 $0 
Less estimated income 0 1 8, 000,000 ( 1 8,000,000) 0 0 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department 638 - Northern Crops Institute - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

Removes Funding for Bui ld ing 
Project1 

($1 8,000,000) 

Total Conference Committee 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

($1 8,000,000) 
(18,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Changes 

($ 1 8,000,000) 

($1 8,000,000) 
( 1 8,000, 000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing  added by the Senate from bond proceeds and other fu nds for the Northern Crops 
I nstitute bu i l d i ng  project is removed . The House also removed th is fu nd ing .  A sect ion is 
added authorizi ng  the Northern Crops I nstitute to beg in fu ndra is ing for the project and to 
request authorization  from the 67th Leg is lative Assembly to proceed with the project. 

Senate Bil l No. 2297 - Other Changes - Conference Committee Action 

This amendment provides a 20 1 7- 1 9 b ienn i um general fund appropriat ion of $49 . 9  m i l l ion for 
the fo l lowing projects : 

Bismarck State Col lege Nurs ing Bu i ld ing 
Dakota Col lege at Bottineau d in ing hal l  and other projects 
Lake Region State Col lege precis ion agriculture project 
North Dakota State University Agriculture Products Development Center 
North Dakota State University Dunbar Ha l l  project 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hal l  project 
Val ley City State Un iversity Communications and F ine Arts Bui ld ing project 
Total general fund - 201 7-1 9 bienn ium 

Senate 
$0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
Q 

$0 

House 
$8 , 900,000 

1 , 000,000 
1 , 000,000 

0 
0 

9 ,000 ,000 
Q 

$ 1 9 ,900, 000 

Conference 
Committee 

$8,900 ,000 
1 ,000 ,000 
1 ,000 ,000 

20 ,000,000 
8 ,000 ,000 
9 ,000 ,000 
2 000 000 

$49,900,000 

Provis ions are a lso added to a l low the i nstitut ions to contin ue any unexpended genera l  fu nd 
appropriat ions for the projects i nto the 20 1 9-2 1 b ienn ium .  

Engrossed S B  2297 was p laced on the Seventh order of  bus i ness on the ca lendar. 
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PROPOSED VCSU CAPITAL PROJECT 
Construction of Communication and Fine Arts Bu i ld ing 

Valley City State U n iversity has an urgent need to construct a new Commun ication and Fine Arts Bui ld ing. 
Permanent flood protection for the VCSU campus has put Foss Hal l  on the wrong side of the floodwal l .  

Estimated Cost: $32,275,887 (project will eliminate $2,579,413 in deferred maintenance) 

• 

• 

The Proposal 

The proposed Communication a nd Fine 
Arts Bui lding wil l  replace Foss Ha l l  a nd 
consolidate the Art a nd M usic programs 
in one facil ity, which wil l  a lso incl ude the 
Communication Arts Department. 

Every student completing the genera l 
education program at VCSU wil l take 

The Need 

Foss Ha l l  (built in 1963) ,  
VCSU 's music bui lding, sits 
directly on the ba nks of the 
Sheyenne River. As the City 
of Va l ley City has insta l l ed 
perma nent flood protection­
protecting the city a nd the 
VCSU campus-Foss Ha l l  is 
located on the wrong side of 
the floodwa l l .  

To protect students a nd 
state assets, Foss Ha l l  must 
be razed and its functions 
replaced elsewhere on 
campus . 

at least 2 cou rses (6  credits) in this 
bui lding. By shuffling classrooms and 
offices, this wil l  a lso a l low for the razing 
of McCa rthy Ha l l .  

Estimated at  sl ightly less than 
$32.3 mil l ion ,  the project is needed 
because the insta l lation of permanent 

flood protection a long the river has 
put Foss Ha l l  on the wrong side of the 
floodwa l l .  It wi l l  a lso a l low VCSU to retire 
more than $2.5 mil lion in deferred 
maintenance by razing Foss Ha l l .  



The Benefits 

• Gather comm u n ication and fi ne a rts 
progra ms- 5 majors ,  5 m i nors and  
4 certificate programs-under one roof, 
p rovid ing  students with conso l idated , 
u pdated fac i l it ies. 

• Raze Foss Ha l l ,  provid i ng  
a deferred maintena nce 
savi ngs of $2.5 m i l l ion .  

• Ach ieve organ izationa l  
effic iency th rough com mon 

- box office a nd sha red 
adm i n istrative support, and 
ach ieve space effic iency 
through m u lti-use workrooms 
and performance a reas. 

• House at least 2 of VCSU 's 
requ i red genera l  education 
cou rses, giving a l l  freshmen 

on campus access to modern c lassroom 
fac i l it ies and increased exposu re to the 
a rts . 

Renovation of McCarthy u nworkable for music bui ld ing 

The Executive Budget exp lores a 
renovation of McCa rthy Ha l l  to meet 
Va l l ey City State U n iversity's need to 
rep lace Foss Ha l l .  Unfortunately, that 
poss ib i l ity is unfeas ib le .  

Bu i lt i n  1930, McCa rthy has rema i ned 
l a rge ly untouched over t ime,  and its 
deferred ma intena nce a lone fa r exceeds 
the Executive Budget figu re .  

The McCa rthy Ha l l  i nfrastructu re and 
design a re from another era .  Although 
extensive renovation m ight a l l ow it to 
fu nction as a trad it iona l  c lassroom 
bu i l d i ng, convert ing it to a modern, 
fu nctiona l m usic bu i l d i ng with fi rst-rate 
space for c lasses, stud ios, ensemble 
rehea rsal space and a rec ita l ha l l  

is unworka ble given its 
structura l  l i m itations and 
i nfrastructu re defic iencies. 

We m ust a lways ask 
ou rselves what is best for ou r  
students and ou r  u n iversity. 
The outsta nd ing student 
m us ic ians and futu re m usic 
educators at Va l ley City State 
Un iversity need a fi rst-rate 
fac i l ity to enhance the i r  
educationa l  experience, and  
the  teach ing of ta lented and 

ded icated facu lty mem bers wi l l  be greatly 
enhanced by a new bu i l d i ng, as wi l l  the 
recru iti ng of new students. The futu re 
of m usic at VCSU depends on looking 
forwa rd , not j ust making do. 

McCarthy Hal l  Renovation Needs 
McCarthy Ha l l  wou ld need the fo l lowing 
major improvements: 

• Asbestos abatement/remova l 

• Ai r hand l i ng system with duct work 

• P ip ing throughout the bui l d i ng: water 
l i nes, san ita ry sewer l i nes, remova l of 
exist ing stea m l i nes ,  and insta l lation of 
water loop and steam converter system 

I 1 - J.I - /J.O{'f 8B agq-r 
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• Provide ADA access ib i l ity (cu rrently 
lack ing i n  Foss Ha l l )  i n  the new bu i l d i ng 
with an  e levator. 

• Create appropr iate acoustics i n  
performance and  practice space, a long 
with proper c l imate control to preserve 
expensive i nstru ments. 

• Foster an  atmosphere of col l aborat ion 
and i nsp i ration ,  a n  i nterd isc ip l i na ry 
a pproach to creative problem-solv ing and  
i n novation ,  and  a synergy embodyi ng 
the VCSU core va l ues of i nnovation and 
comm u n ity, by comb in i ng the fi ne a rts 
with the com m u n ication a rts programs i n  
one  bu i l d i ng. 

• Penthouse for mechan ica l systems 

• Roofi ng with i nsu lation ,  EPDM rubber 
roofi ng mem brane,  and flash ing 

• Insu lation for exter ior wa l ls 

• Energy-effic ient windows 

• New e lectrica l w i r ing and condu it 

• Tuckpoint ing of brickwork 

• E levator to accommodate l a rge 
i nstru ments such as grand pia nos 

• Fi re-prevention spri n kler system 

Limitations for Specia l Spaces 
The structura l  design of the bu i l d i ng  and 
its footpr int can not accom modate the 
la rge open spaces needed for choi r and  
ba nd rehearsa l rooms, wh ich  req u i re 
sunken and  elevated terraced rooms 
respectively, a long with acoustic featu res 
and  treatments that both reprod uce 
sou nd accu rately and protect m usic ia ns' 
hea r ing. 

Conclusion 
It doesn 't make fi nancia l sense to 
renovate McCa rthy Ha l l  for a music 
bu i l d i ng. 

• 

� VALLEY CITY 
V STATE U N IVERS ITY 

Va lley City State Univers ity • President's Office 
101 Col lege St SW • Va l l ey City, ND 58072 
701-845-7102 • www.vcsu .ed u 
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SENATE B ILL  NO .  2297 

Bond i ng Federa l/Other funds 

North Da kota state u n ive rsity Dunba r  Ha l l  51,200,000 0 

Va l ley City state u nive rsity commun ication and fi ne  a rts 32,000,000 0 

North Da kota state u n ive rsity agriculture products deve lopment center 54,000,000 6,000,000 

And northern crops i n stitute project 10,000,000 8,000,000 

Dick i nson state un iversity Pu lver Ha l l  p roject 4 500 000 0 

Tota l 151,700,000 14,000,000 

p l  



1 9 . 1 02 1 . 0 1 00 1  
Title .  

P repared by the Leg is lative Counc i l  staff for 
Senator Wardner  

January 2 1 , 201 9 

PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO SENATE BI LL NO.  2297 

Page 1 ,  replace l i nes 1 9  and 20 with : 

" North Dakota state un iversity agricu ltu re products development center 
Northern crops institute p roject 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  24, remove "and northern crops institute" 

Page 2, l i ne  1 ,  replace "$ 1 4 ,000 ,000 , "  with "$6 ,000 ,000" 

Page 2 ,  after l ine 3 ,  insert: 

54,000, 000 
1 0 ,000 , 000" 

"The northern crops i nstitute may obta in  and uti l i ze federal and other  funds for 
the northern crops i nstitute project. There is appropriated to the northern crops i nstitute 
the sum of $8 , 000,000,  or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from any federal 
or othe r  funds that may become avai lab le for th is project for the period beg inn ing  with 
the effective date of th is Act and end ing June 30 , 202 1 . "  

Renumber accord ing ly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment p rovides separate appropriation authority for the North Dakota State 
Un iversity agr icu l ture p roducts deve lopment center and Northern Crops I nstitute projects rathe r  
than provid ing one appropriat ion for both p rojects . 

Page No .  1 1 9 . 1 02 1 . 0 1 00 1 
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Testimony of G reg Svenn i ngsen ,  Vice-Cha i r, No rth  Da kota Wheat Com m iss ion 

SB2297 

J a nua ry 3 1, 2019 

Good morn i ng M r. Cha i rma n a nd membe rs of the Senate Approp riat ions 
Com m ittee .  My name is G reg Svenn i ngsen .  I am he re today as  the Vice-Cha i rman  
of t h e  North Da kota Wheat Com m iss io n .  

The No rth Da kota Wheat Comm iss ion has  a long-sta nd i ng, leveraged resea rch  
re lat i onsh i p  with North Da kota State U n ive rs ity's Agr icu ltu ra l  Expe r iment Stat io n .  
Today we  sta nd i n  strong su pport o f  Senate B i l l  2297, wh ich  i n c l udes a p rovi s ion  
for the  Agricu ltu ra l  P rod ucts Deve lopment Cente r .  The Cente r a s  p roposed w i l l  
great ly  imp rove resea rch ca pab i l it ies a nd req u i red i nfra structu re d i rect ly re lated 
to ou r m iss ion a nd co re progra ms, p r ima r i ly p romot ion a nd  deve lopment of 
p rodu ct ion,  ma rket ing, and  growth opportu n it ies for No rth  Da kota agricu ltu re 
a nd the  North Da kota wheat i ndustry .  The Agricu ltu ra l  P roducts Deve lopment 
Cente r wi l l  greatly advance the deve lopment of, a nd  ma rket ing opportun it ies fo r 
agr icu ltu ra l  p roducts a nd re lated cutt ing edge techno log ies .  Th is  wi l l  fu rther  
enha n ce p roductivity of  a l l  of  North Da kota's i ncreas i ng ly d ive rse agricu ltu ra l  c rop  
a nd l ivestock ente rpr ises .  As a resu lt, add it iona l econom ic benefits w i l l  a ccrue to 
eve ry commun ity and  cit i zen in the state .  

Much of our resea rch pa rtners h i p  is cu rrent ly focused on  the imp rovement of 
genet ics, va r iet ies, p l ant p rotect ion,  ma nagement p ract ices a nd customer  
p lea s i ng tra its, a l l  a imed at imp roving the bottom l i n e  of  North Da kota wheat a nd 
d u ru m  p roducers .  The Wheat Comm iss ion's  average a n n u a l  budget i s  a bout $4 .5  
m i l l io n  do l la rs and  is fu nded so l e ly by North Da kota wheat  a nd d u ru m  produce rs .  
Approx imate ly one-th i rd of  these  fu nds  a re a n n u a l ly i nvested i n  resea rch 
p rogra ms, pr ima r i ly conducted at  North  Da kota State U n ive rs ity's ma i n  stat ion 
and reg iona l b ra nch station  s ites, s upp l ement ing state a nd fede ra l  resea rch 
com m itments . 

An essent ia l e lement of the wheat resea rch effo rt i s  a n a lys is of the q u a l ity a nd  
performa nce featu res of each a n nua l  c rop, wh ich i s  i n  tu rn used as  a p romot ion a l  

• a id i n  the  ma rket deve lopment a rena . Su rvey data co l l ected d u r ing each h a rvest 

f l  
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i s  comp i led i n  a comprehens ive re port i l l u strat i ng t he  u n iq ue  q u a l ity 
cha racte r ist ics a nd typ ica l ly su per ior  performance t ra its of the a n n u a l  s p ri ng 
wheat a nd d u ru m  crops when com pa red to wheat of othe r  o rig i ns .  Ove r the past 
s ix decades  th is report has  grown to become the h a l l ma rk and  ch ief sa les  too l of 
the US wheat  i ndustry in grow ing domestic a nd g loba l ma rkets i n  more tha n SO 
desti nat ion cou ntr ies .  The crop  q ua l ity report a nd a ccompa nying sem ina r ser ies 
have become the ma i n  featu res of the "techn ica l  se rvice package" p rovided to 
regu la r a nd p rospect ive customers at a n n u a l  ove rseas  crop  q u a l ity sem i n a rs 
sponsored by the North Da kota Wheat Comm iss ion ,  o u r  pa rtners i n  the sp ri ng 
wheat reg ion ,  a nd ou r  i nte rnationa l pa rtner  o rga n izat ion ,  US Wheat Associates .  

These cr it ica l ly importa nt fu nct ions  a nd many more wheat q u a l ity and  
perfo rmance resea rch p rogra ms a re performed by  wor ld c l ass sc ient ists i n  Ha rr is 
H a l l , a n  aging fac i l ity located on the N DSU ca m pus .  The exist i ng faci l ity ca n not 
su pport the  techno logy nor  the a na lyt ica l p rocedu res  a nd  eq u i pment req u i red i n  
the cu rrent ma rket env i ronment a nd ce rta i n ly wi l l  n ot meet t h e  expectat ions of 
the futu re . 

Rep lacement of the ag ing and  i n c reas i ngly defic ient fac i l ity i s  one of the 
importa nt goa l s  add ressed i n  SB  2297 .  A s im i la r, pa ra l l e l  goa l i nvo lves rep l ac i ng  
the eq u a l ly im porta nt N DSU meats l a b  faci l ity, wh i l e  p rese rv ing the h i stor ic 
Shepperd Are na ,  nea r a nd dea r  to North  Da kota agr icu ltu ra l i sts a nd l ivestock 
p roduce rs .  Forwa rd look ing effo rts on beha lf of a l l  No rth Da kota crops such a s  
soybea ns, corn,  a nd n umerous othe r  h igh va l ue  spec ia lty crops ca n be s im i l a r ly 
add ressed th rough this expa nded ,  much more tech no logy d r iven faci l ity .  

Wheat i s  one of ou r state's p rima ry agr icu ltu ra l e nte rpr ises, a key com ponent of 
ou r state' s l a rgest i ndustry and a top revenue  gene rator for o u r  state economy. 
Spr ing  wheat  i s  ve ry importa nt to ou r  p roducers a nd the i r  ve ry qu a l ity consc iou s  
domest ic a nd g loba l customers .  US H RS or "DNS" a s  o u r  As ia n customers refe r to 
it, i s  ma rketed at the a bso l ute top va l ues in the g loba l wheat ma rket, d ue  to its 
u n iq ue  q u a l ity a nd performa nce t ra its. The Agr icu ltu ra l P rod ucts Deve lopment 
Cente r wi l l  a l l ow us  to extend th i s  p rem i um qua l ity a nd end-use pe rforma nce 
resea rch  to the  next leve l wh ich may we l l  i n c l ude  excit ing, yet to be exp lo ited 
n utr it iona l a nd d ieta ry benefits, a nd perha ps pha rmaceut ica l a pp l icat ions . 
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North  Da kota Agr icu ltu re a nd ou r  robust wheat i n du stry i s  i ndeed a "b ig dea l "  i n  p 3 
ou r  state, the fou r-state region, a nd  i n  the 50 to 60 g loba l ma rkets where mo re 
than  ha lf of ou r  h igh  q u a l ity, h igh  performa nce p rod uct ion i s  consu med a n n u a l ly .  
The benefits of "B ra nd i ng" or  the d iffe rent iat ion of o u r  h igh  q u a l ity wheat from 
wheats of other  or ig i n s  has  a l ready p rovided measu ra b l e  economic benefits i n  a n  
i ncreas ingly com pet it ive g loba l  ma rket. 

SB 2297 a nd the Agricu ltu ra l  Products Deve lopment  Cente r wh ich  is i n c l uded in it, 
p rovides us a great opportu n ity to fu rther  d iffe rent iate o u r  agr icu ltu re from the  
rest o f  the  pack .  

Tha nk  you for th is opportu n ity. 

If you have quest ions I wi l l  try to a nswer them . 
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U .S . HAR D R ED S P R I NG  

W H EAT ' ' DNS Wheat ' ' 

� U . S .  H RS < 2% of Tota l G lobal  Wheat Crop 

•!• "Customer Comment" 

� Brand i ng/D ifferent iat ion 

•!• Market D isti nct ion - Prem ium Qua l i ty/End Use-
Product Performance 

•!• Generates Producer Benefits 

•!• Repeat Bus i ness 

•!• Market Growth 

•!• Prem i um Prices 

� Other C lasses compete more d i rect ly with cheaper 
Russ ian med i um  to lower qua l i ty wheats 

�e,  J:)q r1 

• 1 -;t)j 
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U .S . HAR D R ED S P R I NG  WH EAT 

' ' DNS Wheat ' ' 

� Second largest wheat c lass produced i n  U . S .  

•!• More than ha lf produced i n  N D  

� Known for: 

•!• H ig h  prote in  content 

•• Superior  Dough strength , Stab i l i ty and Large Loaf Vo l ume 

sed Primari ly as a "B lend i ng"  wheat - to i ncrease Prote i n ,  Overa l l  
Qua l ity and  Performance 

Top End Specia lty Bread Products/As ian Nood les 

� Specific  App l i cations - Not #2 Yel low Corn or  More Generic  Wheat of 
other orig i ns 

� "C lean Label I ng red ient" for Processors/Bakers 

� H ig hest "Va lue Wheat" i n  G loba l  Market 
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Why Export and Domestic 

Customers Buy U .S .  Du rum 

Quality strengths inc lude bright yel low 
semol ina and pasta color, high protein,  
high semol ina extraction and strong g luten 

• Produc s high qua l ity pasta products 

• Als used for couscous and bread in l imited 

arkets 

" I  prover" of other wheats in mi l l  b lends 

ai lable year round - providing rel iable, 

able source of supply 

ne-third of U .S .  durum is exported 

'S 6  2-'2.Pt l 
1 � '3 1 - J 'f  

# L(  
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N D  W H EAT FACTS 
•!• "The Wheat State" - (3 of past 5 years) 

•!• Largest U .S .  H RS/DNS Crop i n  22 years 

•!• Record 48 BPA Yie ld 

•!• Largest C lass of U .S .  Wheat Exported - 3 of last 5 yrs .  

•!• N D  Wheat Acreage up  20% == 8 m i l l ion acres i n  201 8 
- 20 1 9 Prospects? 5-20% 

• 
<se, '2-29 1 

I -'bl  - l  q 
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•!• G reat Crop Qual ity Featu res - Grade/Prote i n/End-Use Performance i n  20 1 7 
/ nd 20 1 8 - 2 yrs back to back 

•• Va l ue of N D  Agricu ltu re - wheat == $2 B i l l ion (annua l  farm gate ---+ Price X 
Quantity) 

•!• N D  Ag Enterprise Chart - $8-9 B i l l ion cash Va lue  (Farm Gate) 

- Tota l Economic I mpact == $30-40 B i l l ion - N D  Ag ricu ltu re 

- Greater D ivers i ty 3 Major Crops + L ivestock == $6 + B i l l ion  (Farm Gate) 
B ig 4 Enterprises (wheat , corn , soybeans  & l ivestock) 

- Add it iona l  $2-3 B i l l ion - H ig h  Va lue  Specia lty Crops and Hay 

•!• Ag Product Development Center I n it iative 

- Capita l i ze on Futu re Market Opportun it ies 
- Transformationa l  Project - New Uses and Appl icat ions (N utrit iona l , 

D ietary, Pharmaceut ica l )  
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North Dakota Ag En terprise 
Va l ues p l us Crop I nsu ra nce 

• A l l  Wheat Soybeans Corn 
• Livestock  • Other  Crops • Crop I ns $ 1 4  �---------------

$ B i l l ion 1 1 .8 

$ 1 2 .-+----------------

$ 
8 .7  8 .6  

9 .4 9 .0 8 .3 9 .2 8 .9 9+ 

$6 

$4 

$2 

$0 co 0- 0 .-- N (Y) ""'-t" I..{) --0 r---.. co 
0 0 .-- .-- .-- .-- .-- .-- .-- .-- .--
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
N N N N N N N N N N N 
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I MPORTANCE OF AG R ICU LTU RE 

20 1 8 Pr i nc ipa l  C rops P l a nted Area 
(000) Acres and Change From Previous  Yea r  

8& 
76 NC 
5 

3 57 
40 

406 
-59  
1 , 582 
-66 

2,905 

# Record High 

N D  2nd on ly to I owa i n  Tota l 
P lanted Area 

6/29/1 8 
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North Dakota Stockmen's Association 

Testimony to the Senate Appropriations Committee on SB 2297 

Jan. 31, 2019 

Good morning, Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee. 

For the record, my name is Julie Ellingson and I represent the North Dakota Stockmen's 

Association, an 89-year-old beef cattle trade organization representing 3,000 cattle-ranching 

families. 

We stand in support of SB 2297 with respect to the funding for the Agricultural Products 

Development Center . The Center will include multiple agricultural components . The piece 

most significant to the state's livestock industry is its updated meats laboratory. 

Replacing the existing meats laboratory has long been a priority project of our association 

and the broader livestock industry, as the current facility is archaic. Built back in the age of 

poodle skirts and sock hops, the facility has had trouble meeting inspection specs because of 

its age . 

We are blessed to have some of the nation's top meat scientists working at NDSU.  They have 

been a part of game-changing research that has done everything from identify the most 

tender muscle in the beef carcass to scientifically refute the commonly held myth that eating 

beef contributes to premature puberty in adolescents. Still, these world-class scientists are 

conducting their work in a substandard facility that no longer meets today's rigorous 

standards. Their resourcefulness and ingenuity can only be expanded with access to an up­

to-date and well-equipped facility. 

The Agricultural Products Development Center is expected to pay dividends to the 

agricultural industry and, ultimately, the entire state as its no. 1 industry grows and 

flourishes . Additionally, it will help us train students in these important areas that will 

likewise benefit our industry and overall economy. 

To demonstrate our commitment to this effort, the Stockmen's Association has committed 

$25,000 of its own dues dollars to help support this major agricultural endeavor. 

Thank you for your consideration of this project . 



North Dakota 

it�g 
P.O. Box 1 091 

Bismarck, ND 58502 

(701 ) 355-4458 

FAX (701 ) 223-4645 

VOTING MEMBERS 

Independent Beef Association 
of N D  

Mi lk Producers Association o f  N D  

Minn-Oak Farmers Cooperative 

ND Ag Aviation Association 

ND Agricultural Association 

N D  Ag Consultants 

ND Agri-Women 

ND Barley Council 

N D  Corn Growers Association 

ND Corn Uti l ization Counci l  

N D  Crop Improvement & Seed 
Association 

N D  Dry Bean Council 

ND Elk Growers 

ND Ethanol Council 

N D  Farm Credit Council 

:ners Un ion 

. n Dealers Association 

ND Grain Growers Association 

ND I rrigat ion Association 

ND Lamb & Wool Producers 

N D  Oi lseed Council 

ND Pork Producers Counci l  

N D  Soybean Growers Association 

ND Stockmen's Association 

ND Wheat Commission 

Northern Canela Growers 
Association 

Northern Plains Potato Growers 

Northern Pulse Growers 
Association 

Northwest landowners 
Association 

Red River Valley Sugarbeet 
Growers 

U.S.  Durum Growers Association 

NON-VOTING MEMBERS 

BNSF Railway, Inc.  

El l i ngson Companies 

Garrison Diversion Conservancy 
District 

ND Association of Ag Educators 

rvation Districts 

,f Commission 

ND Department of Ag 

N D  Soybean Council 

N D  State Seed Commission 

N DSU Agricultural Affairs 

Testimony of Jim Bahm 
North Dakota Ag Coalition 

Executive Committee Member 
In Support of SB 2297 

Chairman Holm berg and mem bers of the comm ittee , my name is J im 

Bahm , and I am here today as a mem ber of the  Executive Comm ittee of  the  North 

Dakota Ag Coalit ion .  The Ag Coa l it ion has provided a un ified voice for North  

Dakota agricultural interests for over 35 years . Today, we represent more than 40 

statewide organ izat ions and associations that represent specific commod ities or 

have a d i rect interest i n  agr iculture . Through  the Ag Coal it ion ,  our mem bers seek 

to enhance the cl imate for North Dakota's agricultura l  producers . 

The Ag Coal it ion takes a posit ion on a l im ited num ber of issues, brought to 

us by our members , that have s ign ificant im pact on North Dakota's agriculture 

industry. The Ag Coal it ion supports SB  2297, specifica l ly  as it relates to the Ag 

Products Development Center, th is project is needed to continue the h igh-qua l ity 

research that is essential to the futu re of North Dakota's crop and l ivestock 

producers . 

The proposed Ag Products Development Center wi l l  serve as a 

replacement for Harris Ha l l  and the Meats Research Laboratory, which wi l l  bring  

new technology and  equ ipment to  ag research a t  NDSU as  wel l  as provide new 

teaching areas for crops, l ivestock and food science .  The current faci l it ies l im it 

research and education as the they can no longer provide the space, safety or 

technology that researchers and students need to carry out their  im portant work. 

The agricu ltura l  research faci l ities at NDSU are the foundation for North 

Dakota's ag economy. We recommend a Do Pass on SB 2297 as the Ag Products 

Development Center wi l l  s ign ificantly enhance research and education for the 

state's producers and future generat ions. 
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\ ------� � North Dal<ota 
� Grain Growers Association 

You Raise . We Represent. www.ndgga.com 

North Dakota Grain Growers Association 

Testimony on SB 2297 

Senate Appropriations Committee 

January 3 1, 20 19 

Chairman Holmberg, members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, for the record 
my name is Ed Kessel; I am a diversified family farmer from Dickinson, North Dakota 
and the 2st Vice President of the North Dakota Grain Growers Association (NDGGA). I 
appear before you in both capacities today in support of SB 2297. 

First Chairman Holmberg, members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, I would 
like to address the need for the Agricultural Products Developmental Center contained as 
a part of SB 2297. All of you are very aware of the critical need NDSU ag research 
serves in the economy of the state. North Dakota agricultural research is world renowned 
and our farms and ranches provide the best agricultural products in the world. To 
maintain and increase that standard North Dakota must invest in the facilities necessary 
to keep pace with the breakneck speed of technology today. Without those facilities we 
cannot attract the brightest and best to come to North Dakota to the detriment of North 
Dakota agriculture and the North Dakota economy. We cannot in any way afford that. 
The new Agricultural Products Developmental Center is a vital addition that is 
desperately needed today. 

However, the Agricultural Products Developmental Center is but a portion of SB 2297. 
All of the projects contained in the bill i .e .  Dunbar Hall, the Valley City State University 
Communications and Fine Arts building, and Pulver Hall at Dickinson State University 
all serve critical needs at their respective institutions . Together this is a forward looking 
package that will stand North Dakota in good stead well into the future. 

Therefore, the North Dakota Grain Growers Association would respectfully request the 
Senate Appropriations Committee give SB 2297 a Do Pass recommendation . 

NDGGA provides a voice for wheat and barley producers on domestic policy issues - such as crop insurance, disaster assistance 
and the Farm Bill - while serving as a source for agronomic and crop marketing education for its members. 

Phone : 701-282-9361 I Fax:  701-239-7280 I 1002 Main Ave W. #3 West. Fargo, N . D. 58078 



U.S .  Durum Growers Association 
PROMOTING THE PRODUCTION AND MARKETING OF DURUM AND SEMOLINA 

P.O.  Box 1091 • Bismarck, ND 58502 • (701 ) 214-3203 
office@durumgrowers.com • www.durumgrowers .com 

Testimony of Deana Wiese 
USDGA Executive Di rector 

In Support of SB 2297 

Cha i rman  Ho lmberg and  members of the com m ittee :  

My name i s  Deana Wiese, and I am the execut ive d i rector of the Un ited States Durum 

Growers Associ at io n .  I am  here today i n  support of  SB  2297, specifi ca l ly as i t  re lates to  the  

North Da kota State U n iversity (NDSU)  Agricu l tura l  P roducts Deve lopment Center and  Northern 

Crops I n st itute. USDGA recogn izes the importance of updated fac i l it i es, as  we l l  as  state-of-the  

a rt tech no logy and  equ i pment to  ensur ing the growth and  strength o f  the state's n umber  one  

i ndu st ry - agricu lt u re .  

The cu rrent fac i l it ies a t  Ha rri s Ha l l  no longer  p rovide  the  space or  safety needed to 

ca rryout resea rch that is vita l ly important to the  p rod ucers in ou r  state .  The p roposed 

Agricu lt u ra l  Products Deve lopment Center a nd  Northern Crops I n stitute wi l l  a l low N DSU to 

conti n ue  to de l ive r research-based so lut ions needed to ensu re North Dakota's fa rmers and  

ranchers a re ab l e  to  p roduce and ma rket su per ior com mod it ies to  g loba l  customers .  

North Da kota p rod uces 60 percent of the  n at ion's  d u ru m, and N DSU's  d u ru m  breed i ng  

program i s  essent i a l  as  no sign ificant other  pub l i c  o r  p rivate b reed ing  p rograms exist. I t  i s  

essent ia l  that the app ropriate faci l it ies exist to cont i n ue  th i s  research .  I n  add it ion ,  Ha rr is H a l l  

hosts a nnua l  foreign trade de legations to  showcase the  qua l ity o f  the  regions  crops for 

worldwide food product ion . Ha rris H a l l ' s  des ignat ion as  one of the top two bu i l d i ngs i n  the 

poorest cond it ion at N DSU does not p rovide  for a posit ive "showcase" of North Dakota's h igh­

qua l ity com mod it ies .  

Agricu l ture i s  and wi l l  conti nue  to be the  fou ndat ion of our state's economy, and these 

fac i l it ies a re essent i a l  to North Dakota agricu ltu re ma i nta i n i ng i ts  p resence i n  the  g loba l 

ma rketp lace .  Therefore, we'd apprec iate you r  support and  encou rage a Do Pass 

recommendat ion of SB  2297. 
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Robert Ferebee 

8447 2nd ST SW 

Halliday, N.D. 5863 6 

Chairman Holmberg, members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, for the record my 
name is Robert Ferebee; I am a diversified family farmer from Halliday, North Dakota. I 
come before you today in support of SB 2297 .  

Chairman Holmberg, members of  the Senate Appropriations Committee, I want to  make it 
clear that I support all of the proj ects included in SB 2297. All of them are very important 
to the state of North Dakota; they will provide the infrastructure necessary to keep North 

Dakota in the leadership position that it is in today. For my testimony today I want to focus 
on one aspect of SB 2297;  that being the Agricultural Products Developmental Center at 
NDSU 

The Agricultural Products Developmental Center proj ect and its inclusion of the Northern 
Crops Institute is really an all in one center enveloping grains, l ivestock, and trade all in one 
neat package. All of these various aspects of ag research are very important to my farming 
operation in Halliday. I plant crops, I raise livestock, I sell my products both in foreign and 

domestic markets; the research that will come out of the Center will help me to compete in 
the global marketplace. Additionally, the research from the Center will help to support new 

and existing markets which will provide an economic benefit not only to me and my family 
but to the state and region as a whole. 

Therefore, Chairman Holmberg, members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, I am 
very pleased that the Agricultural Products Developmental Center is a part of this larger 
infrastructure package; I support the whole package because of  the enormous benefits it 
will provide for my state. 

Robert Ferebee 



• • • 
NORTH DAKOTA BU ILD ING AUTHORITY DEBT SERVICE 

201 7A 

2006B/2001 A  

201 08 2006Af2000Af1 998A Other Energy Total 1 0% of $ .01  Avai lab le 
Biennium 2002A 201 0A/8 201 2A 2005A Totals  Source Conser. Gen.  Fund Sales Tax* Debt Ser  
201 7- 1 9  9 1 7 , 1 44 504,531 1 ,809,463 9 ,894,867 1 3 , 1 26,005 1 , 1 46 ,91 1 507,785 1 1 ,471 ,309 47,250,320 35,779 ,01 1 
201 9-2 1 928 ,088 490,888 1 ,797,750 7,361 ,250 1 0 ,577,976 1 , 1 40 ,293 431 ,844 9 ,005,839 42 ,095,500 33,089,661 
202 1 -23 492 ,700 481 ,056 909,000 6 , 1 9 1 ,750 8 ,074,506 840,392 423,295 6 ,8 1 0 ,8 1 9  - 42 ,095,500 35,284 ,681 
2023-25 0 465,981 0 2 ,782,875 3 ,248,856 499,31 7 207,649 2 ,54 1 ,890 42 ,095,500 39,553,61 0  
2025-27 0 448 , 1 8 1  0 0 448 , 1 8 1  448 , 1 8 1  0 0 42,095,500 42,095,500 
2027-29 0 425,469 0 0 425,469 425,468 0 0 42,095,500 42,095 ,500 
2029-3 1 0 1 74,031 0 0 1 74,031 1 74,031 0 0 42,095,500 42,095,500 
Totals  2 ,337,932 2,990, 1 37 4 ,51 6 ,2 1 3  26,230,742 36,075,024 4 ,674,593 1 ,570,573 29,829,857 

3 .24% 3.33% 1 .4 1 %  1 .53% 

Revised 1 1 /23/201 8  

The statutory l im itation 
is  based on the 
Legis lative March 
201 7 forecast with a 
0% increase each 
subsequent b ienn ium.  
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Bonding 

State of North Dakota • 

Common Bond Structures 
General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds 
• Full Faith and Credit Pledge • Revenue Pledge 
• All legally Available Revenues • Specifically Defined Revenue Source 
• Taxing Power • No Property Taxing Power 

• Not Subject to Appropriation • Covenants to Ensure Revenue Sufficiency 

• Not Subject to Appropriation 

Appropriation (Lease) Bonds Grant Anticipation Bonds 

• Special Obligation Pledge • Pledge of Future Grant Funding 

• All legally Available Revenues • Specifically Defined Revenue Source 

• No Taxing Power • No Taxing Power 

• Subject to Appropriation • Not Subject to Appropriation 

• -

1 
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State Agency Debt Paid by Appropriations 

Building Authority AA Lease Revenue/ Biennial appropriations (including General $20 ,855,000 
Appropriation Fund, Local Match Funds, Federal Funds & 

Lease income) 

Dept of Aa1 Grant Anticipated Federal Highway Grants & 9, 880,000 
Transportation Anticipation Revenue Funds & appropriated State 

Highway Fund revenues 

Total $30, 735,000 

-

State Agency Revenue Bonds 
These Bonds are not repaid from State appropriations 

Housing Finance Aa1 Homeowner Mortgage Loan Repayments $1 ,021 ,91 5 ,000 
Agency 

Public Finance Aaa SRF Loan repayments from political subdivisions 497, 705,000 
Authority AA- CFP ($ 1 54,71 5,000 has moral obligation) 

Student Loan Non- Student Loan payments 1 ,000,000 
Trust rated 

University System Various Parking Fees, Housing Fees, Student Fees 270,552, 548 

Total $ 1 , 791 , 1 72, 548 

-

2 
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Ratings l01pact Bond Interest Rates 

• Rating Agencies (Moody's, Standard & Poor's and Fitch) rate both G .O .  and Revenue bond 
credits on a scale in order to rank or categorize the credit worthiness and proximity to 
default of an Issuer and their obligations 

• While many sophisticated Investors do their own credit research, ratings play a critical role 
in the minds of most market participants and are perceived by the market as a guide of an 
Issuer's credit worthiness 

• U ltimately, credit ratings play a significant role in broadening the investor base for an issuer 
and usually having a strong rating enhances an I ssuer's access to Investors, helping to lower 
their cost of capital 

Rating Scales 
• Rating agencies have different rating scales 

• Ratings below Baa3/ BBB- (Moody's/S&P/Fitch, respectively) are considered "below investment grade" 
and generally Issuers with such ratings are not considered credit worthy enough for most municipal 
investors 

I nvestment Grade Rating Sca les 

Moody's Aa3 A1  A2 A3 Baa1 Baa2 Baa3 

SliPIFitch A+ A A- BBB+ BBB BBB-

-

3 



Standard & Poor's ND Rating 

Rating H istory 

Date Action Rating Outlook 

September 26, 20 1 8 Affi rmation AAT Stable 

February 1 8, 20 1 6 Downgrade AA Stable 

December j1 3 , 20 1 3  Upgrade AM Stable 

May 1 2 . 20 1 1 Outlook change AA.-. Positive 
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General Obligation Debt Nationwide 
Use of genera l  o bligation ( G O )  d e !;>t va ries widely by state 
GO debt as % of NTSD 

0% 1 % - 30% 

Mr 

10 
WY 

co 

AZ. NM 

AK 

HI . 

Source: Moody 's lnvesrors Service 
8 

6 1 %  - 90% • More than 90% 

ND 

SD 

NE 
IA 

KS 

OK 

TX 
FL 

-

4 



1 0  

Net Tax-Supported Debt 
Per Capita & Percentage of Personal Income per Moody's 

He! T ax.Supponed Debt Per Capita Rating let Tax-Supported !Rbt as a %  ol 1016 Personal Income 
1 Connecli:u! $6,544 A1 1 Hawai 10.4% 
2 �tts $6,005 Aa1 2 � 9.5% 
3 Hawan $5,257 Aa1 3 Qmectut  9.5% 
4 NewJer� $4,281 ,J H a.lelsey 7.r//o 
5 NewYC(k �.002 Aa1 S m  5.6% 

46 lo#a �19 Aaa' im 0.5% 
47 Monlara im Aa1 47 t.balia 0.4% 
48 Nooh Dakola 11� Aal' 48 tblll DakcAa 02% 

49 W�m� � NGO" 4� Yfyoolilg 0. 1% 

� Neb'm �o Aa1' � �rasM 0.0% 

Relative Debt Ratios 

• Moody's calculated ND 's Net-Tax Supported Debt (NTSD) as  $ 1 00, 763,000 
• Based upon Moody's comparative analysis of state NTSD the following provides what 

ND 's NTSD would be based upon metrics for surrounding states 

North Dakota Aa1*  $1 33 $1 00,763 0.2% $1 00, 763 0. 1 9% 
Minnesota Aa 1  $ 1 ,430 $ 1 , 083, 392 2 .8% $ 1 ,4 1 0,682 2 . 35% 
South Dakota Aaa* $694 $525, 786 1 . 5% $755, 723 1 .25% 
Wisconsin Aa1 $1 ,660 $1 ,257,643 3 .6% $ 1 , 8 1 3, 734 3.07% 
Montana Aa 1  $ 1 77 $1 34, 098 0.4% $201 , 526 0.40% 
I ndiana Aaa* $295 $223,497 0 .7% $352,671 0 .57% 
Iowa Aaa* $21 9  $165,9 18  0 .5% $25 1 , 908 0.37% 
Idaho Aa 1 *  $482 $365, 1 71 1 .2% $604, 578 1 . 2 1 %  

1/31/2019 
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$ 100 ,763 
$ 1 , 246,279 

$662,914 

$ 1 , 628, 1 1 8  
$21 2, 1 33 
$302,289 
$1 96,223 

$641 , 701  
Median of  All States $987 $747,768 2 . 3% $ 1 , 1 58,775 2. 57% $ 1 , 362, 952 

'" Issuer credit rating {No GO debt outstanding) 

-

5 
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2019-2021 Proposed Bonding 
Create Revolving Loan Funds 
Bill SB 2214 Executive lb"'-t Recommendation SB 2275 Eoecutlve lb"'-t Recommendation 

Program Name ,chool Construction Assistance School Construction Assistance Infrastructure Revolving Loan nfrastructure Re,,otvtng Loan 
Revolving Loan Fund Re,,olvtng Loan Fuid Fund Food 

Amount of Bonding $250,000,000 $250,000,000 ,soo,000,000 ,soo,000,000 
Biennial Debt Service Not Specified Not Specified $55,000,000 $55,000,000 Maximum 

f\ppropriation from Foundation k;eneral Fund monies derived k;eneral Fund monies derived k;eneral Fund mootes den-.ed Repayment Source Aid Stabilization Fund �ram Legacy Fund Earnings •ram Legacy Fund Earnings �rom Legacy Fund Earnings (new source of repayment) 

Essential Infrastructure Projects bsential Infrastructure Projects 
Use of Proceeds School Construction Projects School Construction Projects or Political Subdivisions and •or Pol1tical Soodfvtstons and 

Institutes of Higher Education nstftutes of Higher Education 

Existing Program MDCC 1 5 . 1 -36·08 1 5. 1 -36-08 �-09-49 6-09-49 

Determines Projects Department of Public Instruction [DePartment of Public Instruction Bank of North Dakota Bank of North Dakota 

Administers the Fund Bank of North Dakota �nk of North Dakota Bank of North Dakota � of North Dakota 

Issues the Bonds Public Finance Authority Public Finance Authority Public Finance Authority Public Finance Authority 

Overall Goal 

Senate Bi l ls 22 1 4  and 2275 wi l l  create 
revolving loan funds , that when 

mature ,  wi l l  no longer requi re bienn ia l  
appropriations . They wi l l  continue to 

lend funds to meet i nfrastructure 
needs . 

1 2  -
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$1,600,000,000 

$1,400,000,000 

$1,200,000,000 

$1,000,000,000 

� 
$800,000,000 
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$600,000,000 

$400,000,000 

$200,000,000 

$-

14 

2019-2021 Proposed Bonding 

Bond 

Bill SB 2268 SB 2297 

Program Name orridors of Commerce North Dakota Building 
Authority 

Amount of Bonding $ 100,000,000 ) 1 5 1 , 700,000 
Biennial Debt Service $16 ,000,000 Not Specified (legislative limit 
�aximum of 10% of $.01 sales tax) 

Repayment Source �eneral Fund monies derived Lease Rental Payments from 
�rom Legacy Fund Earnings Funding Recipients 

�pecific Projects listed: NDSU 

�tate Highway Projects that Dunbar Hail, VCSU 
ommunications and Fine Arts Use of Proceeds ·mprove freight transportation Building, NDSU Agriculture and facilitate commerce Products Development Center 

and DSU Pulver Hail 

Existing Program NDCC New 54- 1 7. 2  

Determines Projects Department of Transportation Defined in Bill 

�dmtnisters the Fund Department of Transportation ND Building Authority 

1
1ssues the Bonds Public Finance Authority ND Building Authority 

Assumes 3% Ea rn ings 2017-2029 
Assumes 4% Earnings 2029-2037 

Payment 

Gross 
Transfer Net Transfer 

j l 
17-19 19-21 21-23 23-25 25-27 27-29 29-31 31-33 

• Combined Earnings • Bond Payment • Net 

33-35 

1/31/2019 
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Bond 
Payment 

Gross Net 
Earnings Earnings 

35-37 

7 



$180,000,000 

$160,000,000 

$140,000,000 

$120,000,000 

$100,000,000 

$80,000,000 

$60,000,000 

$40,000,000 

$20,000,000 

$-

1 5  

1 6  

Foundation Aid Stabilization Fund 
Amount for Appropriation after $25,000,000 Bond Payment 

Gross 
Transfer 

Bond 

2019-21 

Net Transfer 
I 

I 
2021-23 

I I 
2023-25 2025-27 

Additional Bonding 
Infor1nation 

2027-29 

1/31/201 9  
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Moody's ND Credit Opinion 
Rating: Aa 1 Stable 

Credit strengths 

» Conservative state fiscal management practices, rrost recently highlighted by toe state's retum to structLral balance and 
restoratior, of bu<iget stabiization hl1ds 

» substantial reseives, Mich are budgeted to grow o,er the nex1 l)jennium 

» Vert low debt. pension and OPEB tialilities lead to loN fixed costs that will support continued financial flexibilit)' 

Credit challenges 

December 20, 2018 

» Narrow economy that is concentrat.d in the energt and agriculturol sectors, which are vulnerably to comrrodity price volatility 

• Very tight labor marl:Ei 

» Increased reliance on oil arul gas tax revenues to support general fund operations 

» OWnership of a bant tril1gs wlneraality to losses, particu,arty in the eYEnt of steep economic deterioration like 1he recent energy 
sector con11action 

Rating outlook 
The stcble OU11ook reflects the state's progress towards structural ba.ance and rapid restoration of reserves as the economy and 
revenues continue to reccver from the 2016 erergy recession Recent declines in o·I prices will likely result in some economic and 
revenue ,olatiit/, ho-, the state's en"'ID' ecorxmy ond fJ1oncial reserves are weU-po�tioned to weather some short term 
disruotions at tt.s ;ime_ 

Moody's ND Credit Opinion December 20, 2018 

Factors that could lead to an upgrade 

» Meaningful diversification of state economy 

» Reduced general fund exposure to oil and gas tax revenues 

» Reduced exposure to Bank of North Dakota 

Factors that could lead to a downgrade 

» Failure to restore structural balance and replenish the budget stabilization fund as currently planned 

» Renewed economic volatility that results in revenue underperformance 

» Depletion of reserves below the previous low 

» A move away from conservative fiscal management 

1/31/2019 
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Standard & Poor's ND Rating 

1 9  

Rating: M+ Stable 

What We're Watching 

Although the economy is current ly showing signs of growth and stabi lity, as a large energy 

producer, the state is vulnerable to boom-and -bust cycles. 

The contin ued softness in the agricultural sector, partly due to trade tens ions, wi ll a lso likely 

li m it persona l income and economic growth. 

Pens ion underfund ing has increased net pension liabi lities: however, the state's proportionate 

share is managea ble. i n our view. 

Credit Fundamentals 

Strong  executive abi lity to reduce expenditu res and demonstrated willingness ot the legislatu re 

to realign appropriat ions w ith est imated revenue collection s. 

Very strong budgetary reserves, includ ing a legacy fund at $5.86 bi l lion, provid i ng North Dakota 

with sufficient flex ib ility to weather economic cycles. 

Low debt burden with rapid amortization and no plans to issue new debt with in the current 

bienn i um. 

Bond Terininology 

20 

- Buyer of the Bond is the lender or investor 

- Sel ler of the Bond is the borrower or issuer 

- Amount of loan 

- Repayment date of loan 

- Interest rate paid periodical ly on the loan 

- Usual ly expressed as a percentage of par amou nt 

- Amount a lenderwil l lend in  con sideration of future 
receipt of principal and interest payments 

- Single rate that sets the present value  of the 
principal and interest payments equal to the  price 

December 20, 2018 

1/31/2019 
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ND General Obligation Bonds 
Article X, Section 13 of the North Dakota Constitution 

The State may not incur general obligation debt un less evidenced by a bond issue authorized by 
law for clearly defined purposes. 
Every law authorizing a general obligation bond issue must: 

• Provide for a levying of an annual tax, or make some other provision, sufficient to pay the interest 
semiannually and the principal within 30 years from the date of issuance. 

• Specifically appropriate the proceeds of the tax levy, or such other provision, to the repayment of the 
principal of and interest on the bonds. 

The appropriation referred to above may not be repealed, or the tax or other provision 
discontinued, until both the principal of and interest on the bonds have been paid . 
General obligations bonds in excess of $2,000,000 must be secured by a first mortgage upon 
either of the following: 

• A first mortgage on real estate for no more than 65% of the value of the real  estate . 
• A first mortgage on real or personal property of State-owned utilities, enterprises or industries for no 

more than the value of the utilities, enterprises or industries. The State may not issue or guarantee 
bonds secured by property of State-owned utilities, enterprises or industries in excess of 510 ,000,000. 

The State may not issue debt in excess of the limit set out in this section except for one of the 
following purposes: a)  repelling invasion , b) suppressing insurrection , c) defendin� the State in 
t ime of war, and d )  providing for the public defense in case of threatened hostilities. 
Currently, there are no outstanding General Obligation Bonds of the State. 
21 

Who Buys Bonds? 

22 

Retai l Investors 
, Wealthy l ndividuals-"Mom & Pop" 
, Retail Proxies 

Investment/ Financial Advisors 

Bank Trust Departments 

Institutional Investors 

• Mutual Funds-Fidelity Investments, Vanguard 

, Insurance Companies-AIG, Allstate, State Farm, USM 

, Banks 

, Corporations 

1/31/2019 
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23 

24 

Bond Issue Process 
• Kick-off meeting or conference calls 
• Working group calls to discuss 

-Document drafts, e.g., POS/NOS/0S 
-Ratings presentation (if applicable) 
-Pricing scales 

• Rating agency calls 
• Publish Preliminary Official Statement (POS) ft Notice of Sale (NOS) 
• Receive rating 
• Pre-Pricing Book (only on negotiated sales) 
• Bond marketing and pricing period 
• Sell bonds - either competitive or negotiated 
• Publish the final Official Statement (OS) (and closing certificates) 
• C lose the issuance 
• Issue closing certificates 
• Produce the Financial Advisor Memorandum (FAM) 
• Transcript produced and distributed by bond counsel 

Taxable vs Tax-Exempt Bonds 
Benefit of Tax-Exempt Bonds 

• Cost of financing is generally lower for issuers 
• Interest paid to bondholders is not includable in their gross income for federal income 

tax purposes 
• This tax-exempt status remains throughout the life of the bonds provided that all 

applicable federal tax laws are satisfied both at the time the bonds are issued and 
throughout the term of the bonds 

• Interest rate is approximately . 5% less than taxable bonds 

Primary Objectives of Federal Laws 
• No private activity 
• No arbitrage 

Benefit of Taxable Bonds 
• No private activity restrictions 
• No arbitrage calculations or compliance with other complex regulations 

1/31/2019 
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Taxable vs. Tax-Exentpt Bonds 
Appropriation Bonds are most likely considered: 
• taxable if the appropriation is tied specifical ly to investment earnings of the Fund 

(Legacy Fund, Foundation Stabi lization Fund, etc . ) .  

• tax-exempt if  the appropriation is from the General Fund . 

Bond Counsel determines the taxabil ity of the bonds 

25 

Moral Obligation 
Generally requi res that the state agency issuing the bonds m ust notify the Governor 
or other executive branch office by a certain date in the fiscal year that a bond 
reserve fund deficiency exists or is  expected to occur. 

The Governor or other executive officer is then required to submit i n  the executive 
budget a request for an appropriation that wi l l  be sufficient to restore or cover the 
reserve fund deficiency. 

The State Legislature then has a mora l  (but not legal ) obligation to provide the 
requested appropriation to replenish the reserve fund . 

26 
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Bond Sales 
Con1petitive vs. Negotiated 

27 

Competitive Sales: An Issuer and their Financial Advisor procure bids from a variety 
of Underwriters on the obligations they are planning to issue and select one bid 
( i .e . , the lowest costing bid) 

Negotiated Solicitation : An Issuer selects an Underwriter or a group of underwriting 
fi rms and works with the selected Underwriter(s) to price obligations through 
negotiation with the Underwriter(s) and Investors 

The issuer and financial adviser look at factors such as security type and transaction size typically to 
help determine the best method of sale to utilize. 

Bond Issue Expenses 

28 

Cost of Issuance 
• Ratings 

• Bond/Tax Counsel 

• Financial Advisor 

• Registrar/ Paying Agent/Trustee 

• Printer 

• Miscellaneous 

• Verification Agent 

• Escrow Agent 

• Escrow Bidding Agent 

Underwriter's Discount 
• Management Fee 

• Takedown 

• Underwriting Risk 

• Expenses 

Underwriter's Counsel 
Bood Desk 

CUSIP 

DTC 
Out-of-Pocket 

Cost of issuance and underwriter's discount can range from 5 to 7% of the bond issue. 

1/31/2019 
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Required Reserves 
General Obligation Bonds 

• Reserves are not required 

Appropriation 
• Reserve may be required 

Revenue Bonds 
• Reserve fund is required 
• I RS limits the reserve to the lesser of: 

• 1 0% of par 
• 1 25% average annual payment 
• Maximum annual principal and interest payment 

29 

Post-Issuance Con1pliance 
Spend Down Requirements 

Pooled bond issuers are required to spend 30% of bond proceeds within 1 year and 95% within 
3 years.  

Continuing Disclosure 
I ssuer covenants to provide ongoing disclosure of both routine financial information on an 
annual basis and periodic notification upon certain events, e .g . , defeasance of bonds 

Arbitrage Rebate 
If the bonds are tax-exempt, the I ssuer may be required to rebate investment earnings in 
excess of the bond yield to the federal government every five years 

Rating Maintenance 

30 

Issuer may be required to provide ongoing updates to the rating agencies and may be 
required to pay ongoing surveillance fees for variable rate transactions 

1/31/2019 
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Contact Infor1nation 

Karlene Fine 
ND Industrial Commission 
328-3722 
kfinel.ilnQ gQY 

DeAnn Ament 
ND Public Finance Authority 
426- 5723 
dament 'ilncl g QV 

Kelvin Hullet 
Bank of North Dakota 
k lhul let nd QQ 

31 
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1 9. 1 02 1 . 0 1 00 1 
Tit le .  

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Wardner 

January 2 1 , 201 9 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE B ILL NO. 2297 

Page 1 ,  replace lines 1 9  and 20 with: 

"North Dakota state university agriculture products development center 
Northern crops institute project 

Page 1 ,  line 24, remove "and northern crops institute" 

Page 2 ,  line 1 ,  replace "$1 4,000 ,000 , "  with "$6 ,000,000" 

Page 2 ,  after line 3 ,  insert: 

54,000 , 000 
1 0 ,000 ,000" 

"The northern crops institute may obtain and utilize federal and other funds for 
the northern crops institute project . There is appropriated to the northern crops institute 
the sum of $8,000 ,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from any federal 
or other funds that may become available for this p roject for the period beginning with 
the effective date of this Act and ending June 30 , 202 1 . "  

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides separate appropriation authority for the North Dakota State 
University ag riculture products development center and Northern Crops Institute p rojects rather 
than providing one appropriation for both p rojects . 

Page No. 1 1 9 . 1 02 1 . 0 1 00 1  
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19.1021.01002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Sorvaag 

February 5, 2019 

PROPO SED AMENDMENT S TO SENATE BILL NO. 2297 

Page 1, replace lines 18 through 20 with: 

"Valley City state university communications and fine arts building project 
North Dakota state university agriculture products development center 
Northern crops institute project 

Page 1, replace line 22 with: 

"Total 

Page 1, line 23, replace "may" with "shall" 

Page 1, line 23, after "utilize" insert "at least $6,000,000 of' 

Page 1, line 24, remove "and northern crops institute" 

¥/ 
Sd JJ.-'1 1 
� - {, - .;zo , 1 

fj I 
32,275,000 
54,000,000 

10,000,000" 

$151,975,000" 

Page 1, line 24, after "project" insert ", and the funds must be committed and available to be 
spent before the industrial commission may issue bonds for the project" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "$14,000,000" with "$6,000,000" 

Page 2, line 2, remove "any" 

Page 2, after line 3, insert: 

"The northern crops institute shall obtain and utilize at least $8,000,000 of 
federal and other funds for the northern crops institute project, and the funds must be 
committed and available to be spent before the industrial commission may issue bonds 
for the project. There is appropriated to the northern crops institute the sum of 
$8,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from federal or other funds 
that may become available for this project for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act and ending June 30, 2021." 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment: 
• Provides separate appropriation authority for the North Dakota State University 

agriculture products development center and Northern Crops Institute projects rather than 
providing one appropriation for both projects; 

• Increases the bonding and appropriation authority for the Valley City State University 
communications and fine arts building project by $275,000, from $32,000,000 to 
$32,275,000; and 

• Requires federal and other funds to be available for the North Dakota State University 
agriculture projects development center and the Northern Crops Institute projects before 
the Industrial Commission may issue bonds for the projects . 

Page No. 1 19.1021.01002 
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SENATE B I LL 2297 
Bond i ng B i l l  

M r. Cha i rman  a n d  House Approp riations  Com mittee .  

R ich Wa rdne r  

I b r ing before you S B  2297 a General F u n d  Ob l igat ion Bond i ng  b i l l .  The fo l lowi ng  a re the 
p roposed p rojects .  

Dunbar Hal l  (Chemistry Bu i l d i ng  on the campus  of N DSU )  Cost- $5 1,200,000 

Th is  bu i l d i ng  has safety issues .  The cost to the  State if an accident  h appened cou l d  cost the 
state more than a new bu i l d i ng. 

Marchllth 2019 
SB  2297 

Attachment 

Ag Development Center and Northern Crops Institute (Ag Commod ity G roups  on the  cam pus 
of N DSU )  
Ag Development Center 

Cost- 54,000,000 bond ing  and  a 6,000,000 match from Ag Commod ity G roups .  

Northern Crops Institute 

Cost- 10,000,000 bond ing and  8,000,000 match from othe r  sou rces .  (M i nnesota, Montana  and  
South Dakota .  ) 

Communication and Fine Arts Bui ld ing on the  campus  of VCSU .  Cost- 32,000,000 

Cu rrent ly th i s  bu i l d i ng  is on the wrong s ide of the flood p rotect ion d i ke .  

Pu lver Ha l l  Remode l  on the campus  of DSU .  Cost- 4,500,000 

Summary 
Project 

Dunba r  Ha l l  
Ag  Deve lopment Center 
North Crops I n stitute 
Comm u n icat ion and Fine Arts 
Pu lver Ha l l  Remodel  
Tota ls  

Bonding 

5 1,000,000 
54,000,000 
10,000,000 
32,000,000 
4 500 000 

15 1,700,000 

I 

Match 

6,000,000 
8,000,000 

14,000,000 
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March llth 2019 

SB 2297 

Attachment I 

It is my op in ion  that the Legis latu re wi l l  at some  po int do these p rojects, and  if we wa ited the 

cost wi l l  grow to more than ,  bond i ng  and bu i l d ing now. 

A 4.5% i nte rest rate on  a SO-m i l l ion-do l l a r  p roject pa id back over 30 yea rs wi l l  cost $ 16,320,000 

in i nte rest over the  th i rty years . 

F ive yea rs of inflat ion wou ld  grow to a h igher do l l a r  amount th an  the 16 p l u s  m i l l ion and be 

added on to the cost of the same bu i l d i ng  project be ing constructed five yea rs l ater . 
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ADVANCING N DSU'S 
AGRICU LTURAL PRODUCTS 
DEVELOPM ENT CENTER 

An investment i n  agricu lture, 
food q u a l i ty a n d  safety 

For nearly 70  years, North Dakora Start.: University's Mears 
Rcscarch I .aburacory anJ f l arris I fall have bccn homc to 
world-class agricul tural n . .:scarch an<l scholarship. 

The knowledge an<l <liscoYcry that have flowed from the 
l aboratories and classrooms have played a critical role 
i n  Lransforming agricul ture produc tion i n to the d in:rsc, 
cfficit:nt anJ h ,gh-tcch i n<lusr.ry it i s  m<lay . 

.'\.griculturc's many ad,·anccmcnts, howc.:vcr, haYc also 
outpaced the capabi l , t ics o f  I l arris I !a l l  and the l\leats 
Research 1 .aboratory. Bui l t  i n  the early 1 950s, the faci l i ties 
were construcu:d i n  an c.;ra whcn agricultural education am.I 
research were ddin:rcd very d i ffr:rcntly than today. 

( her the years, N DSU has periodically modi fied l lanis l lall 
and thl'. Mcars lksearch I ,aboratory in an ongoing efforr ro 
accommodat(.; advanc(.;S in rest:arch and education, address 
heal th an<l safely conn:rns, and comply wi th modern-Jay 
bui l.<ling codes anJ heal th standards. 

l ;acil i ty assessmt:ms show that the uniYcrsity has cxhaust{;d 
all options to moJ ify l larris ·1 fall and thc Meats Research 
Laboratory. The faci l ities can no longer al.kquatcly support 
the educ:uion and rest:arch programs within rhe College of 
Agriculture, l •'uod SystLms and Natural Rcsl>UfC(.;S. 

.'\ t :-.rake i:-. the col lege's ability to continue delivering research­
based solutions that a(.h-ancc North Dakma's brgcst and 
most imponant economic sector. Also ar stake: is the college's 
compctitiYe strength in securing gram funding and the continue<l 
aliYanct.ment of educational progr1mm111g and outreach services 
that hdpcJ shape modem ag,iculrurc and established N DSU's 
repurarion as a top-tier land-grant, res{;arch uniYc.:rsity. 

, \ rapidly growing world population, global food safety and 
security conct:rns, new and inYasin:: pests and antimicrobial 
resistance arc just a few of the many eYuh-ing issues that ft'<...)Uirc 
investment in inrnwativc research ,tntl education at N DSU. 

• • 

SOLVI NG AG RICU LTU RE'S EM ERGING ISSUES 
TH ROUGH DISCOVERY AN D SCHOLARS H I P  

A v is ion for the futu re 

N DSU proposes constructing a new, state-of-the-art  
facility called the Agricul tural Products Development 
Center to replace I l arris I Jail and the Meats Research 
Laboratory anJ bt::t tcr serve.: !-tudcnts and the 
agriculture industry of today and tomorrow. 

Agriculture producers in North Dakota and the greater 
region arc regarded in both domestic and international 
markets as the supplier of choice for high-9uali1y 
commodities. That wcll-carnc<l reputation, 
however, i s  threatened by ban-icrs to research. 

The :\griculturnl Products Development Center wil l 
accdcratt: rransformati011al discc>Vc11·, t:mpoweting 
faculty scicntisr.s 1 s tudents and the agricul ture 
i ndustry m more cffectivdy tackle :-.onu.: of the 
mosr perplexing issues facing crop and l ivestock 
production, food systems and tht: development of 
new agricul tural products. 

The cenrer wi l l  house analytical laborntorics 
with advanced equipment that will ful ly support 
the col lege's cereal chemistry and crop quality 
program, one of only two such programs in the 
nation. 1 t  wil l  support a wider range of research 
innJIYing food science, mt:at scit:ncc, muscle 
biology, food safety, nutri tion, consumer sensory 
traits an<l the dcYclopmcnt of new agricultural 

products .  Designed to meet federal and state 
food processing and food handl ing regulations, 
the center's labs wil l  expand research gram 
opportunil ics and partnerships with fcdcral and 
staw agencies. 

Scudcnts will benefi t  from modern learning 
cnYi ronmcnts that wi l l  bet ter prepare them for 
2 1 s t-century careers in agricul ture and food 
systems. The ag,iculture industry seeks graduates 
who arc trained in cutting-edge food science l abs 
with the latest technologies. 

The centt:r a.lso wil l eliminate costly and ongoing 
maintenance issues as well as safety concerns 
throughout I l arris I l al l and the Mears Research 
Laboratory. Plans arc to demolish f l arris f fa l l  and 
rcpurposc th(; culkge's Meats Research I �aborarory, 
which is  housed in Sheppard A rena. Shepperd 
Arena wi l l  continue to host the Little International 
I .iYestock Show an<l lJthcr c,·cnts. 

Supporting rrnnsfonnative learning experiences and 
research within NDSU's College of /\griculture, Food 
Systems and Natural Resources is an invcslmcnt in 
agriculture.: and the common good - an investment 
that will pay diYidends for years to come. 

-
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Marchllth 2019 

SB 2297 

Test imony of G reg Svenn i ngsen,  Vice-Cha i r, North  Da kota Wheat Com m iss ion 

SB2297 

Attachment 3 

March  1 1, 2019 

Good morn i ng M r. Cha i rma n a nd membe rs of the House Appropr iat ions 
Com m ittee .  My name is G reg Svenn ingsen .  I am he re today a s  the  Vice-Cha i rma n 
of the  North  Da kota Wheat Com m iss io n .  

The No rth Da kota Wheat Comm iss ion has  a long-sta nd i ng, l eve raged resea rch  
re lat i ons h i p  w i th  North  Da kota State U n ive rsity' s Agricu ltu ra l  Exper iment Statio n .  
Today we  sta nd  i n  strong su pport o f  Senate B i l l  2297, wh ich i n c l udes a p rovis ion 
fo r the  Agr icu ltu ra l  P roducts Deve lopment Cente r .  The Cente r a s  p roposed wi l l  
great ly imp rove resea rch ca pab i l it ies and  req u i red i nfrastructu re d i rectly re l ated 
to ou r m iss ion a nd co re p rogra ms, p r ima ri ly p romot ion a nd deve lopment of 
p rodu ct ion ,  ma rket ing, a nd growth opportu n it ies for No rth Da kota agr icu ltu re 
a nd the  No rth  Da kota wheat i ndust ry .  The Agricu ltu ra l  P roducts Deve lopment 
Cente r wi l l  g reat ly adva nce the deve lopment of, a nd ma rket ing o pportu n it ies fo r 
agr icu ltu ra l p roducts a nd re l ated cutt ing edge tech no log ies .  Th i s  w i l l  fu rther  
enha n ce p roduct ivity of  a l l  of  North  Da kota's  i nc reas i ng ly d ive rse agr icu ltu ra l cro p  
a nd l ivestock e nte rpr ises .  As a resu lt, add it iona l econom ic benefits wi l l  accrue to 
eve ry comm u n ity a nd  c it ize n i n  the state . 

M uch  of o u r  resea rch pa rtnersh i p  i s  cu rre nt ly focused on  the i m p rovement of 
genet ics, va r iet ies, p l a nt p rotect ion ,  ma nagement p ract ices a nd customer  
p l eas i ng  tra its, a l l  a imed at  imp roving the bottom l i ne of  North  Da kota wheat a nd 
d u ru m  prod u ce rs .  The Wheat Com m iss ion's  ave rage a n n u a l  budget i s  a bout $4 . 5  
m i l l io n  do l l a rs a nd i s  fu nded so l e ly b y  North Da kota wheat a nd d u ru m  p roducers .  
Approximate ly one-th i rd of these fu nds  a re a n n u a l ly i nvested i n  resea rch 
p rogra ms, p r ima r i ly conducted at No rth Da kota State U n ive rs ity' s ma i n  stat ion 
a nd region a l  b ra nch stat ion s ites, su pp l ement ing state a nd fede ra l  resea rch 
com m itments . 

An essenti a l  e l ement of the wheat resea rch  effort i s  a n a lysis of the qu a l ity and  
performa nce featu res of  each  a n n u a l  crop, wh ich i s  i n  tu rn u sed  a s  a p romotiona l 

• a id i n  the  ma rket deve lopment a rena . Su rvey data co l l ected d u ri ng each ha rvest 

I 
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Attachment3 
is com p i led i n  a com prehensive report i l l u strat ing the u n iq ue  q u a l ity 
character ist ics a nd typ ica l ly su perior  pe rformance tra its of the a n nua l  sp r i ng  
wheat  a nd d u rum  crops when com pa red to wheat of  othe r  o r ig i ns .  Ove r the past 
s ix decades th is  report ha s  grown to become the ha l l m a rk a nd  ch ief sa les  too l of 
the US wheat i ndustry i n  growing domestic a nd  g loba l ma rkets i n  more tha n 50 
desti nat ion countr ies .  The crop  q u a l ity report a nd acco m pa nyi ng sem i n a r  se r ies 
have become the ma i n  featu res of the "techn ica l se rv ice package" p rovided to 
regu l a r  a nd prospect ive customers at a n n u a l  ove rseas  crop q u a l ity sem i n a rs 
sponso red by the North Da kota Wheat Com m iss ion ,  o u r  pa rtne rs i n  the sp r i ng  
wheat  region, and our  i nte rnationa l pa rtner  o rga n i zat ion ,  US Wheat  Associates .  

These cr it ica l ly importa nt fu nct ions  a nd many more wheat q u a l ity a nd 
performance resea rch p rograms  a re performed by wor ld  c lass  scie ntists i n  Ha rr is 
H a l l , a n  ag ing fac i l ity located on the N DSU  ca m pus .  The exist i ng faci l ity ca n not 
su pport the techno logy nor the a na lyt ica l p roced u res a nd eq u i pment req u i red i n  
t he  cu r rent ma rket envi ronment a nd ce rta i n ly wi l l  no t  meet the  expectat ions of 
the fut u re .  

Rep lacement of the ag ing a nd i ncreas i ngly defic ient fac i l ity i s  one  o f  the 
importa nt goa ls add ressed i n  SB  2297.  A s im i l a r, pa ra l le l  goa l i nvo lves rep l ac ing  
the eq u a l ly importa nt N DSU meats l ab  faci l ity, wh i l e  p reserv ing the h isto r ic 
Shepperd Arena,  nea r a nd  dear to North Da kota agr icu ltu ra l i sts a nd l ivestock 
p rodu ce rs .  Forwa rd look ing effo rts on beha lf of a l l  No rt h  Da kota crops such  a s  
soybea ns, corn, a nd n ume rous othe r  h igh va l u e  s pec ia lty crops ca n be  s im i l a r ly 
add ressed th rough th i s  expa nded,  m uch more techno logy d r iven fac i l ity . 

Wheat i s  one of ou r  state's p r ima ry agr icu ltu ra l e nterpr ises, a key com ponent of 
ou r  state's l a rgest i ndust ry a nd a top revenue  gene rator fo r o u r  state economy. 
Sp r i ng  wheat is ve ry impo rta nt to ou r  p roducers a nd the i r  ve ry q u a l ity consc iou s  
domest ic a nd globa l customers .  US H RS or "DNS" a s  o u r  As ia n customers refe r to 
it, is ma rketed at the a bso l ute top va l ues in the g loba l wheat ma rket, d ue  to its 
u n iq ue  q u a l ity and performa nce tra its . The Agricu ltu ra l  P rod ucts Deve lopment 
Cente r w i l l  a l low us to extend th i s  p rem i um  q u a l ity a nd end-use performa nce 
resea rch to the next leve l wh ich may we l l  i n c l ude  excit i ng, yet to be exp lo ited 
n utr it io n a l  a nd d ieta ry benefits, a nd perhaps pha rmaceutica l a pp l icat ions . 
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March11th 2019 
SB 2297 

Attachment 3 
North  Da kota Agricu ltu re a nd ou r  robust wheat i n d ustry i s  i ndeed a "b ig dea l" i n  
ou r  state, t h e  fou r-state region, a nd i n  t he  50 to  60  g loba l ma rkets where more 
tha n h a lf of ou r h igh q u a l ity, h igh  performa nce p roduct ion is consu med a n n u a l ly .  
The benefits of "Bra nd i ng" or the d ifferent iat ion of ou r  h igh q u a l ity wheat from 
wheats of othe r  orig i ns  has  a l ready p rovided mea s u ra b le  economic  benefits i n  a n  
i ncreas i ngly com pet itive g loba l  ma rket. 

SB 2297 a nd the Agricu ltu ra l Products Deve l opment Cente r wh ich  i s  i nc l uded  in it, 
p rov ides us a great opportu n ity to fu rther  d iffe rent iate ou r  agr icu ltu re from the 
rest of the pack .  

Tha n k  you for th is opportu n ity. 

If you have quest ions I wi l l  try to a nswer them . 

Save as :  Users/Nea l/Nea l -Draft Test imony-House vers ion 5B2297, 3 -11-2019 
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U .S . HAR D R ED S P R I N G  

WH EAT ' ' DNS Wheat ' ' 

� U . S .  H RS < 2°/o of Tota l G lobal  Wheat Crop 

•!• "Customer Comment" 

� Brand ing/D ifferent iat ion 

•!• Market D ist i nct ion - Prem i um Qua l i ty/End Use-
Product Performance 

•!• Generates Producer Benefits 

•!• Repeat Bus i ness 

•!• Market Growth 

•!• Prem ium Prices 

� Other C lasses compete more d i rectly with cheaper 
Russian med i um  to lower qua l i ty wheats 

• 
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U .S . HAR D R ED S P R I N G  W H EAT 

' '  D NS Wheat ' ' 

� Second largest wheat class produced i n  U . S .  

•!• More than ha lf produced i n  N D  

� Known for: 

•!• H ig h  prote in  content 

•• Superior  Doug h strength , Stab i l i ty and Large Loaf Vo l ume 

sed Primari ly as a "B lend i ng"  wheat - to i ncrease Prote i n ,  Overa l l  
Qua l ity and  Performance 

Top End Specia lty Bread Products/As ian Noodles 

� Specific  App l i cations - Not #2 Yel low Corn or  More Generic  Wheat of 
other  orig i ns 

� "C lean Label I ng red ient" for Processors/Bakers 

� H ighest "Va lue Wheat" i n  G loba l  Market 
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Why Export and Domestic 

Customers Buy U .S .  Du rum  

• Qua l i ty strengths i nc l ude bright  ye l l ow semo l i na 
and pasta co lo r, h igh protein ,  h igh semo l i na 
extraction and strong g l uten 

• Produces h igh qua l ity pasta products 

•!• Also used for couscous and bread in l im ited 
markets 

• " Improver" of other wheats in m i l l  b lends 

• Avai lab le year  round  - provid ing re l iab le ,  stab le  
source of supp ly 

• One-th i rd of U .S .  du rum is exported 

• 
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N D  WH EAT FACTS 
•!• "The Wheat State" - (3 of past 5 years) 

•!• Largest U .S .  H RS/DNS Crop i n  22 years 

•!• Record 48 BPA Yie ld 

•!• Largest C lass of U .S .  Wheat Exported - 3 of last 5 yrs .  

•!• N D  Wheat Acreage up  20% == 8 m i l l ion  acres i n  201 8 
- 201 9 Prospects? 5-20% 

• 

•!• Great Crop Qual ity Featu res - Grade/Prote i n/End-Use Performance i n  20 1 7 
, nd 20 1 8 - 2 yrs back to back 

•• Va l ue of N D  Agricu lture - wheat == $2 B i l l ion (annua l  farm gate ---+ Price X 
Quantity) 

•!• N D  Ag Enterprise Chart - $8-9 B i l l ion cash Va lue  (Farm Gate) 

- Tota l Economic I mpact == $30-40 B i l l ion - N D  Agricu ltu re 

- Greater D ivers i ty 3 Major  Crops + L ivestock == $6 + B i l l ion  (Farm Gate) 
B ig  4 Enterprises (wheat , corn , soybeans  & l ivestock) 

- Add it iona l  $2-3 B i l l ion  - H igh  Va lue  Specia lty Crops and Hay 

•!• Ag Product Development Center I n it iative 
- Capita l i ze on Futu re Market Opportun it ies 

- Transformationa l  Project - New Uses and App l i cations (N utr it iona l ,  
D ietary, Pharmaceut ica l )  
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North Dakota Ag En terprise 
Va l ues p l us Crop I nsu ra nce 

$ Bi l l ion • Al l  W heat Soybeans Co rn 
$ l 4 �-=•=-=L�iv'-=ec.=cs t'-=o--=c_:__e_k __ •_O-=--,_:_th-'-=e'-!.--r -=C�ro�s_•--=C�ro�l�n=--s --
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USDA -
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I M PORTANCE OF  AG RI CU LTU RE 

20 1 8 Pr i nc i pa l  Crops P l a nted Area 
(000) Acres and Change From Previous  Yea r  

8& 
76 NC 
5 

357  
40 

406 
-59 
1 ,582 
-66 

2,905 

# Record H igh 

& Record Low N D  2nd on ly to I owa i n  Tota l 
P lanted Area 

NC = No Change 

6/29/1 8 

• 



• 

• 

• 

,
-------

� 
� North Dal<ota 

�\ Grain Growers Association 
You Raise .  We Represent. www.ndgga.com 

North Dakota Grain Growers Association 

Testimony on SB 2297 

House Appropriations Committee 

March 1 1, 2019 

March l lth 2019 
SB  2 297 

Attachment � 

Chairman Delzer, members of the House Appropriations Committee, for the record my 
name is Jeff Mertz; I am a diversified family farmer from Hurdsfield, North Dakota and 
the President of the North Dakota Grain Growers Association (NDGGA) . I appear before 
you in both capacities today in support of SB 2297 .  

First Chairman Delzer, members of the House Appropriations Committee, I would like to 
address the need for the Agricultural Products Developmental Center contained as a part 
of SB 2297. All of you are very aware of the critical need NDSU ag research serves in 
the economy of the state. North Dakota agricultural research is world renowned and our 
farms and ranches provide the best agricultural products in the world. To maintain and 
increase that standard North Dakota must invest in the facilities necessary to keep pace 
with the breakneck speed of technology today. Without those facilities we cannot attract 
the brightest and best to come to North Dakota to the detriment of North Dakota 
agriculture and the North Dakota economy. We cannot in any way afford that. The new 
Agricultural Products Developmental Center is a vital addition that is desperately needed 
today. 

However, the Agricultural Products Developmental Center is but a portion of SB 2297 . 
All of the projects contained in the bill i .e .  Dunbar Hall, the Valley City State University 
Communications and Fine Arts building, and Pulver Hall at Dickinson State University 
all serve critical needs at their respective institutions . Together this is a forward looking 
package that will stand North Dakota in good stead well into the future . 

Therefore, the North Dakota Grain Growers Association would respectfully request the 
House Appropriations Committee give SB 2297 a Do Pass recommendation and would 
ask that the full House concur. 

NDGGA provides a voice for wheat and barley producers on domestic policy issues - such as crop insurance, disaster assistance 
and the Farm Bill - while serving as a source for agronomic and crop marketing education for its members. 

Phone : 701-282-9361 I Fax:  701-239-7280 I 1002 Main Ave W. #3 West. Fargo, N . D . 58078 
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Attachment  !S 

PROPOSED VCSU CAPITAL PROJECT 
Construction of Communication and Fine Arts Bu i ld ing 

Va l ley City State Un iversity has an urgent need to construct a new Communication and Fine Arts Bu i ld ing. 
Permanent flood protection for the VCSU campus has put Foss Hal l  on the wrong side of the floodwal l .  

Estimated Cost: $32,275,887 (project will eliminate $2,579,413 in deferred maintenance) 

The Proposa l 

The proposed Com m u n ication and  Fi ne 
Arts Bu ild i ng wi l l  replace Foss Hall and 
consolidate the Art a nd M usic progra ms 
in one facil ity, which will a lso i nclude the 
Com m u n ication Arts Depa rtment. 

Every student complet ing the general  

The Need 

Foss Ha ll (bu i lt in 1963), 
VCSU 's m usic bu i ld i ng, sits 
d i rectly on the ban ks of the 
Sheyenne R iver. As the City 
of Valley City has installed 
perma nent flood protection­
protect ing the city a nd the 
VCSU ca mpus-Foss Hall is 
located on the wrong side of 
the floodwall. 

To protect students and 
state assets, Foss Ha ll must 
be razed a nd its fu nctions 
replaced elsewhere on 
ca m pus. 

ed ucation progra m at VCSU will ta ke 
at least 2 cou rses (6 c red its) in this 
bu i ld i ng. 

Estimated at slightly less tha n 
$32.3 m i ll ion ,  the project is needed 
because the installation of permanent 

I 

flood protect ion along the river has 
put Foss Ha ll on the wrong side of the 
floodwall. It wi ll a lso a llow VCSU to reti re 
more tha n $2 .5  m i ll ion i n  deferred 
ma i ntena nce by razi ng Foss Ha ll .  



The Benefits 

• Gather com m u n icat ion and  fi ne a rts 
progra ms- 5 majors ,  5 m i nors and  
4 certificate programs-u nder  one roof, 
provid i ng students with conso l i dated ,  
u pdated fac i l it ies. 

• Raze Foss Ha l l ,  provid i ng 
a deferred ma i ntena nce 
savi ngs of $2.5 m i l l i on .  

• Ach ieve organ izationa l 
effic iency through com mon 
box office and  sha red 
ad m i n istrative support, a nd 
achieve space effic iency 
through m u lti-use workrooms 
a nd performa nce a reas. 

• House at least 2 of VCSU 's 
req u i red genera l  ed ucation 
cou rses, giv ing a l l  freshmen 

on  ca mpus access to modern c lassroom 
fac i l i t ies and  i nc reased exposure to the 
a rts. 

Renovation of McCarthy unworkable for music bu i ld ing 

The Executive Budget exp lo res a 
renovat ion of McCa rthy H a l l  to meet 
Va l ley City State Un ive rs ity's need to 
rep lace Foss Ha l l .  U nfortu nate ly, that 
poss i b i l ity is u nfeas ib le .  

Bu i lt i n  1930 ,  McCa rthy has rema i ned 
la rge ly u ntouched over ti me ,  and its 
deferred ma i ntenance a lone fa r exceeds 
the Executive Budget figu re. 

The McCa rthy Ha l l  i nfrastructu re a nd 
design a re from another  era .  Although 
extensive renovat ion m ight a l l ow it to 
fu nct ion as a trad it iona l  c l ass room 
bu i l d i ng, conve rti ng it to a modern ,  
fu nct iona l  music bu i l d i ng with fi rst-rate 
space for c lasses , stud ios, ensemb le  
rehea rsa l space and  a recita l ha l l  

i s  u nworka b le given its 
structu ra l l i m itations a nd 
i nfrastructu re defic ienc ies .  

We m ust a lways ask 
ou rse lves what is best for our  
students a nd our  u n iversity. 
The outsta nd i ng student 
m us ic ians a nd futu re m usic 
ed ucato rs at Va l l ey City State 
Un ivers ity need a fi rst-rate 
fac i l ity to enhance the i r  
ed ucationa l  exper ience, a nd 
the teach ing of ta lented and 

ded icated facu lty mem bers wi l l  be  greatly 
enhanced by a new bu i l d i ng, as wi l l  the 
recru iti ng of new students . The futu re 
of m usic at VCSU depends on look ing 
forwa rd , not j ust mak ing  do. 

McCarthy Ha l l  Renovation Needs 
McCa rthy H a l l  wou ld need the fo l lowi ng 
major imp rovements: 

• Asbestos a batement/remova l 

• A i r  ha n d l i ng system with duct work 

• P ip ing throughout the bu i l d i ng: water 
l i nes, sa n ita ry sewer l i n es, remova l of 
existi ng stea m l i nes, and  insta l lation of 
water loop and  stea m converter system 

Marchllth 2019 
• P rovide ADA access ib i l ity (cu rren\!¥t 2297 lack ing i n  Foss Ha l l )  i n  the new bu il'd1ng I\ , 
with a n  e levator. Attachment er' 

• Create a ppropriate acoustics i n  
performance and  pract ice space, a long 
with proper c l i mate contro l to  preserve 
expensive i nstru ments .  

• Foster a n  atmosphere of col l a borat ion 
and  i nsp i rati on ,  a n  i nterd isci p l i n a ry 
approach to creative p rob lem-so lv ing a n d  
i n novation ,  and  a synergy em bodyi ng 
the VCSU core va l ues of i n novat ion and  
com m u n ity, by com bi n i ng the fi ne a rts 
with the com m u n ication a rts programs i n  
one bu i l d i ng. 

• Penthouse for mecha n ica l  systems 

• Roofi ng with i nsu lation ,  EPDM rubber 
roofi ng mem bra ne, and flash ing 

• Insu lation for exter ior  wa l ls 

• Energy-effic ient wi ndows 

• New electr ica l wi r ing a nd cond u it 

• Tuckpo i nt ing of br ickwork 

• E levator to accom modate la rge 
i nstruments such as gra nd p ia nos 

• Fi re-prevention spr i n k le r  system 

Limitations for Special  Spaces 
The structu ra l  design of the bu i l d i ng  and  
its footpr int ca n n ot accommodate the 
la rge open spaces needed for cho i r  and  
band  rehea rsa l rooms, which requ i re 
sunken and  e levated terraced rooms 
respective ly, a long with acoustic featu res 
and  treatments that both reprod uce 
sound accu rate ly and  protect m us ic ia ns '  
hea ri ng. 

Conclusion 
It doesn 't make fi nanc ia l  sense to 
renovate McCa rthy H a l l  for a music 
bu i l d i ng. 

� VALLEY CITY 'V' STATE U N I V E RS I TY 

Val ley City State Un iversity • President's Office 
101 Co l l ege St SW • Va l ley City, ND 58072 
701-845-7102 • www.vcsu .edu 
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March11th 2019 
SB 2297 

Attachment &! 

Chair Delzer and Committee Members: My name is Laura Nelson, the Interim Vice President for 

Finance and Administration at Dickinson State University, and I am here today to testify and 

provide information on Senate Bill 2297 . Dickinson State is working on improving the structures 

and bringing programs onto campus. One of the buildings we are working on improving is Pulver 

Hall. Dickinson State would like to make a home on campus for the TR digital Center. Over the 

past ten years the TR Digital Center has become internationally respected and known. They have 

digitized 50,000 documents as of May 201 8, by working out of two offices in the basement of the 

Dickinson State University library. Another program we have on campus is the TR Honor Program. 

This program is for bright and hardworking students, they do community service, research, and 

internships .  By renovating Pulver Hall it will create living and working spaces for the TR Honor 

students. Overall the Pulver Hall project will create a home for the TR Digital Center as well as 

living and working spaces for the TR Honor Program. 

Therefore, we have no objections to this bill and would recommend its approval. 

Thank you. 

No rth  Da kota U n ivers ity System I Crea t i ng  t he  N DUS  Edge I F i n d  o ut how at N D US . e d u  

I 
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Marchllth 2019 

Comments to the North Dakota House Appropriations Committee 

Representative Jeff Delzer, Chair 

Submitted by DeAnna Carlson Zink, Chief Executive Officer 

Un iversity of North Dakota Alumni  Association and Foundation 

March 11, 2019 

DeAnna Carlson Zink/UND Alumni Association & Foundation CEO: 

Chairman Delzer and Members of the House Appropriations Committee - good afternoon. I am 
DeAnna Carlson Zink, CEO of the UND Alumni Association and Foundation. Thank you for 
allowing me the opportunity to appear before you today. 

SB 2297 

Attachment 1 

I am here to talk with you about an exciting project at the University of North Dakota that we are 
engaging donors on at this moment. 

The State Board of Higher Education, the North Dakota Legislature, and the UND Alumni 
Association and Foundation Board of Directors have approved fundraising for a new $70 million 
state-of-the-art College of Business & Public Administration building in the heart of the quad at 
the University of North Dakota. With more than 22,000 alumni from the College of Business & 
Public Administration and more than 40 percent of these alumni staying in North Dakota to live 
and work, the economic impact of this project is monumental . 

We have been around the region and country in recent months talking with potential donors 
about this project and we are finding tremendous enthusiasm among our alumni and friends. One 
thing, though, that we hear time after time is that these potential major six-to-seven to even 
eight-figure donors want to partner with the state to make this building a reality. 

So, we are asking this committee and your fellow lawmakers to consider committing $20 million 
in state funds to be matched by $50 million from our donors. 

The current home of the College of Business and Public Administration is more than 50  years 
old and the college has outgrown it. 

I 'd  like to call on the dean of the college to speak about why this project is so critical to the 
success of our students. So please allow me to introduce Dean Amy Henley: 

Amy Henley/Dean of the UND College of Business & Public Administration:  

My name is Amy Henley and I am incredibly proud to serve as  the Dean of the College of 

• 
Business and Public Administration at the University of North Dakota. 

Page 1 
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When our current home was built, half a century ago, Gamble Hall provided an excellent home Attachm
.
ent 1 

for our students, staff, and faculty. It has continued to produce leaders in public and private 
sectors . But a lot has changed over the decades. 

As the state ' s  first accredited business col lege, I am proud to say that we have gained a national 
reputation for excellence. Our graduates are highly sought after throughout the United States, but 
we are proud that many choose to stay right here in North Dakota and make a difference in their 
communities and in our state. As a result of our national reputation, we have seen increasing 
enrollment that has led us to outgrow our current space. 

Also, the space we do have is no longer adequate for the way in which students want to learn. 
Creativity, emotional intelligence, leadership, and cognitive flexibility are the current must-have 
skills for the workplace . Tomorrow' s students need a place for hands-on learning to interact and 
hone those skil ls , not just sit and listen. Many of Gamble Hal l ' s  classrooms are designed as 
lecture hal ls with tiered levels and inflexible seating. Gamble Hall is no longer equipped to 
accommodate and attract our current or future students. It doesn' t  have the interactive and 
collaborative spaces we need, or an innovation hub to inspire the new ideas for future businesses 
to benefit the state, nor does it have space where students can come together outside of the 
classroom for conversations with their classmates, faculty, and inspirational leaders . Instead, 
they congregate in the only non-classroom space they can find; on old couch under the stairwell .  

Our space is  not set up with the kind of  innovative technology that students will continue to • 
demand in the future. We have had some amazing, engaged donors who have stepped up to help 
provide our students with access to data such as real-time stock exchange infonnation and 
lessons from experienced leaders in their fields. When Gamble Hall  was built, there was no way 
to predict how rapidly changing technology would impact future education needs. Not only do 
faculty need access to rapidly advancing technology changes to aid in their teaching and 
research, students are continually demanding access to state-of-the-art technology to aid in their 
learning. A new home for the College of Business and Public Administration would allow us to 
design a modem space with an infrastructure that would provide maximum flexibility in adapting 
to changing technological needs and opportunities . 

Further, we suggest that the construction of a new home would be a more financially sound path 
for our future. Experts have determined that that the deferred maintenance and capitol renewal 
needs for Gamble Hall will total $ 1 9  million. 

A new building equipped to educate the business and public leaders of the future - businessmen 
and women, accountants, financial experts, economists, government officials - including 
legislators - will help UND and the State of North Dakota compete with business schools both 
regional ly and nationally for the best and brightest students from North Dakota and beyond . 

Page 2 
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Finally, I offer that a new College of Business and Public Administration building would help m,Attachment 1 
strengthen our partnerships with alumni and the business community in North Dakota and 
beyond . 

Thank you for the opportunity to share my perspective with you today. 

DeAnna Carlson Zink: 
Given the conversations we've been having with alumni, we are confident that with a state match 
of $20 million, our donors will recognize the state' s  commitment and invest in this project as 
dedicated partners . 

In fact, we have a dedicated alum prepared to give a major lead gift to this capital project with a 
match from the state. 

I 'd  like to read a letter from this anonymous donor to you: 

He writes . . .  

Dear Chairman Delzer and Members of the House Appropriations Committee, 

I am a proud native of the great state of North Dakota and a graduate of the University of North 
Dakota College of Business & Public Administration. I am extremely proud of my North Dakota 
roots and very grateful for the strong education I received at UND. The hard work ethic that is 
instilled within me was developed in North Dakota - it' s a trait that has served me both 
personally and professionally throughout the years. 

Because I believe in giving back and investing in the state, people and the University I hold so 
close to my heart, my wife and I are committing a gift of $20 million to lead the development of 
the proposed College of Business & Public Administration building. This gift is  conditioned on 
the state providing a $20 million match fund for all gifts to its proposed new building project. 

I strongly believe the state of North Dakota should financially support the University of North 
Dakota at the highest level possible through this new College of Business & Public 
Administration building. 

This state-of-the-art building will be a place that produces strong business leaders who will, in 
tum, invest back into this beautiful state. This new building is essential for UND to recruit, retain 
and graduate top students that will become our future business leaders, meeting essential 
workforce needs of the state. 

I thank you for your consideration to invest in this monumental project for the University of 
North Dakota, the state, region, and the world . 

Page 3 
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My wife and I are committing to make a difference in the lives of students for generations to Attachment 7 
come and believe this partnership with you is essential in empowering leaders of tomorrow. We • 
ask for your commitment as well .  

Sincerely, 

Anonymous Donor 

Esteemed members of the committee, this anonymous donor is a true North Dakota success 
story, and he and his wife want to make a difference in the lives of UND students today and for 
decades into the future by making this lead gift to a new College of Business and Public 
Administration building. 

They, like several other potential donors, are asking for a partnership with the state to make this 
project happen. 

I ask that you strongly consider including a match for this capital building project. With it, you 
will work hand-in-hand with our donors and investors to build a brighter future for UND 
students and the great state of North Dakota. 

We have some supplemental materials that we are going to leave for you to look at regarding the 
building proposal . It includes a brochure that we are using as we visit with donors . 

And at the bottom of this printed testimony, you can find a link to a video that we show donors 
as we bring them up to speed on the project. 

If you have any questions, Dean Henley and I will be happy to answer them. 

Thank you. 

CoBPA building video : www.bit.ly/UND _ CoBP A 

Page 4 
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E M P O W E R  
LEADERS 
We bring the world to our students and 

our students to the world. 

The Un iversity of North Dakota Col lege of Business and Pub l ic Admin istration is 
embarking on a $60 m i l l ion campaign to bu i ld  a faci l ity for the future . 

Th is  i s  the b iggest ph i lanthropic capital project our  un iversity has ever undertaken .  We 
depend on leaders l i ke you to provide the spark for th is transformational faci l ity at North 
Dakota's Flagsh ip  Un iversity. The countdown to a world-class education starts now. 

March llth 2019 
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$60 m i l l i o n  p h i l a nth rop i c  Atta��!!�: 1 

p roject that wi l l  empower 
th e l eade rs of tomorrow. 
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i n t e r n s h i p s f o r 

Attachmeni7 

u n d e rg r a d u a t e s  

f r o m 40% t o  

7 5% o f  s t u d e n t s .  

Our new, technologically advanced building 

will empower the next generation of business 

leaders by giving them a place for hands-

on learning where they can hone their 

creativity, emotional intelligence, leadership 

and cognitive flexibility. 
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Goa l :  G row 

en ro l lment 

to 2 , 800 · 
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Attachment1 
When a student sets foot on campus, how 
long does it take to decide if they want to 
attend that university? 7 minutes. 

Imagine their reaction when they see 
a state-of-the-art business and public 
administration building located at the heart 
of campus, placed prominently on the quad 
along University Avenue. 

� 
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Goa l :  I ntroduce 

new majo rs ,  such  

as  Data Ana lyt i cs .  

Marchllth 2019 
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In addition to more than 2 000 students Attachment 1 ' ' 
faculty, and staff, at least 15,000 prospective 

students, families and community members 

visit the college each year through campus 

tours, symposia, career fairs, and conferences. 

This traffic will increase dramatically as our 

new, cutting-edge facility will be the premier 

academic building and event venue on campus. 
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CONTACT: 

President, Un iversity of North Dakota 
701 .777.21 35 I mark . r. kennedy@ UND.edu 

Dean , UNO College of Business & Publ ic Admin istrat ion 
701 .777.21 35 I amy. hen ley@ U ND.edu 

C hief Executive Officer, UNO Alumn i  Association & Fou ndation 
70 1 .777.2538 I deannac@UNDfoundation .org 

Associate VP, Senior Di rector of Development 
701 .777.4 1 06 I kimw @ U NDfoundation .org 
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Cha i rman  De lzer a nd members of the a ppropriations committee it is a n  honor to Attachment 

testify before you for Senate bi l l  2297 and specific for replacement of Harris Ha l l  
with the  Ag Products Development Center. 

I 'm David Clough a fa rmer from Fessenden .  I served on the North Dakota Wheat 
Commission for 12 years as a commissioner but I term out last year a nd now I 'm 
just a nother North Dakota fa rmer. 

As many of you know Harris Ha l l  is very outdated, with many of the l abs having no 
runn ing water u n less you count runn ing to the men's restroom on 3rd floor to get 
water by the pa i l  fu l l .  There's not enough power to run a l l  the lab equ ipment and  
fuses a re sti l l  used in Harris Ha l l, when  by the  70's most new construction was 
us ing ci rcu it breakers. Some of you you nger ones m ight not know what a fuse is .  
Going to Harris Ha l l  is to have a h istory lesson .  In fact severa l years ago a foreign 
trade team sa id when they went through Ha rris Ha l l  they d id n't know they were 
going to tour  a working museum .  

When I fi rst started farming after col lege i n  1968 I put most of the crop in  with a n  
8 foot p low, packer and pony dri l l .  If I sti l l  fa rmed l i ke that today I wou ld  b e  out of 
business. But yet we expect our scientists, researchers, teachers a nd staff to work 
in these poor cond it ions. 

Spring wheat usua l ly brings a premium of $1-2 per bushel over winter wheat. We 
need a cerea l science to do the testing to keep that qua l ity of spring wheat up to 
keep that premium.  If we lost $1-2 per bushel for our wheat what wou ld that do 
the state budget? 

I sti l l  remember over 10 years ago I was on a US Wheat boa rd team to Southeast 
Asia and a mi l ler in  Solo, I ndonesia sa id to me "we can buy winter wheat 
anywhere in the world but we ca n't buy spring wheat just a nyplace" . 

North Dakota rea l ly needs the Ag Products Development Center for Cerea l 
Science, Food Science and Meat Science. Thank  you for you r  attention, a re there 
any questions? 

I 
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Mason Rademacher 
NDSU Student Government 
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Chairman Delzer, members of the House Appropriations Committee, for the record my name is 
Mason Rademacher and I currently have the pleasure to serve as the Executive Commissioner of 
External Affairs on behalf of NDSU Student Government. I am here today in support of SB 2297 
wanting to share a student perspective on the need for a new Dunbar Hall and a new Ag Products 
Development Center. 

In its current state, Dunbar Hall simply poses a critical safety risk to students, staff, and faculty . 
Building a new Dunbar Hall has been on the list of capital projects for the last several biennia, 
but unfortunately, the funding level has never been met to trigger the construction. Originally 
built in 1 963 , Dunbar Hall has served thousands of students throughout its life, but it now lacks 
the basic functions required to teach students. Some of Dunbar ' s  most noticeable needs include a 
lack of working fume hoods, an outdated HV AC system, poor plumbing, and an overall lack of 
space. 

When doing experiments expected in a chemistry building, it is imperative to have 
working fume hoods to ensure hazardous materials are removed from the room . 
However, Dunbar is filled with fume hoods that do not properly close, thus exposing 
faculty, staff, and students to dangerous and unhealthy conditions . 

Although it would seem possible to simply replace the outdated and non-working vent 
hoods, the reality is, because of the state of the HV AC system, this is not possible. The 
HV AC system has crossed well beyond its useful life and has had many failures which 
have resulted in multiple disruptions and evacuations. Similarly, to the vent hoods, the 
HV AC system cannot be simply replaced as this is not feasible while the building is 
occupied. 

Due to the nature of the building, and the chemicals used during research, Dunbar' s 
plumbing infrastructure has corroded beyond repair. The location of some sections of 
piping make it impossible to replace it and out of safety concerns, it should arguably no 
longer even be used. 

A building being utilized for the purpose of chemistry and research should have adequate 
storage space to properly house all of the dangerous chemicals students and faculty 
require . However, this is simply not the case . During a fire inspection in June of 20 1 7 , the 
fire marshal deemed Dunbar Hall to be in violation of multiple points of the fire code 
because of the lack of proper storage space. Faculty and students were forced to store 
extremely flammable liquids, which have the ability to spontaneously ignite and are 

I 
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corrosive, on open shelves and in rooms that had no sprinklers. After actions were taken 
to correct these violations, Dunbar Hall was still not safe. In December of 20 1 7  one of the 
labs within the building caught fire, and because there was no sprinkler system, caused 
far more damage to the room, and smoke damage to the rest of the building, than it 
should have during the 1 5  minutes of flames.  

For NDSU to remain as one of the more respected research institutions in the region, we cannot 
afford to lose Dunbar Hall due to a fire, and we cannot continue to be restricted to the size of the 
building which prevents the university from investing in additional research equipment, 
providing faculty and researchers the space necessary to conduct their work, and students an 
environment where they can learn successfully . 

The Ag Products Development Center, most commonly known on NDSU' s  campus as Harris 
Hall, was originally built in 1 954 has since endured four additions . However, much like Dunbar 
Hall, this building ' s  core infrastructure is well beyond its useful life .  The building currently 
suffers from outdated plumbing, poor HV AC systems, and a lack of storage . 

Simply put, the plumbing within the building is inadequate . Rooms all throughout suffer 
from poor water pressure and easily clogged drains . With the lack of running water, 
researchers often have to carry buckets of water from other builds, or floors, to conduct 
their work - which can easily be contaminated during this travel .  

The poor HV AC systems create issues in the building because i t  cannot adequately 
handle all of the grain processing that occurs within its walls .  In some particular labs, the 
only ventilation is the air conditioning unit, and even in the winter, has to be utilized to 
help circulate the air throughout the room. 

Furthermore, the building is not large enough to handle the storage of the grain, flour, and 
containers needed by researchers to conduct their work. Often times, these items need to 
overflow into lab and office spaces .  

Building a new Dunbar Hall and Ag Products Development Center is no easy task, and is  
undoubtedly expensive, but if  the state sees a strong investment in higher education from its 
legislative leaders, we as NDSU students, and students across the state, can build on that 
momentum and truly make North Dakota' s  colleges destination locations for students not only 
from the state, but also from around the region, and the country . We as students know the value a 
new Dunbar Hall would bring to NDSU and also recognize that a new Ag Products Development 
Center is critical for the future of North Dakota' s place in the Agriculture Industry for years to 
come . Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I once again urge a do pass recommendation 
on SB 2297 and thank you for your time this afternoon. I am happy to stand for any questions 
your committee may have . 
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North Dakota Stockmen's Association 

Testimony to the House Appropriations Committee on SB 2297 

March 11, 2019 

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the House Appropriations Committee. 

For the record, my name is Julie Ellingson and I represent the North Dakota Stockmen's 

Association, an 89-year-old beef cattle trade organization representing 3,000 cattle­

ranching families. 

We stand in support of SB 2297 with respect to the funding for the Agricultural Products 

Development Center. The Center will include multiple agricultural components . The 

piece most significant to the state' s  livestock industry is its updated meats laboratory. 

Replacing the existing meats laboratory has long been a priority project of our 

association and the broader livestock industry, as the current facility is archaic .  Built 

back in the age of poodle skirts and sock hops, the facility has had trouble meeting 

inspection specs because of its age . 

We are blessed to have some of the nation' s top meat scientists working at NDSU. They 

have been a part of game-changing research over the course of their careers that has 

done everything from identify the most tender muscle in the beef carcass to scientifically 

refute the commonly held myth that eating beef contributes to premature puberty in 

adolescents. Still, these world-class scientists are conducting their work in a substandard 

facility that no longer meets today' s rigorous standards .  Their resourcefulness and 

ingenuity can only be expanded with access to an up-to-date and well-equipped facility. 

The Agricultural Products Development Center is expected to pay dividends to the 

agricultural industry and, ultimately, the entire state as its no . 1 industry grows and 

flourishes. Additionally, it will help us train students in these important areas that will 

likewise benefit our industry and overall economy. 

To demonstrate our commitment to this effort, the Stockmen's Association has 

committed $25,000 of its own money to help support this major agricultural endeavor . 

Thank you for your consideration of this project. 

I 
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North Dakota 

AG 
OALITION 

P.O. Box 1 091 

Bismarck, ND 58502 

(701)  355-4458 

FAX (701 ) 223-4645 

VOTING MEMBERS 

I ndependent Beef Association 
of ND 

Mi lk  Producers Association o f  N D  

M inn-Oak Farmers Cooperative 

ND Ag Aviation Association 

ND Agricultural Association 

ND Ag Consultants 

ND Agri-Women 

ND Barley Council 

ND Corn Growers Association 

ND Corn Uti l ization Counci l  

N D  Crop Improvement & Seed 
Association 

ND Dry Bean Council 

ND Elk Growers 

ND Ethanol Council 

ND Farm Credit Counci l  

N D  Farmers Union 

Grain Dealers Association 

rain Growers Association 

I rrigation Association 

ND Lamb & Wool Producers 

ND Oilseed Counci l 

ND Pork Producers Counci l  

N D  Soybean Growers Association 

ND Stockmen's Association 

ND Wheat Commission 

Northern Canola Growers 
Association 

Northern Plains Potato Growers 

Northern Pu lse Growers 
Association 

Northwest Landowners 
Association 

Red River Val ley Sugarbeet 
Growers 

U.S. Durum Growers Association 

NON-VOTING MEMBERS 

BNSF Rai lway, Inc. 

El l ingson Companies 

Garrison Diversion Conservancy 
District 

ND Association of Ag Educators 

ND Association of Soil 
Conservation Districts 

Beef Commission 

epartment of Ag 

razing Lands Coalition 

ND Soybean Council 

ND  State Seed Commission 

NDSU Agricultural Affairs 

M a rch llth 2019 

Testimony of Darrell Oswald 
V ice Chai rman 

North Dakota Ag Coalition 
In Support of SB 2297 

Chairman Delzer and members of the comm ittee, my name is Darre l l  

Oswald ,  and I am here today as the Vice Cha i rman of  the North Dakota Ag 

Coal it ion in  support of  S B  2297.  The Ag Coal it ion has provided a u n ified vo ice for 

North Dakota agricu ltu ra l  interests for over 35 years . Today, we represent more 

than 40 statewide organ izations and associations that represent specific 

commod ities or have a d i rect i nterest in agr iculture .Throug h  the Ag Coal it ion ,  our  

mem bers seek to enhance the cl imate for North Dakota's agr icu ltura l  

producers . 

SB  2297 

Attachment / / 

The Ag Coal i t ion takes a posit ion on a l im ited number of issues, brought  to 

us  by our members ,  that have s ign ificant im pact on North Dakota's agr icu lture 

industry. The Ag Coal it ion supports S B  2297,  specifica l ly  as it relates to the Ag 

Products Development Center, th is project is needed to continue the h igh-qua l ity 

research that is essential to the future of North Dakota's crop and l ivestock 

producers . 

The proposed Ag Products Development Center wi l l  serve as a 

replacement for Harris Ha l l  and the Meats Research Laboratory, which wi l l  br ing 

new technology and equ ipment to ag research at NDSU as wel l  as provide new 

teach ing areas for crops, l ivestock and food science. The current faci l it ies l im it 

research and education as the they can no longer provide the space , safety or 

technology that researchers and students need to carry out their im portant work.  

The agricu ltura l  research faci l it ies at NDSU are the fou ndation for North 

Dakota's ag economy. We recommend a Do Pass on SB 2297 as the Ag Products 

Development Center wi l l  s ign ificantly enhance research and education for the 

state's producers and future generations .  

I 
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Testimony of Lance Gaebe 
On behalf of the North Dakota Corn Growers Association 

March 11, 2019 
In Support of SB 2297 

Cha i rman  Delzer and members of the House Appropriations  Com mittee :  

My name Lance Gae be,  I am  appear ing before you today on  beha lf of the  North Dakota 
Corn G rowers Associat ion in support of SB 2297, specifica l ly as it re l ates to the N DSU 
Agricu l tura l  Products Deve lopment Center and  the No rthern Crops I n stitute . The N DCGA 
enth us iast ica l ly su pports the modern izat ion of the bu i l d i ngs and  fac i l it ies at N DSU to he l p  
support the ensuring the resea rch and ma rket ing of  agr icu ltu re p roducts grown i n  No rth 
Dakota . 

SB 2297 
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Exist ing fac i l it ies a re i n suffic ient to su pport the  va l ued  added resea rch and  wor ld-c lass 
demonstrat ion too ls  used to ma rket ou r  crops and  p roducts that is cr it ica l to the fa rmers and  
ra nchers i n  ou r  state. The  Agricu ltu ra l P roducts Deve lopment Center wi l l  he l p  N DSU to  bo lster 
i ts  ro le  i n  de l iveri ng research-based so lutions  to North Dakota's agri cu ltu re p roducers, and 
a long with the NCI ,  wi l l  serve as a state-of-the  a rt venue  to host globa l  customers of our qua l ity 
commod it ies .  

North Dakota is  twe lfth i n  the cou nt ry i n  corn p roject ion ,  p roducing  450 m i l l i on  bushe l s  
on 2 .9  m i l l ion acres i n  2018. Th i s  amaz ing  p roject ion i s  used to feed l ivestock, i n  ethano l  
p roduct ion and  for export ma rkets. N DSU has  been  i n strumenta l  i n  p romot ing  opportun it ies i n  
a l l  th ree a reas .  I t  i s  essenti a l  that the app ropr iate fac i l it ies exist t o  cont i nue  t h e  b reed ing, 
agronom ic, and  va lue-added research- and  that the com bined operat ions can serve as  a 
showcase to host foreign trade de legat ions who trave l to North Dakota to l ea rn about ou r  
q ua l ity food p roduction . 

North Dakota's agricu l ture prowess i s  wor ld renowned, and  a long with the rema rkab le  
green house faci l it ies that the legis latu re so  generous ly supported and  funded,  the p rocess ing 
and  ma rket ing fac i l it ies wi l l  ensure that  we ma i nta in  ou r  reputat ion i n  the g loba l  ma rketp lace 
Agricu ltu re is and  wi l l  conti nue  to be the foundat ion of ou r  state's economy, a nd  these fac i l it ies 
a re fu ndamenta l to conti nue  that focus .  The Corn G rowers of North Dakota appreciate you r  
support a n d  encou rage a D o  Pass recommendat ion of S B  2297. 

I 
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Testimony of Deana Wiese 
USDGA Executive Di rector 

In Support of SB 2297 

Cha i rman  Delzer and members of the com m ittee :  

My name is Deana  Wiese, and I am  the executive d i rector of the Un ited States Du rum 

G rowers Associat ion .  I am here today i n  support of  SB  2297, specifica l ly as i t  relates to  the  

North Dakota State Un iversity ( NDSU)  Agricu ltu ra l  Products Deve lopment Center . USDGA 

recogn izes the importance of u pdated fac i l it i es, as we l l  as state-of-the  a rt tech no logy and  

equ i pment to  ensuring t he  growth and  strength o f  the  state's n u m ber  one i ndustry ­

agricu ltu re .  

The cu rrent fac i l it ies at Harris Ha l l  no  longer p rovide  the  space or  safety needed to 

ca rryout resea rch that is  vita l ly  important to the producers in ou r  state .  The p roposed 

Agricu ltu ra l  Products Deve lopment Center wi l l  a l low N DSU to cont i nue  to de l iver resea rch­

based so l ut ions needed to ensure No rth Dakota's fa rmers a nd  ranchers a re ab l e  to p roduce and  

ma rket super ior commodit ies to  globa l  customers .  

North Dakota produces 60 percent of the nat ion 's  d u ru m, and N DSU's d u ru m  breed i ng  

p rogram i s  essent ia l  as no s ign ificant other  pub l i c  o r  p rivate b reed ing  p rograms exist .  It i s  

essent i a l  that the appropriate fac i l it ies exist to conti n ue  th i s  research .  I n  add it ion ,  H a rr is H a l l  

hosts a nnua l  foreign trade de legat ions t o  showcase t h e  qu a l ity o f  the  regions crops for 

worldwide  food product ion . Ha rris H a l l ' s  des ignat ion as  one  of the top two bu i l d i ngs i n  the 

poorest cond it ion at  N DSU does not p rovide  for a posit ive "showcase" of  North Dakota's h igh­

qua l ity commod it ies .  

Agricu ltu re is  and wi l l  conti nue  to be the foundat ion of our state's economy, a nd  these 

fac i l it ies a re essent ia l  to North Dakota agricu ltu re ma i nta i n i ng its p resence in the g loba l 

ma rketp lace .  Therefore, we'd apprec iate you r  support a nd  encou rage a Do Pass 

recommendat ion of SB 2297. 
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House Appropriations Committee 

March 1 1 , 20 1 9  
Jed M. Shivers , VP Finance and COO University o f  North Dakota 

(701 )  777-35 1 1  I jed . shivers@und.edu 

SB 2297 
Attachment 1c:J 

Chair Delzer and Committee Members : My name is Jed M Shivers and I am the VP Finance and 

COO UND. I am here to provide supplemental information in support of the testimony given by 

Dean Henley and CEO Carlson Zink related to SB2297 .  The bill, if amended, would provide UND 

with $20 million in State Appropriations to match a $20 million pledge from a currently anonymous 

donor. The $20 million from the state along with the principal gift would materially assist UND in 

generating an additional $30 million from significant donors in order to reach a projected total 

funding of $65 - 70 million. 

Although details related to the gift and the exact timing of the flow of donations need to be 

determined, the projected funds flow of gifts assuming the $20 million appropriated match is shown 

below to illustrate the probable outcome. In this projection we assume that: 

• construction begins when we have 50% of the total cash and 95% of tl1e pledges required 

for construction accumulated; 

• the principal donor completes pledge payments over a ten year period and about 50% of 

our donors complete pledge payments within 5 years and the remainder complete pledge 

payments in ten years ; and, 

• a 4.5% interest rate when financing the pledge payments during the ten year period. 
Summary of Fund ing Sources by  F iscal Year 
Col lege of Business Bui lding 

Bui lding Cost 
C losing Costs 
Interest 

S 60 000 000 
S 250 000 
$ 4 800 000 
S 65 050 000 

Funding Source 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 
State 20 000 000 S S 
Lead Donor 3 000 000 S 1 333 333 S 
Other Donors 7 000 000 S 3 807 9 1 7  $ 

Annual 's 30,000,000 $ 5, 141 ,250 $ 
Cumulative S 30,000,000 $ 35, 141 ,250 $ 

Construction 

Starts 

s $ s s s $ 
1 333 333 S 1 333 333 $ 1 333 333 S 1 333 333 S 1 333 333 $ 1 333 333 S 1 333 333 S 
3 807 917 $ 3 807 91 $ 3 807 9 17  S 1 563 666 $ 1 563 666 S 1 563 667 S 1 563 667 5 

5,141 .250 $ 5, 141 ,250 $ 5,141 ,250 $ 2,896,999 $ 2,896,999 $ 2,897,000 S 2 ,897 ,000 
40,282,500 $ 4M23,750 $ 50,565,000 $ 53.461 ,999 $ 56,358.999 $ 59,255,999 $ 62,152,999 

2029 Total Future Payment 
5 20 000 000 

1 333 333 S 15 000 000 S 5 000 000 
1 563 667 S 30 050 000 

2,897.000 

65,050,000 

The table below shows a likely funds draw-down scenario including projected interest expenses 

when financing the pledge payments. Assuming the 4. 5% interest rate noted above interest will be 

about $4. 8 million . 
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Line of Credit 4.50% rate 

Borrower University of North Dakota 
Revolving Cred,t Line for Business Schoof 
Assumes 

Credit Limit (reference) $ 25,000,000 
Days in Year (for per diem rate) , 365 

SllfTIOlclry To Date 
Total Payments 

Total Draws/Disbursements 
Total Interest Accrued 

Total Interest Paid 
Total Currently Owed 

$ (34,762,78 1 39) 
$ 30,000,000.00 
$ 4 ,762,781 -39 
$ 4 ,762,781 39 
$ 0.00 

UND.edu 

(Lender Name) 
[Address City ST ZlPj 

Phone [Phonej 

- Draw - Payment -Total Owed 
25,000.000 
20,000,000 
1 5,000 .000 
1 0,000.000 
5.000.000 

1 1 1 l l Q l L L L J J J J l l l J i l l • , • -. .1 1 � , _. ._ _. , .._ 1 .._ 

� 
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We respectfully request that you consider adding $20 million to SB2297 in order to take advantage 

of this generous principal donation and I am available to answer your questions. 

Thank you . 
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STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

• Senate B ill No. 2297 - Funding Summar¥ 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

University of North Dakota 
Capital assets $6 1 ,000,000 

Total al l funds $0 $0 $6 1 ,000,000 
Less estimated income 0 0 6 1 ,000,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 

North Dakota State Un iversity 
Capital assets $1 1 1 ,200,000 ($60 ,000 ,000) 

Total a l l  funds $0 $1 1 1 ,200,000 ($60 ,000,000) 
Less estimated income 0 1 1 1 ,200,000 (60 ,000,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 

Dickinson State Un iversity 
Capital assets $4 ,500,000 ($500 ,000) 

Total all funds $0 $4 ,500,000 ($500 ,000) 
Less estimated income 0 4,500,000 (500,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 

Valley City State University 
Capital assets $32 ,275,000 

Total al l funds $0 $32,275,000 $0 
Less estimated income 0 32,275,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 

Northern Crops Institute 
Capital assets $ 1 8 ,000,000 ($1 8 ,000 ,000) 

Total al l  funds $0 $1 8 ,000,000 ($ 1 8 ,000 ,000) 
Less estimated income 0 1 8 ,000,000 (1 8,000 ,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 0.00 

Bi l l  total 
Total all funds $0 $1 65 ,975,000 ($1 7,500 ,000) 
Less estimated income 0 1 65,975,000 (1 7,500,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0 .00 

Senate B ill No. 2297 - Un ivers ity of North Dakota - House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Capital assets $6 1 ,000,000 

Total al l funds $0 $0 $6 1 ,000,000 
Less estimated income 0 0 61 000,000 

• General fund $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 

$0 

0.00 

North Dakota Legislative Counci l  

4f 

House 
Version 

$6 1 ,000 ,000 

$6 1 ,000 ,000 
6 1 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

$5 1 ,200 ,000 

$5 1 ,200 ,000 
5 1 ,200,000 

$0 

0.00 

$4,000,000 

$4,000,000 
4,000 ,000 

$0 

0.00 

$32,275,000 

$32,275,000 
32,275,000 

$0 

0 .00 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

$1 48,475,000 
1 48,475,000 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$6 1 ,000,000 

$6 1 ,000,000 
6 1 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 
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'{ - l 'f --- / 'f  

IJ I 

S 62297 



;If I SB J-JJ/ 1  
</ .,,. /'f - 1 1  

Department 230 - University of North Dakota - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total al l funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adds Funding 
for Gamble 
Hall Project1 

$6 1 ,000,000 

$6 1 ,000,000 
6 1 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

$6 1 ,000,000 

$6 1 ,000,000 
6 1 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

fJ d--. 

1 Special fund authority of $61 , 000,000 is added for the Gamble Hal l  project from bond proceeds ($6,000,000) and 
from funds obtained from fundrais ing and other local sources ($55,000,000) . A 201 7- 1 9  b ienn ium general fund 
appropriation of $9,000,000 is also provided for the p roject for a total project cost of $70 ,000 ,000. The bonding 
authority and general fund appropriation for the p roject are avai lable only if the U nivers ity of North Dakota certif ies to 
the I ndustrial Commission and Office of Management and Budget that $55,000,000 of local and other nonstate funds 
has been obtained for the project. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - North Dakota State Un iversity - Senate Action 

This bi l l  appropriates $5 1 .2 mi l l ion from bond proceeds to North Dakota State Un ivers ity for the Dunbar Hal l  
replacement project. This b i l l  also appropriates $54 mi l l ion from bond proceeds and $6 m i l l ion from federal or other 
funds to North Dakota State Un ivers ity for the agricu l ture products development center p roject. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - North Dakota State Un iversity - House Action 

Base Senate 
Budget Version 

Capital assets $1 1 1 ,200,000 

Total al l funds $0 $1 1 1 ,200,000 
Less estimated income 0 1 1 1 ,200,000 
General fund $0 $0 

House 
Changes 

($60 ,000 ,000) 

($60,000,000) 
(60,000,000) 

$0 

House 
Version 

$5 1 ,200,000 

$5 1 ,200,000 
5 1 ,200,000 

$0 

0 .00 

Department 235 - North Dakota State Un iversity - Detail of House Changes 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Capital assets 

Total al l funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 

Capital 
Projects1 

($60,000,000) 

($60,000,000) 
(60 ,000,000) 

$0 

0 .00 

Total House 
Changes 

($60 ,000,000' 

($60 ,000 ,000) 
(60,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing added by the Senate for the Dunbar Hall project is adjusted as fol lows : 

Bonding 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$5 1 ,200, 000 

Q 
$5 1 ,200, 000 

House 
$40,000,000 

1 1 ,200.000 
$51 ,200,000 

Difference 
($1 1 ,200,000) 

1 1 .200,000 
$0 

This amendment also removes $60 mi l l ion of funding from bond proceeds and other funds added by the Senate for 
the Agriculture P roducts Development Center project. 

North Dakota Legislative Counci l  2 8B2297 
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Senate Bill No. 2297 - Dickinson State Un iversity - Senate Action 

This b i l l  appropriates $4.5 m i l l ion from bond proceeds to Dickinson State Un iversity for the Pu lver Ha l l  renovat ion 
project. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Dickinson State Un iversity - House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Capital assets $4 ,500,000 ($500 ,000' 

Total al l funds $0 $4 ,500,000 ($500,000) 
Less estimated income 0 4,500,000 (500,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

House 
Version 

$4,000,000 

$4,000 ,000 
4,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

Department 239 - Dickinson State Un iversity - Detail of House Changes 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0 .00 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 
Pulver Hall 

Project1 

($500 ,000) 

($500 ,000) 
(500 ,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($500 ,000) 

($500 ,000) 
(500,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing from bond proceeds added by the Senate for the Pu lver Ha l l  project is reduced from $4,500,000 to 
$4,000,000. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Valley City State Un iversity - Senate Action 

This b i l l  appropriates $32 ,275,000 from bond proceeds to Val l ey City State U n iversity for the commun ications and 
f ine a rts bu i ld ing  project. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Valley City State Un iversity - House Action 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

North Dakota Legis lative Counci l  

Base 
Budget 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

Senate 
Version 

$32,275,000 

$32,275,000 
32 ,275,000 

$0 

0.00 

3 

House 
Changes 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

House 
Version 

$32,275,000 

$32,275,000 
32,275,000 

$0 

0.00 

S B2297 
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Department 242 - Valley City State University - Detail of House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts Funding 
for 

Communications 
and Fine Arts 

Building Project1 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

IJ 1 

1 Fund ing added by the Senate for the Commun icat ions and Fine Arts Bu i ld ing project is adjusted as fol lows: 

Bonding 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$32,275,000 

Q 
$32 ,275, 000 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Northern Crops Institute - Senate Action 

House 
$30,000,000 

2,275,000 
$32 ,275, 000 

Difference 
($2 ,275,000) 

2,275.000 
$0 

This bi l l  appropriates $ 1 0 mi l l ion from bond proceeds and $8 mi l l ion from federal or other funds to the Northern 
Crops I nst itute for a bu i ld ing p roject . 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Northern Crops Institute - House Action 

Base Senate House 
Budget Version Changes 

Capital assets $ 1 8 ,000,000 ($1 8 ,000,000) 

Total al l funds $0 $ 1 8 ,000,000 ($ 1 8 ,000,000) 
Less estimated income 0 1 8 ,000,000 ( 1 8 ,000,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 

House 
Version 

$0 
0 

$0 

0 .00 

Department 638 - Northern Crops Institute - Detai l  of House Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Removes 
Funding for 

Build ing 
Project1 

($1 8 ,000 ,000) 

($ 1 8 ,000,000) 
(1 8 ,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total House 
Changes 

($ 1 8 ,000,000) 

($1 8,000,000) 
( 1 8 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing added by the Senate from bond proceeds and other funds for the Northern Crops I nst itute bu i ld ing project 
is removed . 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Other Changes - House Action 

This amendment also provides a 201 7- 1 9  bienn ium general fund appropriat ion of $1 9 .9 mi l l ion fo r the fol lowing 
projects : 

North Dakota Legislative Counci l  4 SB2297 
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Bismarck State Col lege nurs ing bui ld ing 
Dakota Col lege at Bott ineau din ing hal l and other p rojects 
U n ivers ity of North Dakota Gamble Hal l  p roject 
Lake Region State College precision agricu ltu re p roject 
Total genera l  fund 

$8,900,000 
1 ,000,000 
9 ,000,000 
1 ,000.000 

$ 1 9 ,900,000 

-#- / 

Provisions are also added to a l low the institutions to continue any unexpended genera l  fund appropriat ions for the 
projects into the 201 9-2 1 biennium . 
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F IRST ENGROSSMENT 19.1021.02003 

Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

ENGROSSED SENATE B ILL NO. 2297 

Introduced by 

Senators Wardner, Robinson ,  Sorvaag 

Representatives Howe, Roers Jones 

1 A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for capital projects of various state departments 

2 and institutions; to authorize the industrial commission to issue and sell evidences of 

3 indebtedness for capital projects; to provide an exemption: and to declare an emergency. 

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEM BLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:  

5 SECTION 1 .  PROJECT AUTHORIZATIONS - APPROPRIATION. =FfleSubject to the 

6 provisions of this section, the industrial commission ,  acting as the North Dakota building 

7 authority, shall arrange for the funding of the projects authorized in this section ,  declared to be 

8 in the public interest, through the issuance of evidences of indebtedness under chapter 54-17 .2, 

9 beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2021. The industrial 

1 0  commission shall issue evidences of indebtedness under this section with the condition that 

1 1  lease rental payments need not begin until July 1, 2021. The authority of the industrial 

1 2  commission to issue evidences of indebtedness under this section ends June 30, 2021, but the 

1 3  industrial commission may continue to exercise all other powers granted to it under chapter 

1 4  54-17.2 and this Act and comply with any covenants entered before that date . The proceeds of 

1 5  the evidences of indebtedness and other available funds are appropriated to the agencies listed 

1 6  in this section ,  beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2021, for the 

1 7  following projects: 

1 8  North Dakota state university Dunbar Hall $61 ,200,000 

1 9  Valley City state university communications and fine arts building project 32 ,276,000 

20 North Dal<eta state university agriculture products development center 54 ,000,000 

2 1  Northern crops institute project 10,000,000 

22 Dickinson state university Pulver Hall project 4,600,000 
23 �ro�ta�1------------------------$H1�51T,�97tt5H,o�o-o 
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1 North Dakota state university shall obtain and utilize at least $6,000,000 of federal and 

2 other funds for the agriculture products development center project, and the funds rnust be 

3 cornrnitted and available to be spent before the industrial corn mission rnay issue bonds for the 

4 project. There is appropriated to North Dakota state university the surn of $6,000,000, or so 

5 rnuch of the surn as rnay be necessary, from federal or other funds that may become available 

6 for this project for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 

7 � 

8 The northern crops institute shall obtain and utili2e at least $8,000,000 of federal and other 

9 funds for the northern crops institute project, and the funds must be cornrnitted and available to 

1 0  be spent before the industrial cornrnission rnay issue bonds for the project. There is 

1 1  appropriated to the northern crops institute the surn of $8,000,000, or so rnuch of the surn as 

1 2  rnay be necessary, frorn federal or other funds that rnay become available for this project for the 

1 3  period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2021 . 

1 4  North Dakota state university Dunbar Hal l  $40,000,000 

1 5  Valley City state university communications and fine arts building project 30,000,000 

6,000,000 

4,000,000 

1 6  University of North Dakota Gamble Hal l project 

1 7  Dickinson state university Pulver Hal l 

1 8  Total $80,000,000 

1 9  1 .  North Dakota state university may obtain and utilize local funds obtained from 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

fundraising or other sources for the Dunbar Hal l  project. There is appropriated to North 

Dakota state university the sum of $1 1 ,200,000, or so much of the sum as may be 

necessary. from any local or other funds that may become available for this project for 

the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 202 1 . 

North Dakota state university shal l  commence construction on the Dunbar Hal l  project 

before July 1 ,  2020. North Dakota state university shal l  adjust the scope of the project 

as necessary to match the amount of cash available for the project on the date 

construction commences. 

2 .  Val ley City state university may obtain and utilize local funds obtained from fundraising 

or other sources for the communications and fine arts building project. There is 

appropriated to Val ley City state university the sum of $2,275,000, or so much of the 

sum as may be necessary. from any local or other funds that may become available 

Page No. 2 1 9. 1 02 1 .02003 



Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 

SiJ rJ.. :J, rt 7 
"I -l'l  -l'i  

for this project for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending 

June 30, 2021 . Valley City state university must commence construction on the 

communications and fine arts building project before July 1 ,  2020. Valley City state 

university shall adjust the scope of the project as necessary to match the amount of 

cash available for the project on the date construction commences. 

f.J .3 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

3 .  a .  The university of North Dakota may obtain and utilize local funds obtained from 

fundraising or other sources for the Gamble Hall project. There is appropriated to 

the university of North Dakota the sum of $55,000,000, or so much of the sum as 

may be necessary, from any local or other funds that may become available for 

this project for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending 

June 30, 2021 . 

b .  The industrial commission may issue evidences of indebtedness for the Gamble 

1 3  Hall project only if the university of North Dakota certifies to the industrial 

1 4  commission and the director of the office of management and budget that 

1 5  $55,000,000 of local and other nonstate funds has been obtained for the project. 

1 6  SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION - CAPITAL PROJECTS - EXEMPTION.  Subject to the 

1 7  provisions of this section, the funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may be 

1 8  necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not 

1 9  otherwise appropriated, to the following institutions for the identified capital projects, for the 

20 period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30,  201 9, as follows: 

2 1  Bismarck state college nursing building 

22 Dakota college at Bottineau dining hall and other projects 

23 Lake region state college precision agriculture project 

24 University of North Dakota Gamble Hall project 

25 Total general fund 

$8,900,000 

1 ,000,000 

1 ,000,000 

9,000,000 

$ 1 9,900,000 

26 Section 54-44 . 1 -1 1  does not apply to the funding in this section and any funds not spent by 

27 June 30, 201 9, may be continued into the biennium beginning July 1 ,  201 9, and ending 

28 June 30,  2021 . The appropriation for the Gamble Hall project must be continued into the 

29 biennium beginning July 1 ,  201 9 , and ending June 30,  202 1 , and is available only if  the 

30 university of North Dakota certifies to the director of the office of management and budget that 

3 1  $55,000,000 of local and other nonstate funds has been obtained for the project. 
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1 SECTION 3. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure . 
IJ </ 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Holmberg 

Fiscal No. 2 April 23, 2019 

PROPO SED AMENDMENT S TO EN GRO S SED SENATE BILL NO. 2297 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1582-1586 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 17 48-1752 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2297 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 3, after the semicolon insert "to provide an exemption; "  

Page 1 ,  line 5 ,  replace "The" with " Subject to the provisions of this section, the" 

Page 1, remove lines 17 th rough 24 

Page 2 replace lines 1 th rough 11 with :  

"North Dakota state university Dunbar Hall $40,000,000 
30,000,000 
20,000,000 

6,000,000 
4,000,000 

$100,000,000 

Valley City state university Communications and Fine Arts Building project 
North Dakota state university agriculture products development center 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hall project 
Dickinson state university Pulver Hall 
Total 

1. North Dakota state university may obtain and utilize local funds obtained 
from fundraising or other sources for the Dunbar Hall project . There is 
appropriated to North Dakota state university the sum of $3, 200,000, or so 
much of the sum as may be necessary, from any local or other funds that 
may become available for this project for the period beginning with the 
effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2 .  a. North Dakota state university may obtain and utilize local funds 
obtained from fundraising or other sources for the agriculture products 
development center project. There is appropriated to North Dakota 
state university the sum of $20,000,000, or so much of the sum as 
may be necessary, from any local or other funds that may become 
available for this project for the period beginning with the effective 
date of this Act , and ending June 30, 2021. 

b. The industrial commission may issue evidences of indebtedness for 
the agriculture products development center project only if North 
Dakota state university certifies to the industrial commission and the 
director of the office of management and budget that $20,000,000 of 
local and other funds has been obtained for the project or if North 
Dakota state university receives approval for a change in project 
scope from the legislative assembly or budget section pursuant to 
section 48-01.2-25. 

3. a. The university of North Dakota may obtain and utilize local funds 
obtained from fundraising or other sources for the Gamble Hall 
project . There is appropriated to the university of North Dakota the 
sum of $55 ,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, 
from any local or other funds that may become available for this 
project for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act , and 
ending June 30, 2021. 
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The industrial commission may issue evidences of indebtedness for 
the Gamble Hall project only if the university of North Dakota certifies flJ A 
to the industrial commission and the director of the office of 
management and budget that $55 ,000,000 of local and other funds 
has been obtained for the project or if the university of North Dakota 
receives approval for a change in project scope from the legislative 
assembly or budget section pursuant to section 48-01. 2-25 . 

SECTION 2.  APPROPRIATION - CAPITAL PROJECTS - EXEMPTION. 

1. Subject to the provisions of this section, the funds provided in this section , 
or so much of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any 
moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise 
appropriated, to the following institutions for the identified capital projects , 
for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending 
June 30, 2019, as follows: 

Bismarck state college Nursing Building 
Dakota college at Bottineau dining hall and other projects 
Lake Region state college precision agriculture project 
North Dakota state university agriculture products development center project 
North Dakota state university Dunbar Hall project 
University of North Dakota Gamble Hall project 
Valley City state university Communications and Fine Arts Building project 
Total general fund 

$8,900,000 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 

20,000,000 
8 ,000,000 
9,000,000 
2,000,000 

$49,900,000 

In accordance with section 54-44.1-11, any unaccepted funds from these 

• 

appropriations may be continued into the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, 
• and ending June 30, 2021. 

2 .  The appropriation for the agriculture products development center project 
must be continued into the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending 
June 30, 2021, and is available only if North Dakota state university 
certifies to the industrial commission and the director of the office of 
management and budget that $20,000,000 of local and other funds has 
been obtained for the project or if North Dakota state university receives 
approval for a change in project scope from the legislative assembly or 
budget section pursuant to section 48-01.2-25.  

3 .  The appropriation for the Gamble Hall project must be continued into the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021, and is 
available only if the university of North Dakota certifies to the industrial 
commission and the director of the office of management and budget that 
$55 ,000,000 of local and other funds has been obtained for the project or if 
the university of North Dakota receives approval for a change in project 
scope from the legislative assembly or budget section pursuant to section 
48-01.2-25 .  

SECTION 3 .  NORTHERN CROPS INSTITUTE BUILDING PROJECT. The 
northern crops institute is authorized to begin fundraising efforts for the northern crops 
institute building project . The northern crops institute shall develop a proposal for its 
building project, including locations for the new facility, the proper capacity of the facility 
to serve future institute needs, and the estimated costs of the building project . The 
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northern crops institute may seek funding and authorization from the sixty-seventh 
legislative assembly to proceed with the building project . 
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• Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

Senate Bil l  No. 2297 - Summary of Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Vers ion Changes Vers ion Vers ion House 
Un iversity of North Dakota 

Total a l l  funds $0 $0 $6 1 ,000,000 $61 ,000,000 $61 ,000,000 $0 
Less estimated income 0 0 6 1 ,000,000 61 ,000,000 6 1 ,000,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 

North Dakota State Un ivers ity 
Total a l l  funds $0 $ 1 1 1 ,200,000 ($28,000,000) $83,200,000 $51 ,200,000 $32,000 ,000 
Less estimated income 0 1 1 1 ,200,000 /28,000,000) 83,200,000 5 1 ,200,000 32,000,000 
Genera l  fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 

Dickinson State Un ivers ity 
Total a l l  funds $0 $4,500,000 ($500,000) $4,000,000 $4,000,000 $0 
Less estimated income 0 4,500,000 (500 ,000' 4,000,000 4,000,000 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 .00 

Val ley C ity State Univers ity 
Total a l l  funds $0 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) $30 ,000,000 $32,275,000 ($2,275 ,000) 
Less estimated income 0 32,275,000 
General fund $0 $0 

(2 ,275 ,000) 
$0 

30,000,000 32,275,000 (2 ,275 ,000) 
$0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 

Northern Crops I nstitute 
Total all funds $0 $ 1 8,000,000 ($ 18 ,000,000) $0 $0 $0 
Less estimated income 0 1 8 ,000,000 / 1 8 ,000 ,000) 0 0 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0 .00 

Bi l l  total 
Total all funds $0 $ 1 65,975,000 $ 1 2,225,000 $ 1 78,200,000 $ 1 48,475,000 $29,725,000 
Less estimated income 0 1 65 ,975,000 1 2, 225 ,000 1 78,200,000 148 ,475,000 29,725,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 .00 

Senate Bil l  No. 2297 - University of North Dakota - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Vers ion Changes Vers ion Vers ion House 

Capital assets $6 1 ,000 ,000 $61 ,000,000 $61 ,000,000 

Total all funds $0 $0 $6 1 ,000,000 $61 ,000,000 $61 ,000,000 $0 
Less estimated income 0 0 6 1 ,000 ,000 61 ,000,000 6 1 ,000,000 0 
Genera l  fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 

• 
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Department 230 - University of North Dakota - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

fJ 'f 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adds Funding 
fo r Gamble 
Hal l  Project1 

$6 1 ,000,000 

$61 ,000,000 
61 ,000,000 

$0 

0 .00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 
$61 ,000,000 

$61 ,000,000 
6 1 ,000,000 

$0 

0.00 

1 Specia l  fund authority of $61 m i l l i on  i s  added fo r the Gamble Ha l l  project from bond proceeds ($6 m i l l ion) and from 
funds obta ined from fundra is ing and other  local sou rces ($55 m i l l ion) .  A 20 1 7- 1 9  b ienn i um genera l  fund 
appropriat ion of $9 m i l l i on  i s  also p rovided for the project for a total project cost of $70 m i l l i on .  The bond ing authority 
and general fund appropr iat ion for the project are ava i lab le only if the Un ivers ity of North Dakota certifies to the 
I ndustria l  Commission and the Office of Management and Budget that $55 m i l l ion of loca l  and other funds has been 
obta ined for the project or  i f  the u n ivers i ty receives approval from the Legis lative Assembly or  Budget Section for a 
change i n  project scope.  Th is  is the same amount of fund ing as provided i n  the House vers ion .  

Senate Bill No. 2297 - North Dakota State University - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Vers ion Changes Vers ion Vers ion House 

Capital assets $ 1 1 1 ,200,000 ($28,000,000) $83,200,000 $51 ,200,000 $32,000,000 

Total all funds $0 $ 1 1 1 ,200,000 ($28,000,000) $83,200,000 $51 ,200,000 $32,000,000 
Less estimated income 0 1 1 1 ,200,000 (28 ,000,000) 83 ,200,000 51 ,200,000 32,000,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 0.00 

Department 235 - North Dakota State University - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 
Dunbar Hal l  

Project1 

($8,000,000) 

($8,000,000) 
(8 ,000,000) 

$0 

0 .00 

Adjusts 
Funding for 
Agricu lture 
Products 

Development 
Center 
Project1 

($20,000,000) 

($20,000,000) 
(20 ,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing for the Dunbar  Ha l l  project is  adjusted as fo l lows : 

Dunbar Ha l l  Project 
Bonding 
General fund appropriat ion (20 1 7- 1 9  b ienn i u m) 
Other funds 
Total 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($28,000,000) 

($28 ,000,000) 
(28 ,000,000) 

$0 

0 .00 

Senate 
$51 ,200,000 

0 
Q 

$51 ,200 ,000 

House 
$40 ,000 ,000 

0 
1 1 ,200,000 

$51 ,200 ,000 

Conference 
Committee 

$40 ,000 ,000 
8 ,000 ,000 
3,200,000 

$51 ,200,000 

The $8 m i l l ion reduct ion shown is due  to the genera l  fund appropriat ion being provided du ring the 201 7- 1 9  bienn i um .  

2 Fund ing for t he  Agr icu l tu re P roducts Development Center is adjusted as  fol l ows : 
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Agricu ltu re Products Development Center  
Bonding 
General fu nd appropriat ion (20 1 7- 1 9 bienn ium) 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$54 ,000 ,000 

0 
6.000,000 

$60 , 000 , 000 

House 

:Jt- I S/3 .J. �  1 7 

$0 
0 
Q 

$0 

Conference 
Comm ittee 

$20 ,000, 000 
20,000, 000 
20,000,000 

$60 , 000 ,000 

The $20 m i l l ion reduction shown is due to the general fund appropriat ion being provided dur ing the 201 7- 1 9  
bienn ium .  Provisions are a lso added to prov ide the bonding authority and genera l  fund appropriat ion for the project 
are avai lab le on ly if North Dakota State University certifies to the I ndustr ial Commission and the Office of 
Management and Budget that $20 mi l l ion of local and other  funds has been obta ined for the project or if the 
un iversity receives approva l from the Legislat ive Assembly or  Budget Sect ion for a change i n  project scope . 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Dickinson State University - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House 

Budget Vers ion Changes Vers ion Vers ion 
Capita l assets $4,500,000 ($500,000) $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

Total a l l funds $0 $4,500,000 ($500,000) $4,000,000 $4 ,000,000 
Less estimated income 0 4 ,500,000 (500,000) 4 ,000,000 4,000,000 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0.00 0.00 0 .00 0 .00 0.00 

Department 239 - Dickinson State University - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

Capital assets 

Total a l l  funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts 
Funding for 
Pulver Hal l  

Project1 

($500,000) 

($500,000) 
(500 ,000) 

$0 

0 .00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($500,000) 

($500,000) 
(500,000' 

$0 

0.00 

Comparison to 
House 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

1 Fund ing from bond proceeds added by the Senate for the P ulver Ha l l  project is reduced from $4 .5 mi l l ion to 
$4 m i l l ion . This is the same level of funding provided in  the House vers ion .  

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Valley City State University - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House Comparison to 

Budget Vers ion Changes Vers ion Vers ion House 

Capital assets $32,275,000 ($2,275 ,000) $30 ,000,000 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) 

Total all funds $0 $32,275,000 ($2,275 ,000) $30,000,000 $32,275,000 ($2,275,000) 
Less estimated income 0 32,275,000 (2 ,275,000) 30,000,000 32,275,000 {2,275,000) 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 0 .00 
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Department 242 - Valley City State University - Detail of Conference Committee Changes f.J 4, 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Adjusts Funding 
for 

Communications 
and Fine Arts 

Bui lding Project1 

($2 ,275,000) 

($2,275,000) 
(2,275,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 
($2,275,000} 

($2,275,000) 
(2,275 ,000 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding for the Communications and F ine Arts Bu i ld ing project is adjusted as fol lows: 

Communications and Fine Arts Bu i ld ing Project 
Bonding 
General fund appropriation  (20 1 7- 1 9 b ienn ium) 
Other funds 
Total 

Senate 
$32 ,275,000 

0 
Q 

$32 ,275,000 

House 
$30 ,000,000 

0 
2,275.000 

$32 ,275 ,000 

Conference 
Committee 

$30,000,000 
2 ,000 ,000 

Q 
$32 ,000,000 

The $2,275,000 reduction  shown is due to the $2 mi l l ion general fund appropriation being provided during the 
201 7-1 9 bienn ium and a reduction  of $275,000 in project authorization .  

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Northern Crops Institute - Conference Committee Action 

Conference Conference 
Base Senate Committee Committee House 

Budget Version Changes Version Vers ion 

Capital assets $ 1 8,000,000 ($1 8 ,000,000} 

Total all funds $0 $ 1 8,000,000 ($18,000,000) $0 $0 
Less estimated income 0 1 8,000,000 (18 ,000,000 0 0 
General fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

FTE 0 .00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Department 638 - Northern Crops Institute - Detail of Conference Committee Changes 

Capital assets 

Total all funds 
Less estimated income 
General fund 

FTE 

Removes 
Funding for 

Bui lding 
Project1 

($ 1 8 ,000,000) 

($ 1 8 ,000,000) 
(1 8 ,000,000) 

$0 

0.00 

Total 
Conference 
Committee 
Changes 

($ 1 8 ,000,000} 

($ 1 8 ,000,000) 
( 1 8 ,000,000' 

$0 

0.00 

Comparison to 
House 

$0 
0 

$0 

0.00 

1 Funding added by the Senate from bond proceeds and other  funds for the Northern Crops I nstitute bui ld ing project 
is removed .  The House also removed th is fund ing .  A section is added authorizi ng the Northern Crops Institute to 
beg in fundrais ing for the project and to request authorization from the 67th Leg islative Assembly to proceed with the 
project. 

Senate Bill No. 2297 - Other Changes - Conference Committee Action 

This amendment provides a 20 1 7- 1 9  bienn ium genera l  fund appropriation of $49 .9  mi l l ion for the fol lowi ng projects : 
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Bismarck State Col lege N u rs ing Bu i ld ing 
Dakota Col lege at Bottineau d in i ng ha l l  and other projects 
Lake Region State Co l lege precis ion agricu lture project 
North Dakota State U n iversity Ag ricu lture Products Development 

Center 
North Dakota State U n iversity Dunbar Hal l  project 
U n iversity of North Dakota Gamble Ha l l  project 
Va l ley C ity State Un ivers ity Commun ications and F ine Arts 

Bu i ld ing project 
Total general fund - 201 7- 1 9 b ienn ium 

Senate 
$0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
Q 

$0 

.p I .513 ,,),� 9 7 
</ - � 3 - 1 7 

Conference /_J 7 
House Committee 

$8 ,900 ,000 $8, 900,000 
1 ,000,000 1 , 000,000 
1 ,000,000 1 , 000,000 

0 20,000,000 

0 8 ,000 ,000 
9 ,000 , 000 9 ,000 ,000 

Q 2,000,000 

$ 1 9 ,900 ,000 $49 ,900 ,000 

P rovis ions are a lso added to a l low the institut ions to continue any unexpended genera l  fund appropriat ions for the 
projects into the 201 9-2 1 b ienn i um . 
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